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Results and Financial performances $EBERMERE 2021 2020
Results E¥
Revenue (HK$'000) WA (FETT) 2,404,398 2,033,419
Profit attributable to owners of the Company  ZNA F1¥E A AJE1G % F

(HK$'000) (F&T) 282,383 209,687
Basic earnings per share (HK$) BREARBF (ET) 0.34 0.25
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) &2 &R REAIE & (GEL) 8.6 8.0
Gross profit margin EFE 23.7% 26.2%
Net profit margin SR = 11.7% 10.3%
Return on equity (Note 1) AR A Bl 2 (At 1) 17.4% 15.0%
Return on assets (Note 2) BERBWRE(MFZ2) 9.9% 8.2%
Inventory turnover days (Note 3) GFEREXE(HE3) 98 105
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 4) B 5 I I FE K e (A iE4) 50 54
Trade payable turnover days (Note 5) B N SIARS R E(H7E5) 62 74
Financial position B H AR R
Net current assets (HK$'000) MBEEFE(TFAET) 1,162,975 835,259
Current ratio (Note 6) MBI R (f15E6) 220.7% 182.5%
Quick ratio (Note 7) RENEL R (ff7E7) 169.2% 138.3%
Gearing ratio (Note 8) BEBELE(KES) 20.9% 20.2%
Net gearing ratio (Note 9) FEEBRELERMFI) 0% 0%

Notes:

Bt :

(1) Return on equity ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total equity and (1)

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(2)  Return on assets ratio is calculated by dividing profit after tax by total assets and 2)

multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(3) Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of inventories (3)

divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(4) Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade (4)
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(5) Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables (5)
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days.

(6) Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and (6)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(7) Quick ratio is calculated by dividing current assets less inventory by current (7)
liabilities and multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(8) Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity and (8)
multiplying the resulting value by 100%.

(9) Net gearing ratio is calculated by dividing net borrowings (total borrowings (9)

net-off cash and pledged bank deposits) by total equity and multiplying the
resulting value by 100%. Net gearing ratio was zero as net cash of the Company
as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was HK$864,067,000 and
HK$786,885,000 respectively.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

HR 7K [B1 45 b 3K fz B 7 12 S F B LA #E s 48 85 LA T 72
BEFELA100% 515 -

BE BRI FIZ5 B 5 Flfr U B EAE B B A AT
BEFIA100% 515 -

7 BB 88K B 5 1% 77 B 15 45 68 B L 5 B /B A 85
E AN B IFIA365KE -

B 5 WK TR B R T3 12 T 19 B 5 JEH KR B X
BRFEEVRABRIAZ65KATE °

B S IEN KRB BXE T8 15 B 5 fE 175 F B A
BRFZ AT E KA FIIA366 KA -

TEB) L K% 7 BY B B LA 7 B B 1 A T 15 1B X
100%:15 °

BRI EE R EEREFER A TEE E B
RIEFLL100%5E -

BERBILFRERBRER A ERREBETFE
FeLX100%51 5 °

FEAEB B FIERFHE(EERENE S RIEHT
RITIE) FBBR LA o 48 B B A5 T 17 (B LA 100 % &1
& o R20214F12A31HK2020% 1231 HA L 7]
B % F 58 73 5| /864,067,000,% 7T % 786,885,000
BT BT FBER B F A0 -



Financial Highlights (continued)

~z oh (4z=
e (E)
Five Year Revenue — by business segments
EFRA—REK DB
HK$'000
FHET
2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000
0
Year 2017 Year 2018 Year 2019 Year 2020 Year 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20214
Mold fabrication Plastic components manufacturing Total
RARE IR ELE st
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FHET FTHER
Mold fabrication HERE 649,756 692,412 590,786 700,198 706,025
Plastic components JETBAA M RIS
manufacturing 1,211,144 1,606,197 1,720,056 1,333,221 1,698,373
Total Bt 1,860,900 2,298,609 2,310,842 2,033,419 2,404,398
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The Group will carefully control

costs, continue to promote domestic
market development and diversify
regional risks. In 2022, when the
epidemic continues and the economic
environment is volatile, we will

make prudent deployment and
sufficient preparations to maintain

steady growth in the volatile external
environment.

FEBREEREENAS  HEERBATS
FRE - pAEEEMERE - ERBEEEELHE
RIRZEM 2022 F - HAHKFEIEZF - M2
BERFUEZENNERBREXERERER

Li Pui Leung iH R
Chairman &
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To All Shareholders

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of TK Group (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” and its subsidiaries together, the “TK Group” or the
“Group") for the year ended 31 December 2021.

In 2021, as the COVID-19 epidemic eases with increasing
vaccine coverage and declining severe infections and deaths,
major countries have gradually loosened their control measures
and introduced fiscal and monetary stimulus policies, driving
steady growth in consumption and a strong rebound in the global
economy. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total revenue
of the Group amounted to HK$2,404.4 million (2020: HK$2,033.4
million), representing an increase of 18.2% year on year; the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company in the year amounted
to HK$282.4 million (2020: HK$209.7 million), representing a
significant increase of 34.7% from last year. Benefiting from
the steady recovery of the global economy and the rebound in
demand from the downstream consumer electronics industry, the
Group's revenue has returned to the level of 2019. The recovery
of sales throughout the year was attributable to the Group's
customer diversification strategy. Moreover, the superb product
quality and advanced techniques helped the Group continue to
be the preferred supplier of injection molding solutions for major
customers and maintain a leading position in the industry.

Although the epidemic has slowly recovered, supply chain
disruptions, sharp fluctuations in raw material prices, and tight
global transportation and logistics continued, posing many
challenges to the Group during the year under review. Due to the
continuous rise in raw material prices in the short term, it was
difficult for the Group to pass on the cost increases to customers
thoroughly, and the initial investment in launching new projects
during the year was relatively high, resulting in higher costs,
thus affecting the gross profit margin in 2021. Benefiting from
the Group's product and customer diversification strategy, the
demand for consumer electronic products remained strong despite
the epidemic. Several new products were mass-produced and
launched to the market during the year, and orders continued to
be full. The business has basically recovered to the pre-epidemic
level. However, due to factors such as supply chain imbalances
and chip shortages, many automobile manufacturers were severely
impacted, and production was reduced or even suspended several
times, affecting automobile mold manufacturing orders. As a
result, the orders on hand for automobile mold as of the end of
2021 were significantly reduced compared to the end of 2020. The
Group will continue to focus on developing domestic and overseas
leading customers, diversifying customer risks, steadily advancing
business development in the unpredictable external environment,
and actively grasping the market recovery opportunities.

BEARR

AANBRERESS([EBT)MARERT
SEEZER)BRAR(ARR]  REMBA
RSB RTIEE % [AEE ) HZ=2021F
12A3MHLEFEZFERSE °

2021FECOVID-19% 1BBE T » lBERZ @
BEXRRA FREFERTAHTE &
FTERXREREEE SR AHELMREE
MRS AR BENHEREIER - 2IRERE
BERE - HE2021F12A31BILEE -
RNEBBEIWAE?,404.48 &7 7T (20204 -
2,0334BEBL)  BFELFA18.2% : AR
B A A FEAG F NG IR = F B H KR IR
F34.7% - $£15282.4H 88 7t (20204 :
2007EERT) XEREKSRETE
®OTHIHBEFEESKEA AEBK
ABMEE2019FKF - REBEFZ L
REHEPNAEB2FHERE  BEHY
ERSTEREFINT2ESOEEERNEBRR
ARPHBIBIRMER  REEEER
B4B SR HIAL o

BAKIBEZISIEE  BHEETE - R
PHERBZUES « 2IEBEIREBEE
M E WASERDEFRNEREZ K
B o ARNEHARMBERFELIR A&
EHN 2B FEEABAKATIIE - BF
NHAEFEENVRIEARS  FRAFAT
B’ AmME2021FERNE o REENARE
EERMNELZILILR  HEBETERGT
BIETHEREKABE  ZRHTERREFRNE
EXNTISAEFEFENR  EHEELAD R
BEEBRIKTE o« R - ZEREEKE K
THERSEREZTZE  FLAEREFXE
BRETE  ZAREEZREFE #ERHER
BRI ETE - AMEMEE2021FEMNSE
REEFFTER2020F KA KNIBRHD - N&E
BEERNRHAZBRIINERRS 28R
FR  E&(HRMINEIRERIBIHEE
EBEE  BRILEEMSEHEKE -
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In response to the volatility of the market environment, the Group
maintained a sound and stable financial position and strong cash
flow. The Board resolved to recommend a dividend payout ratio of
41.3% for the current year, with a final dividend of HK8.6 cents per
share. Together with the interim dividend of HK5.4 cents per share,
the total dividend payout for the year was HK14.0 cents per share,
in return for the unremitting support of shareholders.

As the variants of COVID-19 continue to spread in 2022, the global
supply chain disruptions remains unresolved, raw material prices
continue to rise, and various countries introduce easing monetary
policies to stimulate their economy, all of which lead to mounting
inflationary pressures in major economies and some developing
countries. Recent Russia-Ukraine tension poses additional risks to
the economic recovery. However, since the epidemic outbreak,
the new normal of epidemic prevention has led to an increase
in consumer demand for electronic products. With the maturing
development of 5G and Internet of Things technologies, and
the rebound of European and American consumption after the
stabilization of the epidemic, the sales volume of consumer
electronics has increased. Such consumption trend is favorable
for the development of various segments of the Group, and the
launch of new products will drive the continuous growth of the
Group's orders. The Group has been actively monitoring the trend
of high-tech consumer products, expanding its product customer
base, developing product applications in emerging industries, and
adhering to a diversification strategy, so as to effectively diversify
risks and ensure long-term business development.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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In line with China’s “dual circulation” development strategy
in which the domestic economic cycle plays a leading role
while the international economic cycle remains its extension
and supplement, the Group actively explores leading domestic
customers and implements its domestic expansion strategy in an
orderly manner, which is expected to open the domestic market
steadily. The newly acquired domestic leading electronic atomiser
customer has become a growth engine for the Group. In terms of
external expansion strategy, the construction progress of factories
in Vietnam was slower than expected due to the epidemic last
year. After the production commencement in the first phase of
the plant in November 2021, the establishment of the second
phase of the production line in 2022 will continue to be pushed
forward, which is expected to be put into operation in the second
half of 2022. The Group's injection molding plant in Vietnam will
be aligned with its customers' development strategy in Southeast
Asia as some of its high-end electronic technology customers
have shifted their supply chains to Southeast Asia due to the
escalating trend of trade frictions between the United States and
China, which has led to global supply chain restructuring. The
Group will continue to implement its strategy of internal extension
and external expansion to further expand its business footprint
by acquiring its domestic and overseas customers of well-known
brands.

In 2020, the Group set the first five-year plan to double the
sales of the injection molding business in five years. The Group
is pragmatically and continuously making progress towards the
expected goal. The first two years are the foundation period for
the plan. To this end, the Group has launched a series of internal
reform policies. The new incentive policies encourage employees
to actively develop new customers and new regional production
locations, and allow employees to invest in subsidiaries to
increase their participation, thus promoting a concerted effort to
drive business growth. At the process level, the Group has been
focusing on the field of high precision injection mold, continuously
refining its technology to improve the precision and accuracy of
the mold so as to build a century-old brand of expert-level molds.
In addition, the Group continues to look for suitable acquisition or
investment targets to expand its business scope, and the pace of
investment in recent years has not stopped.

REFEETRARE [EEIRJBE @ K&
EEGRAEANRERS  NARBEAT
EER  HEBTITREATES - HHAAH
BEAREHEE FRIEREFPERANEE NI
RO|¥ - EINERBEFE - 2FXRBEFE
THENRRERRIEREE - #2021F 11
AE—BREFRRKRER  2022F8g#
BHES —HEERRY - WIEHN2022F
THFRE NP EZSEBRFREANGE
P ERHEIRHEREE  Ei—LERE
FRIEREPECEBPHERERBEIME - K
SENUEEATERENREATFPARETDE
BRREE - AEEREBERNTEINAKE -
HE—SHRBERNIINNERBER  EAED
b [

2020 AKEATELE —ERFE - KHTE
RIBEBTLSFHEBDENER  AEELE
BENFERABAHERBE - AMF RS
HWEH - DUAKRED L — R ABER
B  FTHRBBCR B E THEERAENE
EXREHOREIEESME  YAFET
ABRFRAREMBEBERE - REQXF LT
—ODHAREERBER EIZER - £AF
B-BEFINESRTIEEAEE - FER
ERMTHOMERR - RAVEANEERE NG
BE - WTEERRAORETFmE - it
Sy AEBINTEMERENKRBEIIRER
AR A RS RE - IFNREN T REE
2 o
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At the beginning of 2022, affected by rising raw material prices
and supply disturbances, the inflation in Europe, the United States,
and many emerging markets and developing economies grows
more than expected, and the recovery of consumption power also
shows signs of slowing down. Although the demand for consumer
electronics in Europe and the United States will continue in the
first half of 2022, there is still uncertainty about the long-term
economic growth and the sustainability of consumer sentiment.
The Group will carefully control costs, continue to promote
domestic market development and diversify regional risks. In 2022,
when the epidemic continues and the economic environment
is volatile, we will make prudent deployment and sufficient
preparations to maintain steady growth in the volatile external
environment.

With a corporate culture unanimously recognized and supported
by the public and all staff, every decision and every order of TK
Group are determined upon thorough consideration in terms of
customers, suppliers, staff, natural environment, the society and
TK Group itself to ensure all parties are treated in a fair and equal
manner, as well as profit maximization. Such culture is consistent
with TK Group's operating concept of “concerted development,
concerted growth"”. In addition, the Group places high emphasis
on integrity, and believes that the “Three Principles”, namely,
“Fairness, Equality and Transparency”, will facilitate our health
development and growth. Under the corporate culture of mutual
trust, all of our staff are able to concentrate on the creation of
corporate value and provision of better services to our customers,
thus protecting interests of the Group and the customers as a
whole.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their full support and trust. | would
also like to give special thanks to all our staff and management
team of the Company for their dedication. The Group's business is
gradually recovering to pre-epidemic levels, with optimistic future
development. We will strive to promote the development of the
Group under your trust and support, thereby creating better results
and return for our shareholders and the society.

Li Pui Leung
Chairman
Hongkong, 25 March 2022
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In 2021, as the global economy recovered from the lowest point
caused by the COVID-19 epidemic in the previous year, economies
in Europe and the United States gradually relaxed relevant control
measures. Many countries implemented large-scale relief and
stimulus measures which restored economic activities and
promoted the recovery in consumption. The Group’s revenue also
recovered from the epidemic to a level close to that in 2019. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's total revenue
amounted to HK$2,404.4 million (2020: HK$2,033.4 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 18.2%. The segments
in downstream industries, such as mobile phones and wearable
devices, commercial telecommunications equipment and smart
home, recorded strong growth during the year, while the new
segment of electronic atomizers also performed well.

Revenue Analyzed by Downstream Industries
Industry 2021
7%
HK$ million %
BERET
Mobile phones and wearable FRLAZERE
devices 804.0 33.4
Automobiles "E 452.2 18.8
Medical and personal health care  Z2f& J& fE A £ 12 4115 17.1
Smart home BERE 306.9 12.8
Commercial telecommunications B ¥E@:HE
equipment 170.3 71
Electronic atomizers ETEILA 98.8 4.1
Household electrical appliances K& 66.7 2.8
Digital devices HFRE 17.6 0.7
Others Hity 76.4 3.2
2,404.4 100.0

20214 - 2R ENE E—FCOVID-195Z 15
EREERESER - B REHEEER
H - SREBREBABENLGS R RIKEE G
MRIREE - AIBCEESRAR  AEEX
WA B COVID-19& 8 IR 1B £2019F /K
oo HE2021F12A318LEFE - AEERL
WAE2,404. 4B 8487 (20204F : 2,033.48
BEIL)  BELEH18.2% « THITEFHE
AFERE  AEBARE  SEREFR
BRRERERADEE  FTHETBLEIR
WA SRR -

WAE T HITED
2020 Change
23

HK$ million % HK$ million %

AEBTL BEATL
719.5 354 84.5 1.7
409.1 20.1 431 10.5
431.3 21.2 -19.8 -4.6
203.1 10.0 103.8 51.1
99.9 49 70.4 70.5
23.2 1.1 75.6 325.9
22.0 1.1 447 203.2
31.9 1.6 -14.3 -44.8
93.4 46 -17.0 -18.2
2,033.4 100.0 371.0 18.2
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As the impact of the new variants of COVID-19 continued in 2021,
it resulted in the failure of full recovery of supply chain operation.
The price of raw materials continued to rise in the circumstance
of the supply and demand imbalance. In addition, the shortage of
global semiconductors affected the production plans and orders of
certain customers. The frequent changes of orders by customers
also affected the production efficiency. During the year, the gross
profit of the Group increased by 6.9% to HK$569.2 million (2020:
HK$532.6 million), while gross profit margin dropped by 2.5
percentage points to 23.7% (2020: 26.2%).

During the year, the Group effectively controlled its selling and
administrative expenses. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company recorded HK$282.4 million (2020: HK$209.7 million),
representing a significant increase of 34.7% as compared with
last year. Net profit margin increased by 1.4 percentage points
to 11.7% (2020: 10.3%). Basic earnings per share was HK$0.34
(2020: HK$0.25), representing an increase of 36.0% as compared
with last year.

The Group has been committed to maintaining a sound financial
position. Trade receivable turnover days decreased to 50 days as
compared with that of last year. Despite of the lingering global
logistics difficulty, inventory turnover days decreased to 98 days in
2021. In view of the recurring and spreading COVID-19 epidemic,
the Group adopted a prudent attitude towards capital expenditure,
which enabled the Group to maintain net cash of HK$864.1 million
(2020: HK$786.9 million). The sound cash position has enabled
the Group to flexibly respond to the uncertainties and challenges
arising from the macro environment. In addition, since the
traditional automobile industry was one of those being seriously
affected by the supply chain imbalance, coupled with the declining
production in Euro zone including Germany and insufficient supply
of chips, automobile manufacturers significantly reduced their
production targets, which had an impact on the orders for the
manufacture of automotive molds. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group had sales orders on hand amounting to HK$918.3 million,
which represented a slight decrease of 0.7% as compared with
HK$925.2 million as at 31 December 2020.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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Mold Fabrication Business

During the year under review, the revenue of the mold fabrication
segment from external customers amounted to approximately
HK$706.0 million, representing an increase of approximately 0.8%
as compared with approximately HK$700.2 million in last year, and
accounting for approximately 29.4% of the Group's total revenue.

The Group has production lines for ultra-large standard molds and
high-precision molds. The major products of the Group’s ultra-
large standard molds are automobiles components. The clients
mainly include first-tier component suppliers who manufacture
automobiles components for renowned automobile brands in
Europe, such as Mercedes-Benz, BMW and Volkswagen. High-
precision molds production lines mainly produce high-precision
molds with multi-cavity and efficiency, covering the markets
of high-end consumer electronics products and commercial
telecommunications equipment such as smart home, mobile
phones and wearable devices, medical and personal health
care. The Group continues to focus on expert-level molding
technology research and is committed to providing customers
with high quality and cost-effective design solutions. In addition
to developing external customers, the Group also cooperates with
the downstream plastic components manufacturing business to
provide more premium one-stop services for the customers.

During the year, the mold segment continued its good momentum
in the second half of 2020. Customers actively launched new
products and maintained stable mold demand. The revenue of the
segment slightly increased by 0.8% to HK$706.0 million (2020:
HK$700.2 million), while gross profit margin edged down by 0.3
percentage point to 27.1% (2020: 27.4%). The global economy
is gradually recovering. However, under the macro uncertainties
such as the extended impacts of the COVID-19 epidemic, the
price negotiation pressure from customers has continued, and
the market has also experienced fierce competition. In the
face of market pressure, the Group will continue to improve its
process technology, expand the scope of mold products, deepen
customer relationships, provide high-quality mold products and
design solutions, and maintain its competitive advantages. Given
the opportunities for domestic sales brought by China’s internal
circular economy policies, the Group is actively exploring new
domestic customers in addition to overseas export customers, to
continue its customer diversification strategy.
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Plastic Components Manufacturing Business

With the continuous improvement of vaccine coverage rates in
developed countries around the world, the gradual recovery of
economic activities, coupled with the surges in consumer demand,
the global economy recovered in 2021. With rebounded orders
from most downstream consumer electronics customers of the
Group, sales from plastic injection business recovered from the
COVID-19 epidemic and reached closely to the level in 2019.
Revenue from the plastic components manufacturing segment
amounted to approximately HK$1,698.4 million (2020: HK$1,333.2
million), representing an increase of 27.4% as compared with last
year, accounting for approximately 70.6% of the total revenue of
the Group.

The mobile phones and wearable devices segment achieved a
year-on-year increase of 11.7% in revenue, which was due to the
fact that the products of the wireless headsets brand customer
and the smartphone protective cases brand customer were well
received by the market, which led to a significant increase in the
Group's orders. The Group actively explored domestic smartphone
brands, Internet of Things and other customers to achieve
continuous increase in domestic customer orders, which will
further diversify the customer portfolio and drive the sustainable
growth of the business of this segment.

The smart home segment recorded a significant year-on-year
increase of 51.1% in revenue. Thanks to the stabilizing economy in
Europe and the United States and the rapid recovery of consumer
demand, various products of the Group's two major brand
customers were mass-produced during the year. The abundant
orders on hand indicate that the business of this segment is
growing continuously, and it is believed that the smart home
segment will become the future growth driver of the Group.

Medical and personal health care segment recorded a year-on-
year decrease of 4.6% in revenue, mainly due to the temporary
reduction of orders from personal health care customers resulting
from the impact of semiconductor shortages for productions,
but this did not affect the Group’'s strategic investment in this
segment. The Group is actively developing well-known brand
customers in the medical category at home and abroad, and is
optimistic about the development of this sector in the long run.
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The commercial telecommunications equipment segment
recorded a significant year-on-year increase of 70.5% in revenue,
which was due to the significant increase in sales resulting from
the increase in supplier share of the Group during the supply chain
restructuring of its customer. Although the customer’s traditional
products have gradually become saturated in the market, their
newly developed products are well received by the market. In
terms of the latest portfolio of supply chain, the Group remains
as the main supplier of the customer’s new products with stable
prospects.

During the year under review, the gross profit margin of the plastic
injection business decreased to 22.2% (2020: 25.6%), which
was mainly attributable to raw material prices rising too fast,
making it difficult for the cost to be fully passed on to customers
in a short period of time, coupled with tight logistics, shortage
of semiconductors, and interruption of production schedules,
resulting in decline in production efficiency and machine utilisation.
The Group’'s principal production capacity is located in the PRC,
where COVID-19 epidemic prevention policies have obtained a
relative success at present which enables the operation of the
Group to be sustained. It is expected that with the improvement of
material supply and the easing of logistics difficulties, coupled with
a certain number of new projects entering the mass production
stage, our capacity utilization rate will increase and our gross profit
margin will return to a healthy level.

As of 31 December 2021, sales of the Group were mainly export
sales and our clients were mainly prestigious corporations and
brands in Europe and America. Clients of the Group cover a wide
range of industries, from automobile to household electrical
appliances to mobile phones and wearable devices, smart home
as well as medical and personal health care. As a key supplier of
molds and plastics of high-end electronic products, the Group's
orders are widely impacted by the launch time, popularity and life
cycle of products of its downstream industry clients. However,
being engaged in the molds and plastic injection industry for
more than 30 years, the Group always sticks to the strategy of
client diversity in order to manage and minimize risks efficiently.
Currently, the Group has been widely recognized as a trustworthy
business partner of various internationally known brands of
consumer goods, including numbers of leading brands in many
fast-growing industries such as smartphones, personal health care
and smart home brand.
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Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$2,404.4 million, representing an increase of approximately
HK$371.0 million or 18.2% when compared with the revenue of
approximately HK$2,033.4 million in 2020.

In 2021, the revenue from external customers of the mold fabrication
segment was approximately HK$706.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately HK$5.8 million or 0.8% when compared
with revenue of approximately HK$700.2 million in 2020. During the
year, the mold fabrication segment enjoyed a good momentum in
second half of 2020 as customers actively launching new products to
keep demand for moulds stable.

In 2021, the revenue from external customers of the plastic
components manufacturing segment was approximately HK$1,698.4
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$365.2 million
or 27.4% when compared with the revenue of approximately
HK$1,333.2 million in 2020. With the continuous increase of global
vaccine coverage, gradual liberalization of economic activities, as
well as the explosion of consumer demand and the global economic
recovery in 2021, most of the Group's downstream electronics
customers’ orders rebounded, and sales of the plastic injection
business have recovered from the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic
to a similar level of 2019.
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Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$569.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$36.6 million or 6.9% as compared with the
gross profit of approximately HK$532.6 million in 2020. Gross
profit margin dropped 2.5 percentage points to 23.7% (2020:
26.2%). The supply chain has not yet fully recovered resulting from
the continuous impact of new variant of the coronavirus in 2021.
The price of raw materials continued to rise due to a supply and
demand imbalance. In addition, the global semiconductor shortage
had a significant impact on the production plans and demand of
customers, and frequent order adjustments by customers also
affected production efficiency, resulting in a decrease in overall
gross profit margin.

The gross profit margin for the mold fabrication segment slightly
dropped 0.3 percentage point to 27.1% (2020: 27.4%). The global
economy is gradually recovering. However, given a number of
macro uncertainties such as the delayed impact of the COVID-19
epidemic, the bargaining pressure from customers continues and
there is fierce competition in the market.

The gross profit margin for the plastic components manufacturing
segment dropped 3.4 percentage points to 22.2% (2020: 25.6%),
which was mainly attributable to the rapid increase in raw material
prices in the short term, which made it difficult to entirely pass
on the costs to customers in the near term, coupled with tight
logistics, shortage of semiconductors and stifled production
scheduling, resulting in a decline in production efficiency and
machine utilization.

Other Income

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$51.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$6.9 million or 11.8% when compared with
that of approximately HK$58.8 million in 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in government grants income of the
Group for the year.
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Other Gains/(Losses) — Net

Other gains (net) for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
approximately HK$11.1 million, when compared to the other
losses (net) of approximately HK$30.8 million in 2020. In order to
minimise the effect of fluctuation of the Euro exchange rate on
the Group, the Group borrowed a Euro-denominated bank loan
equivalent to the amount of the Group’s existing orders from
Europe to hedge the effects of fluctuations of the exchange rates
of Euro on the Group.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
approximately HK$79.3 million (2020: HK$71.1 million), representing
an increase of approximately HK$8.2 million or 11.4% when
compared to 2020, and the percentage to sales was approximately
3.3% (2020: 3.5%), representing a decrease of 0.2 percentage
point. The increase in selling expenses was mainly attributable to
the increase in transportation expenses resulting from the increase
in sales and ocean freight unit price.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021
were approximately HK$247.0 million (2020: HK$254.7 million),
representing a decrease of approximately HK$7.7 million or 3.0%
when compared to 2020, and the percentage to sales was 10.3%
(2020: 12.5%), representing a decrease of 2.2 percentage points.
The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to
a decrease in one-off anti-epidemic cost.

Finance Income — Net

Net finance income for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$18.1 million, representing an increase of
approximately HK$13.1 million as compared to the net finance
income of approximately HK$5.0 million in 2020, which was
primarily due to an increase of approximately HK$9.5 million in
interest income and a decrease of approximately HK$3.6 million in
interest expenses during the year.
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Share of Profit of an Associate

Share of profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately HK$0.5 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$0.2 million or 18.9% when compared with
approximately HK$0.7 million in 2020.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$42.1 million (2020: HK$30.9 million) and the
effective tax rate was 13.0% (2020: 12.8%).

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately HK$282.4
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$72.7 million
or 34.7% when compared with approximately HK$209.7 million in
2020.

The Group maintained a sound financial position during the
year. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
assets of approximately HK$1,163.0 million (31 December 2020:
HK$835.3 million). The Group had total cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,203.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$1,069.1
million), including cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$1,027.6 million (31 December 2020: HK$920.4 million) and
restricted cash and deposits of approximately HK$175.6 million (31
December 2020: HK$148.7 million). The current ratio of the Group
as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 220.7% (31 December
2020: 182.5%).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$1,621.9 million (31 December 2020: HK$1,394.6 million). The
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 20.9% (31
December 2020: 20.2%), which was approximate to that of 2020.
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The maturity profile of the Group's borrowings is set out below: REEEEIBHARROT -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Within 1 year 1A 194,229 223,800
Between 1 and 2 years 1220 K 85,889 48,360
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F A 59,051 10,075
339,169 282,235

An analysis of the Group's key liquidity ratios as at 31 December 7R2021F12A31H ' AEENEERHE S

2021 is as follows: LRSI -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Inventory turnover days (Note 1) GERESRE(HiF1) 98 105
Trade receivable turnover days (Note 2) f’f%rﬁqﬂl RIE R ERE (A iF2) 50 54
Trade payable turnover days (Note 3) B S RN RIERERE(HE3) 62 74
Current ratio (Note 4) //lLEJJtt%(/fﬁﬂzl) 220.7% 182.5%

Notes: Bist -

1. Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the average balance of 1. FERABXRBEDNEFEFHEHRBRUGHEFEENE

inventories divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 ERABIRIA3ERAE -
days.

2. Trade receivable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade 2. BIZREWFEREXHTIZFEHEE S ERGIER N
receivables divided by the revenue for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BEAFEMRABINUEKRFTE -

3. Trade payable turnover days are calculated based on the average trade payables 3. EBSRNRERAESXEIIZRTHE S EMNRIER
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year multiplied by 365 days. BEFERNHEKRABIRNASSKRFTE -

4. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities and 4. RILEERTBEERARDBEBHABETRIN
multiplying the resulting value by 100%. 100%&T& °

During the year, the Group's inventory turnover days were 98 days, FRN AEENGFEAERXH A8
representing a decrease of 7 days when compared with that of B20200F AP 7TR TERBAREFT
2020. The more turnover days last year were primarily attributable COVID-19% B2 - FnBP ERKHEFTE
to the delay in orders delivery requested by some customers due Rft o SERIRKEEEBEBMELET - &
to the impact of COVID-19 epidemic last year. This year, since FREEBNTERXINERFAEENE -
global economic activities have gradually resumed, the orders

delayed last year were gradually delivered this year.
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During the year, the Group's trade receivable turnover days were
50 days, representing a decrease of 4 days when compared
with that of 2020. The more turnover days last year were mainly
attributable to production suspension in various regions due to the
impact of COVID-19 epidemic last year. This year, global economic
activities were gradually back to normal, and the Group’s trade
receivable turnover days were also reverted to a level similar to the
same period in 2019.

During the year, the Group's trade payable turnover days were 62
days, representing a decrease of 12 days when compared with
that of 2020, which was primarily due to the impact of COVID-19
epidemic last year. This year, global economic activities were
gradually back to normal, and the Group's trade payable turnover
days were also reverted to a level similar to the same period in
2019.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's current ratio was 220.7%,
representing an increase of 38.2 percentage points when
compared with that of 2020, which was primarily attributable to the
prudent cash flow management approach adopted by the Group,
resulting in an increase in its cash and cash equivalents.

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and was exposed to foreign
currency risks arising from various currency exposures, mainly with
respect to US dollar, Euro and HK dollar. Exchange rate fluctuations
and market trends have always been a main concern of the Group.
Foreign currency hedging of the Group has been managed by
the Group’s chief financial officer, and overseen by the Group's
chief executive officer. In accordance with the Group’s hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation, the Group's chief
financial officer would collect and analyze information regarding
various hedging instruments and determine stop-loss thresholds.
The Group’s chief financial officer would then collect quotations
from various banks as to the financial instrument and present
such quotations to the Group’s chief executive officer, who would
then evaluate and make a decision as to whether to enter into
the relevant hedging agreement. The conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

FR - AEENE S EBGIBEAERE AL0
K EB2020FF 4K EEREANREFT
COVID-19RIBHE  SHEIEFEEX - 5F
PHEBEEHEENRELE  KEEEHE
W FE X ENE B1E R E20195 85K

FAR-AKENEZENFKAREXER62
R B2020F @A 12K  TERANEFRE
COVID- 19 BREMK - S F 2R EEH
EEWRELER  AREEZERNREREX
B WEEE2019FEEKF »

R2021F12A318 - AEEN KRB XA
220.7% * ¥20204F 3 MN38.2 1A H » B - =
ERHERAEBRDBENRESRERE « (F
BSRERESEEWIG AT -

AEETRETRELCERY  AMEYHZE
SNEEEMINERR  TBRET  BTR
BT o ANEB — B AR B L [E R B
MEBE - ARENERVBEEEEARE
ESMNES R - MAKRENEFAITE BT
AEBRINEL D - RBAKENEHFR
RERNINEBR  AEBENEEMBE R
WEBBSEH T TANERETON - A
BEELRY BEARENEFRVEE K
SXRITEAMBIANRE - YAAEER
MEFATEE2RZHE  MAKENERE
HITE KGR B2 D AT AR R B % % 1F
HIRTE o AR XA SHMNE 7838 7 BT
B e SN E B IR ARG AR TE -

ROIER® (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H

Al



22

The Group's cash and bank balances were primarily denominated
in US dollar, RMB and HK dollar. Its operating cash inflows and
outflows were primarily denominated in RMB, US dollar, Euro
and HK dollar. The Group is closely monitoring the exchange rate
movements and regularly reviewing its gearing structure so as to
mitigate the expected exchange rate risk.

The Group's major revenue is principally denominated in US dollar,
Euro, HK dollar and RMB, and the Group’s major expenses are
principally denominated in RMB. The Group has not entered into
any agreement for RMB hedging purpose.

There was no change in the capital structure of the Company
during the year, and the Company’s capital included ordinary
shares and other reserves.

The Group will invest in capacity expansion and investment
projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group’s business
in the coming years in the manner set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Future
funding source is mainly from internal resources.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 3,641 full-time employees
(31 December 2020: 3,443) and 543 workers dispatched to us by
third party staffing companies (31 December 2020: 636).

The Group's remuneration policy aims to offer competitive
remuneration packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent
directors and employees. The Group believes the remuneration
packages are reasonable and competitive and in line with market
trends. The Group has put in place a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for its directors and employees in a bid to
provide a competitive package for the Group’s long-term growth
and development. The Group also provides appropriate training and
development programmes for its employees to enhance the staff's
work ability and personal performance.
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The Group has implemented training programmes for the
employees to meet different job requirements. The Group believes
that these initiatives have contributed to increasing employees’
productivity.

As required by PRC regulations, the Group has made contributions
to mandatory social security funds for the benefits of its PRC
employees which provide pension insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has made no
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

The COVID-19 epidemic, over the past two years of its outbreak,
has impacted on raw material supply, logistics, production, and
even the global supply chain ecosystem. Together with trade
measures implemented by various nations as well as geopolitical
and economic conflicts, all these remain barriers to a full economic
recovery. According to the Global Economic Prospects report
published by the World Bank in earlier this year, the global growth
is expected to decelerate from 5.5% in 2021 to 4.1% in 2022.
Given the uncertainties of the macroeconomic environment,
the customer diversification strategy upheld by the Group is
superior, and can diversify our business risks across different
economic cycles and cope with the ever-changing market. In
fact, all segments of the Group have witnessed various degrees
of recovery in business, while the new emerging sector also has
contributed impetus to the growth.
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With vaccine availability, governments in Europe and the United
States have gradually eased restrictions and adopted a strategy
of "live with the virus”. On this basis, consumer activities have
gradually restored across various regions, especially reflecting in
the growth of the plastic injection business segment. In 2020, the
development and penetration of the smart home market in Europe
and the United States were clearly constrained by the COVID-19
epidemic, and had gradually picked up with the easing of anti-
epidemic measures and consuming desires improved in 2021. With
the close partnership with the two giants in market, the Group has
already produced new products for multi-brands for them, and is
expected to maintain strong growth momentum and surpass the
pre-epidemic business level in 2019. It is predicted that revenue
from the smart home segment in the United States will maintain
a sound development in the coming years at a compound annual
growth rate of 12.8% to reach US$46.8 billion by 2025. As for
the electronic atomizers segment, the business scale will be
continually expanding as the Group will orderly increase market
share in domestic and overseas markets, and build business
relationships with certain leading brands. With the increasing
global demand, the global market for electronic atomizers
equipment is estimated to reach US$22.7 billion by 2024. Our
management believes that the aforementioned segments will
continue to make significant contributions to the Group’s revenue
in 2022. For other mold and plastic businesses, the mobile phones
and wearable devices segment will be driven by product upgrades
along with the integration of emerging technologies (such as 5G,
Internet of Things, Al and virtual reality) with consumer electronics
products. For the commercial telecommunications equipment
segment, our client has actively developed new products during
the epidemic period leveraging its leading market position, and
they are well appreciated by the market. These bring relatively
strong orders to the Group from the two sectors. For medical and
personal health care segment, the Group has made significant
progress in exploring medical-related customers in China and
believes there will be a sound development in 2022.

In 2021, the Group’s mold fabrication segment was hit apparently
by unstable logistics of supply chain, mainly reflected in the
reduction in orders from suppliers of automobiles components
for ultra-large standard molds products, as numerous automobile
brands in Europe reduced production to cope with the cost
increase resulting from shortage of chips and disruptions
of logistics. It is expected that the situation will affect the
performance in mold business in 2022. However, the market
expects the supply of chips will be back to normal gradually from
the second half of 2022 to the end of the year; therefore, the Group
will continue to keep close relationship with existing customers,
in order to well prepare for the market recovery and seek more
potential customers.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

BEE R T b - BRE B SRAE AR B IR
BE - ERER [ERERTIRE - SHIEBED)
ZEIRIE - WRM A B EBFREHIZR o
BRI B R JE T i5 3 R 13 X BA B £ 2020
FXCOVID-19ZIEFTHIZ - (BE20215FE
BEZE P E e N R OB B R A M E i & El
o ERAEBEMS LMAEENERE
R AEBEARPETHZEAMEE
EMEMR  WEHEEERBIIN2019F %
EARKE - RIFEERETE - MBERT - =
Bl R REWMAERREFRERLER - F
BEEEEEXRE12.8% + B20254F f53E 5468
BETL - EREFEBRE  BEEAEE
BFHITRBRIINTGS - 5 TEEmMEE
S EBBER  XBRERSERX  BEEEI
EoRTETIE - 2B FHERENTISH
RIBEIAE R2024 FEE 22718 F L - BIEE
ME - 2022 MER B IFET R EE
AEMKRATR - EMEBEKSE - Fi
R FEEEREEESG - WA  ATS
B ERERSENERNEEEE FEMD
BE - BNREREMER  MEERAR
BIRIRECEDETSEEEY X FH
MEGHELEHESR  BEITBED &8
AREEREMETENTERBEH TG - &
REBEREAZRRRE  AEBEEREANRME
EEMEREFEZMIEKE - 520224
BRI AL

20215 - AEEEEASUEXRBEZ WA
ERBEFELSRAR  TE2HNEBEALR
ERBERVIETEMHAT  ZERER
KRl R ERRATE - D BUM
NEMBIORE - 2 BT B HEERD
FTE MEKEE20226BAEBRE - R
M MSEE S HERR2022F THFE
FRZHLELR  AKBSUEEERAR
FRERIFEAER  BHLEMSNERE - I
RS KEZEERR



In view of the ongoing Sino-US trade war and the uncertainty
brought by geopolitics, it is critical for the Group to layout its
production facilities overseas for the purpose of diversifying the
risks arising from a single production site. The Group has set up
a plastic injection production base in Vietnam and commenced
the first phase of production in November 2021, and schemed to
start the second phase of production in the second half of 2022.
It is expected the Vietnam site will mainly provide support to the
production of smart home, mobile phones and wearable devices.
Meanwhile, to set up plants in Vietnam will also help the Group to
explore and tap into new markets in the local and nearby regions,
so as to prepare for the long-term growth demand from the
Southeast Asian supply chains and Europe and the United States.

With the uncertain environment, the Group still remains cautious
and optimistic in the new financial year, and adheres to its most
effective and fundamental business strategy of maintaining a
strict and efficient credit and trade receivables turnover policy
to stabilize cash flow and financial position. Meanwhile, the
management is proactive in acquisition plans with development
potential, seeking to keep pace with the industry trends and
maintain the Group's competitive edge in the industry. In the
past year, the Group expanded its investment in the production
base in Huizhou and acquired Techco Silicone & Technology Co.,
Ltd. to diversify its production lines, which all made progressive
achievement and successfully developed many potential new
projects, providing room for further business development. In
the coming year, the Group will also continue to invest in related
projects, remain its diversified business layout and establish close
relationships with industry leaders. On the one hand, the Group
continues to support its long-standing overseas customers to
realize their global market expansion plans; on the other hand, the
Group also continues to expand its domestic market, particularly
for strong and industry-leading corporation brands, striving to
help its customers capture the opportunities of the national dual-
circulation policy and enter the international market.

The Group is confident to maintain its competition edge of
customer diversification to embrace the changes and challenges
in the new year, and to create value for its customers and
shareholders.
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Mr. Li Pui Leung, aged 62, is the chairman of the Group. Mr.
Li is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director on 28 March 2013. He is also the chairman of
the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li is responsible for the overall management and
strategic planning of the Group. He has accumulated more than
38 years of professional experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding and also experience in business
management in manufacturing industry. Mr. Li together with Mr.
Lee Leung Yiu, a substantial shareholder and an executive director
of the Company, established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding
FTY in Hong Kong in 1983, and have since expanded the Group’s
mold fabrication business into the PRC in 1992 and relocated the
operations to Shenzhen, the PRC.

Mr. Li was elected the “"Winner of Young Industrialist Awards
of Hong Kong” in 2003 and “QOutstanding Person of Shenzhen
Machinery Industry” in 2004, and awarded “Shenzhen Person of
the Year” by Southern Metropolitan Daily in 2013. Mr. Li holds
several social titles, including serving as a committee member and
the convenor of Hong Kong of Shenzhen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the President of Guang Ming General
Chamber of Commerce (Industry and Commerce), a committee
member and honorary president of Hong Kong Young Industrialists
Council Foundation, the Chairman of Kowloon City District Road
Safety Campaign Committee, the vice chairman of Federation
of Hong Kong Shenzhen Association Limited, the vice president
of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International Association, the
executive director of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce,
the vice chairman of charity committee of Shenzhen Guangming
District and the president of Rotary Club, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
in 2000. In July 1974, Mr. Li graduated from Yuanzhou Gongshe
Lulan Primary School in Boluo, Guangdong in China, and obtained
a middle school graduation certificate. Mr. Li is also the controlling
shareholder and director of both Eastern Mix Company Limited
(a controlling shareholder of the Company) and Lead Smart
Development Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
and the elder brother of Mr. Lee Leung Yiu.
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Mr. Yung Kin Cheung, Michael, aged 60, is an executive
director and the chief executive officer of the Group. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Yung has over 30 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. He was appointed as an executive
director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Yung is responsible
for formulation and implementation of the business plans of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yung acted as a buyer in
National Semiconductor Hong Kong Ltd. from May 1985 to August
1987. He was promoted to Component Engineer in May 1987.
From August 1987 to February 1989, Mr. Yung served at AST
Research (Far East) Ltd. as a procurement engineer. Mr. Yung
joined the Group in 1989 as the general manager and was primarily
responsible for operation management for the molding business.
He has been serving as the managing director of the Group since
2000, and is mainly responsible for business development and
the daily operations of the Group’s business. Mr. Yung graduated
from the Department of Industrial Engineering of the University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering in November
1983. He also graduated from the Centre of Buddhist Studies of
the Faculty of Social Sciences of the University of Hong Kong
with a Master's Degree in Buddhist Studies in November 2008.
Mr. Yung is also the shareholder and the director of Eastern Mix
Company Limited (a controlling shareholder of the Company),
and the controlling shareholder and the director of Cheer Union
Development Ltd. (a substantial shareholder of the Company).

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, aged 61, is an executive director of the Group.
He is one of the founders of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 28 March 2013. Mr. Lee has
approximately 38 years of experience in plastic mold fabrication
and plastic injection molding. Mr. Lee alongside Mr. Li Pui Leung
(a controlling shareholder, the Chairman and an executive director
of the Company) established Tung Kong Machinery Moulding
FTY in 1983. He has been serving as the manager whose major
responsibility is the procurement for the Group. From August 2009
to October 2010, Mr. Lee completed the EMBA training classes
of Graduate School of Tsinghua University, China, and obtained a
certificate of completion. In June 2013, Mr. Lee obtained a degree
of master of business administration from the University of Wales,
the United Kingdom. Mr. Lee is also the shareholder and the
director of Eastern Mix Company Limited (a controlling shareholder
of the Company), the controlling shareholder and the director of
Normal Times International Limited (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), and the younger brother of Mr. Li Pui Leung.
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Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 59, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief financial officer of the Group on 27
November 2013. Mr. Cheung joined the Group in July 2002, as
a corporate financial controller and was mainly responsible for
the finance, taxation, audit and investment of the Group. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung had served at Deloitte Ross
Tohmatsu (currently known as “Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu”) and
served as a financial controller for a FORTUNE 500 manufacturing
company, as well as those manufacturing companies listed in
Hong Kong and the U.S.. He has accumulated over 30 years of
experience in the field of auditing, accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Cheung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (the
predecessor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University) department
of accounting in November 1987. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since January 1996
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 1990.

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy, GBS BBS JP, aged 69, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Dr. Chung obtained a PhD in Engineering from the University of
Warwick, the United Kingdom in May 2010. In September 2012 he
achieved a PhD of Business Administration from City University
of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor by the
University of Warwick, the United Kingdom in December 2020.
He was awarded a doctorate degree of business administration
honoris causa by the University of Macau in November 2019,
an honorary doctorate degree of science by the University
of Warwick, the United Kingdom in July 2019, an honorary
doctorate degree of business administration by the Lingnan
University in November 2015, an honorary doctorate degree of
business administration by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in December 2007 and an honorary doctorate degree of the
University of Newcastle, Australia in July 2006 respectively. He
was awarded by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government (“HKSAR Government"”) the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS)
on 30 June 2017, the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) on 1 July 2011,
and was appointed as Justice of Peace on 1 July 2005. Dr. Chung
was granted the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997,
and was further awarded the Industrialist of the Year in November
2014.
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Dr. Chung was the Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries from July 2011 to July 2013 and has been serving as the
Honorary President of the Federation since 5 July 2013. Dr. Chung
was appointed as the Chairman of the Vocational Training Council
from January 2018 until December 2019. He is also the Founder
and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently a non-executive director
of Techtronic Industries Company Limited (stock code: 669), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange; and an independent non-
executive director of Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 345), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 24
June 2017. He has been an independent non-executive director of
Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 927), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 1 April 2014 until 22 June
2021.

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, aged 69, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27
November 2013. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee, a
member of both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Tsang is a former partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong and China who has over
30 years of experience in auditing and providing support for initial
public offerings and acquisition transactions. Mr. Tsang received
a bachelor's degree in business administration from Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants.

Currently, Mr. Tsang is an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange: China Merchants China Direct Investments Limited
(stock code: 133), Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.
(stock code: 460), CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (stock
code: 1566) and Shirble Department Store Holdings (China) Limited
(stock code: 312). He is an independent director of HUYA Inc. (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code:
HUYA). Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of
Ping An Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 231) from February 2016 to March 2020.
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Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung, aged 41, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 20
December 2019. She is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Ms. Leung has practiced as a Barrister in Hong Kong for nearly 15
years. Ms. Leung obtained her PCLL from the University of Hong
Kong in 2005. She was called to the Bar in Hong Kong in 2006.

Ms. Leung has a broad-based civil practice, undertaking work in
all aspects of contractual and commercial disputes, personal injury
and family law. From 2007 to 2012, Ms. Leung has been a part-
time Lecturer of Company Law for the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (HKICPA) Practising Certificate Law
Examination and a part-time Lecturer of Corporate and Business
Law for the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms.
Leung is also contributing editor of Archbold Hong Kong and
Company Law of Hong Kong Insolvency.

Ms. Leung is serving on various HKSAR Government advisory
committees and has actively participated in many social services
and public offices. She has served a Member of Hong Kong
Clinical Research Ethics Committee from January 2020, as a
board member of the Hong Kong Dance Company from October
2020, Co-opted Member of the Audit Committee of the West
Kowloon Cultural District Authority from January 2021, Member
of the Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education from
April 2021, Member of the Advisory Committee on Post-service
Employment of Civil Servants and Member of the Communication
and Innovation Committee UNICEF from July 2021, Appeal
Tribunal Panel (Buildings) Chairman from December 2021, Agency
for Voluntary Services — Planning & Services committee from
December 2021, Panel of Advisers (Film censorship) from January
2022.

Mr. Yue Yiu Chung, aged 55, joined the Group in July 2014
as corporate financial controller, and is responsible for the
management of finance, customs declaration and shipping,
information technology, human resources, administration, and
environment, health and safety (“EHS") of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, he worked for a company listed in the U.S. and
was responsible for the entire Asia Pacific region finance affair.
He has approximately 30 years of experience in auditing and
finance. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. He has also been a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since August 2000.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

REFE L 415 R2019F12H20H &
FEAERRRBIIIERITESE - FMAELAR
RIEZLZES REZEGRFMEZESK

g o

PLUTEBRBREREMELTIGF - BL
THR2005FESEBRNEHNEAEEEEE -
HR2006 FEEEHEREAMER -

RUTHHREBERESFUNREHRD
arﬁwzu “ Fﬁ%nﬁ"‘ )\%%E&&Eﬁl
FFEL o B2007F E20124F - %ﬁiﬁ%%ﬂi
BMHR BB AGEERITEZRTDE
AEREEFFARGAMAGAEAZR
RALEFRIE o 2L+ RArchbold Hong Kong&
Company Law of Hong Kong Insolvency#y

RAmEE -

/ﬂﬁifﬁfiﬁiﬁ%,ﬁ%tﬁw‘?m HWEB
CWRLRER SRR RIS -
{&EA2020¢1ﬂﬁ%{iﬁﬁi’ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁ
LZESEERPKE © 20200F10AEEZTAS
BEFEBESE  N2021F 1A EZE AR
NIEEEERBETZESKE  1K20215F4

REZEARRBEZEGKE ' 20214F7
FEZTAEBR A ERERBEALTED
KRENRBMARNREESSBANANEES

BB @ R2021F 12 AR A EHFEHE
(BEY)EF - M2021F 12 ABZESEKT
EBERB - RELBRBEZES - 1202241
REZAEXHEEM/ A -

RIBRTE - 655% © R2014F7 A MMARE
IR RIGEE AEETEAEER

%5 MEALME - EERM - ANER
TREBANERE  @EE%Z2([EHS])HE
Fﬁ%ﬁ‘% bﬂ)\zli%lﬁﬁ CREBERNEXE

EHRAR - AEBEDAMENTETIE -
{&%ﬁLBOﬁ%#&Eﬁ%Z‘“%ﬁ c RIS T &

BRMAENEHBEL B °f)§2§2000¢
BANBERREFHALARSHAMAEERSE

g o



Mr. Lu Gong Shan, aged 42, is the general manager of the mold
fabrication segment of the Group. Mr. Lu joined the Group in May
2002, and was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Group in January 2009, who is responsible for the development
of the mold fabrication business, project management and the
management of affairs in respect of technology, quality and
sourcing management. In October 2013, Mr. Lu was appointed as
the general manager of the standard mold business units of the
Group, and the responsibility is for the overall management of the
standard mold business units. Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou
University of Light Industry in July 2000 with a diploma of high
molecular material machining specialised in mold design and
manufacturing. In May 2013, Mr. Lu obtained a degree of master of
Business Administration in Executive Management from the Royal
Roads University.

Mr. Yim Cham Sum, aged 56, joined the Group and was
appointed as the Operations Director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group in December 2017, whose
responsibility is for the operation management of the plastic
components manufacturing division. He was appointed as the
general manager of the plastic components manufacturing division
of the Group in January 2019 and responsible for the overall
management of the plastic components manufacturing division.
Mr. Yim obtained the Degree of Master of Business Administration
(MBA) from the University of Strathclyde in the U.K. in July 2002.
He had worked in the manufacturing operation management for
over 10 years and has worked of Nypro Plastics & Metal Products
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Lok See Yuen Samuel, aged 45, is the chief marketing
director of the plastic components manufacturing division of the
Group. Mr. Lok joined the Group in August 2009 and was appointed
as the chief marketing director of the plastic components
manufacturing division of the Group. He was mainly responsible
for sales and marketing affairs of the plastics components
manufacturing division. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lok had
approximately 8 years of experience in Plastics industry. Mr. Lok
previously served as the application development manager of GE
Plastics Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lok graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mechanical engineering in November 1998.

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, aged 59, is the company secretary of the
Company. Please refer to “Directors and Senior Management
— Executive Directors — Mr. Cheung Fong Wa" for further
information.
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The Company believes that good corporate governance practices
are very important for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Board
sets appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business. The Board is committed to strengthening the Group's
corporate governance practices and ensuring transparency and
accountability of the Company’s operations.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The CG Code has been revised with effect from 1 January 2022.
As this Corporate Governance Report covers the year ended 31
December 2021, all the corporate governance principles and code
provisions mentioned herein refer to those stated in the former CG
Code, not the revised CG Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
and practices of the Company are summarized below.

Key corporate governance principles

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ dealing in the Company's securities.

Having made specific enquiry of the directors, all the directors

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines"”), governing securities transactions by employees
(including directors or employees of a subsidiary or holding
company of the Company) who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for
dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its
directors and relevant employees in advance.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4
executive directors and 3 independent non-executive directors.

Executive directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman)

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time
pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive
directors are expressly identified in all corporate communications
pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set

out under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. Save as Mr. Li Pui Leung and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu
are brothers, none of the members of the Board is related to one

another.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The positions of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are currently held by Mr.
Li Pui Leung and Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in
writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the overall
management and strategic planning of the Group and the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices, whereas the Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the day-to-day management of the Group's business
and implementing objectives, policies, strategies and business
plan of the Group approved and delegated by the Board.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of
having three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide
spectrum of business and financial expertise, experience and
independent judgment to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. They are invited to serve on the Board Committees
of the Company. Through active participation at Board and
Board Committees meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests, all independent
non-executive directors have made various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company and provided adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
shareholders.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive directors of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors to be
independent in light of the independence guidelines set out in the
said Listing Rules.

All directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term,
subject to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each executive
director is engaged on a service agreement for a term of 3 years,
which may be terminated by either party by not less than 3
months’ written notice. Each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company is appointed for a term of 3 years.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company's Articles
of Association (the “Articles”). The Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing Board composition, monitoring the
appointment of directors and assessing the independent non-
executive directors.

According to the Articles, one-third of the directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. In addition, any new director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting after appointment, and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company.
The retiring directors are eligible for re-election by the shareholders
at the respective general meetings.
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The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board is also responsible for implementing
policies in relation to financial matters, which include risk
management and internal controls and compliance, if applicable.
In addition, the Board reviews the financial performance of the
Group, approves investment proposals, nomination of directors
to the Board and appointment of key management personnel.
These functions are carried out either directly by the Board or
through Board committees such as Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

All directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company, the duties
to act honestly and in good faith, in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times and to avoid conflicts of interests.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any director
may request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

Delegation of corporate governance duties

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee the responsibility
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has reviewed
and monitored the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Delegation of management functions

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated to the
management for the management and administration functions of
the Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management should report back and obtain prior approval from the
Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments
on behalf of the Group. Matters which are specifically reserved to
the full Board for decision are those involving a conflict of interest
of a substantial shareholder or a director, material acquisitions
and disposal of assets, corporate or financial restructuring, share
issuance and distribution of dividend, and approval of financial
results and corporate strategies. The Board will review those
issues on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to
the needs of the Group.

Each newly appointed director shall receive induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment to ensure he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
he/she is fully aware of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The existing
directors are continually updated on changes and developments
to the Group's business and on the latest developments in
the laws, rules and regulations relating to directors’ duties and
responsibilities. Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All
directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at
the Company’s expenses. Directors are requested to provide their
training records to the Company for records.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the directors have
complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on
participation in continuous professional training as follows:

Name of director

BEEnA

Executive directors: BITEF -

Mr. Li Pui Leung FMRAEE

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEMNGE

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu TRBEE

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RFESLA
Independent non-executive directors: BUFNTEF -
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EEFEL
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung REBHL A

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BEN KA

a: Directors attended a training session conducted by the Company relating to
directors’ duties and responsibilities under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

b:  Directors received regular briefings and updates from the Company Secretary/
the Company’s management on the Group’s business, operations and corporate
governance matters.

G Directors attended seminars/forums, which are relevant to their duties and

responsibilities, organised by professional firms/institutions.
d:  Directors read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications on subjects

relevant to the Group and on their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board
committees meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

Name of director Board
BEfE Eze
Executive directors: HITEE :

Mr. Li Pui Leung FHREE 5/5
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael SEALE 5/5
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRBEE 5/5
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa REERE 5/5
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTESE

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy ETTEL 5/5
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung 2EUL+ 5/5
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BELTE 5/5

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of the
other directors during the year under review.

The Board established three committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees should
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Mr. Li Pui Leung (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy,
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong, the
majority of which are independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least once in any financial year and to make
recommendation on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed
without undue disruption, the Company has adopted a Director
Nomination Policy. The Policy includes a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors, as well as plans in place for orderly
succession (if necessary), including periodical review of such
plans.

During the identification of suitable individuals, to ensure the
effective carrying out of the responsibilities by the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider criteria set out as below,
including but not limited to:

e the integrity, experience, skills and professional knowledge;

e a balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate to the
requirements of the Company's business;

e adequate amount of time and effort devoted to the Company;

e contribution to the diversity of the Board;

e participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of

conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
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e bringing a range of business and financial experience to
the Board, giving the Board and any Committees on which
he or she serves the benefit of his or her skills, expertise,
varied backgrounds and qualifications and diversity through
attendance and participation in the Board/Committee
meetings; and

e scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

The Committee identifies suitable individual qualified to become
Board members and makes recommendation to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of a new Director
(to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors. External recruitment
professionals might be engaged to carry out selection process
when necessary.

The Company believes that diversity underpins the successful
operation on an effective Board and embraces diversity as a
means of attaining its strategic objectives. According to the
diversity policy of the Board adopted by the Company, the
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the policy,
developing and reviewing measurable objectives (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
for implementing the policy, and monitoring the progress on
achieving the measurable objectives set to ensure the continued
effectiveness of the Board. To ensure the effectiveness of this
Policy, the Nomination Committee will, as appropriate, review the
Nomination Policy, discuss any revisions that may be required and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval. The Company believes that greater diversity of directors
is good for corporate governance and is committed to attract and
retain candidate(s) for Board with a combination of competencies
from the widest possible pool of available talents; and to increase
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in maintaining
the Company's competitive advantage.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee has held 1 meeting (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the policy for the nomination of directors;

— Review of the structure, size and composition of the Board to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements for the business of the Group;

— Recommendation of the re-election of the retiring directors
standing for re-election at the 2021 annual general meeting;
and

— Assessment of the independence of all the Company’s
independent non-executive directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 4 members,
namely, Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy (Chairman), Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael, Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung and Mr. Tsang Wah
Kwong, the majority of which are independent non-executive
directors.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. The
primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and reviewing and approving remuneration
proposals of all directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee has held 2 meetings (the attendance records of
each Committee member are set out in above section headed
“Directors’ Attendance Records”) and performed the following
major works:

— Review of the remuneration policy and structure of the Group;

— Assessment of the performance of executive directors;

— Review of the remuneration package of directors and senior
management; and

— Consideration of the bonus payable to directors and senior
management for the year 2020 and the proposed salary
increment for the year 2021.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management, including
those members of senior management who are also executive
directors, by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
AR Bl (GBoT)

2,000,001-2,500,000
2,500,001-3,000,000
3,000,001-3,500,000
3,500,001-4,000,000
4,000,001-4,500,000
4,500,001-5,000,000
5,000,001-5,500,000
5,500,001-6,000,000

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee currently comprises 3 members, namely,
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong (Chairman), Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy and
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung. All of them are independent
non-executive directors.
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The responsibilities of the Audit Committee are:

— To review the financial statements and reports and consider

any significant or unusual matters raised by the external
auditor before submission to the Board.

To review the relationship with external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms of
engagement and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor.

To review and supervise the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee
has held 3 meetings (the attendance records of each Committee
member are set out in above section headed “Directors’
Attendance Records”) and performed the following major works:

Review and discussion of the annual audited financial
statements, results announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the related accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the relevant audit
findings, the report from the management on the Company's
review of the risk management and internal control systems,
and recommendation of the re-appointment of the external
auditor;

Review of the Group's continuing connected transactions and
the compliance of the non-competition undertaking provided
by the Company’s controlling shareholders;

Review of and monitoring the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and the Employees Written
Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report;

Review and discussion of the interim financial statements,
results announcement and report for the six months ended 30
June 2021, and the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group;

Review and discussion of valuation processes and results of
unlisted equity investments;
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— Review of the annual audit plan of PricewaterhouseCoopers,
including the nature and scope of the audit, the fee payable to
them, their reporting obligations and their work plan; and

— Review of the effectiveness and performance of the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit plan.

The external auditor attended all the above meetings to discuss
with the Audit Committee members on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

The Company Secretary is Mr. Cheung Fong Wa, who fulfils
the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of Mr. Cheung are set out under “Directors and
Senior Management” section in this annual report. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, Mr. Cheung has taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report on pages 103 to 109.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year

ended 31 December 2021 are analysed below:

Type of services provided by the external auditor
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Fees paid/payable

e EBNEHR
HK$'000
FHxT
Audit services — audit fee for the year HE R —#H E2021F12831H
ended 31 December 2021 I FENZEER 3,324
Non-audit services — interim review fee for IEZB RS —H £2021F6 A30H
the six months ended 30 June 2021 IEAE AT EERE A 500
Total: HET - 3,824
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The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements for each financial year, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group and of the results and cash flows of the Group for that year
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure provisions
of the Listing Rules. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021, the directors have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable,
and have prepared disclosure of the financial position of the Group
with reasonable accuracy at any time.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board believes that sound risk management and internal
control systems are essential to the achievement of the strategic
goals of the Group, and confirmed that the Board is responsible
to set up, maintain and review the effectiveness of such systems.
Management is responsible for the design and implementation
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems
to manage the risk. Good risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance.

The Group’s risk management framework

In order to improve the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as enhance the level of management and risk
prevention capabilities, the Group established its risk management
framework in 2016. The risk management framework includes
the Board and its Audit Committee, senior management and
subsidiary managements, in three levels (details refer to the below
framework).

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

EENRNEEEARESEVRFERE
A F i R AR A R AREB BB EA
EERZFENEERRERENY R
xOURETHEBEENR ETRBEER
T o RERREE2021F12 831 B IEFEH
BHRERE  EECEIEENGEEILM
NEBER - (ELRERAIENHE R(HT
A % 7 2L B 20 & B 2E T 9 AN 5% (B B A A L 4
BAR o

EEWTAEABEMATREEHA QB NFE
BRENFEERRENEHFIGIRNE
MEATHARE -

EXeRn BEEREEMAMEZER
FUBERASENERBSEMRER - L
REFQAAERE  #EEBRIZFER
AN -  EEEBAEERRATAEE
REREEMARBEERRATERR - Rif
WEREENAREERSEEEEMIEN
RARREREKBEENER  BRERHES
B IFEERRE ©

REBENEREEREE

REERREERAMEERS  RATE
IKER B R EAE S - AEBR2016F 2L
TEBREERE EREERERAEZEN
HEZZES SREEE WEARER
E-fAEmEmAK(REFF2RIATRER)



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Risk management framework
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The Group has commissioned a professional risk advisory body AREBDIEFEEXRB L AKBIRBIEER

to help build risk management framework, develop the Risk
Assessment Manual, and conduct risk assessments to determine
the nature and extent of the risk. In the risk assessment process,
the management and the Internal Audit Department, have
identified the major risks faced by the Group and ranked these
risks according to the likelihood and the severity of the impact on
the Group, as well as further development of risk management
measures to maintain the risks at an acceptable level.

The Company also has an Internal Audit Department, which is
responsible for performing independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.
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The management and the Internal Audit Department would
report to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems,
and makes recommendations. The Audit Committee also ensures
that an overall review of the effectiveness of such systems is
conducted at least annually and put forward to the Board for
consideration.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives; and acknowledges
its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

The Company has also developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries

Review of risk management and internal control system

The Board and its Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness
of the Company’'s risk management and internal control systems
for the year 2021, as well as taking into account the resource,
adequacy of staff qualifications, training and experience of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit
functions. Based on the reports submitted by the Internal Audit
Department and the management, the Board considered that the
Company's risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate.

The Group has its risk management and internal control policies

and procedures reviewed, to ensure compliance with the new
requirements, and explore opportunities for improvement.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more members
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meeting of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

If a shareholder wishes to put forward proposals at a shareholders’
meeting, the shareholder, who has satisfied the shareholding
requirements set out in the above paragraph headed “Procedures
for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting”,
may follow the same procedures by sending a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong. The shareholder should
state his/her proposals in the written requisition and submit the
written requisition as early as practicable to enable the Company
Secretary to make necessary arrangement.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, the shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) should prepare a written
notice duly signed by him/her of his/her intention to propose a
person for the election and a notice duly signed by the person to
be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong or its share registrar at least 7 days prior to the date
of the general meeting. Where the notices are submitted after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting, the period for the
lodgment of the notices should commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting and end not later than
7 days prior to the date of the general meeting.
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Procedure for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders are welcome to send enquiries to the Board to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Workshop
No. 19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501
Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The annual general meetings and twice-yearly business
performance conference of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee are available to answer questions at shareholders’
meeting.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.tkmold.com where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’'s business operations and development,
financial information and other information are available for public
access.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

This is the sixth Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) issued by the Group. It will continue to facilitate the
understanding of stakeholders towards the environmental, social
and governance performance of the Group by updating them on
the Group's performance in aspects of environment, society and
governance. The Report is in Chinese and English, and has been
published on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Group (www.tkmold.com).

The reporting scope of the Report will continue to cover the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") performance of the
Group's production bases in Shenzhen headquarters, Suzhou and
Huizhou, as well as the new production base in Dongguan’ for the
year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “year”). The
Group will have a thorough internal discussion and the reporting
scope will be upgraded to a more comprehensive level in the
future.

The Report is prepared in accordance with the four reporting
principles of Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency
set out in the "ESG Reporting Guide” (the “Guide”) contained in
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

! The new production base in Dongguan is a new acquisition in this year.

> > > > > > >
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Reporting Principles Definition Response

EHREA B = &

Materiality The reporting will be focused on the ESG A board survey was conducted during the year to

EEM issues which have material effects on the understand the key ESG issues of concern to the
various stakeholders of the Group. Board.
BHERVAEESEAFNEELEZTEYEN REAFECETEESAEHS  THREBINERR
BB HEREREE - B HeREREE -

Quantitative The KPI data should be measureable and New environmental targets added this year aimed

21t comparable when appropriate. at further managing the Group's impact on the
RREWNBUEAT TtE WHEBEEIBNT#E  environment. The Group's social KPls are sourced from
TTLLES © the statistics of the relevant departments. In addition,

Carbon Care Asia, a professional consulting company,
has been commissioned with the measurement of the
environmental KPls.

SEMEREER  EHEE—PEENEEHRENY
2 AREEMNEHS M BRESEZEIRNERBEIPINS
kAN BB NERESIEEEEEEEEMAR
KRN TEE -

Balance An issuer shall report on its ESG In the preparation of the Report, the Group not only
7 performance during the year in an objective focused on describing its achievements in ESG, but
and truthful manner. also introduced difficulties occurred and corresponding
BITAEERE AEMERAFENIRE -4 solutions.
FRERTEMNKER - RARMERSHBIED - AEERISEMIRE gk
ERMR - hEfB T R RERF A
Consistency The disclosures in the Report should use In the Report, the Group has adopted methods the
— B consistent disclosing methodologies to allow  same as the previous years and compared some ESG
for comparisons of KPIs in relation to ESG for  data for the year with data for the previous years. For
understanding corporate performance. details, please refer to the section headed “Overview

MEWBEREA B EERS A SHIR  of Key Performance Indicators”.

B g EREENBRESUEZEAIAMI  RAREFR  AEESKARAFHERMNG 5L - Wi

LB - LTER ¥R - AEEBIERE L ERERBBEREFEIBELE - &#
Bl [BRESESRE =5 -

RECOGNITION AND APPROVAL TR Rt

The Group has undertaken to make every endeavour to guarantee AEBERFESGBNERAREME2ENE
the accuracy and reliability of all the materials presented in B MERER] 5 WA N EBES 1 R IE R
the Report and strengthened management by establishing the EERFINNUNER - AREER T

internal monitoring and formal review procedures. The Report was AT TRHEESSERARIE -
recognized and approved by the Board on 25 March 2022.
COMMENTS AND FEEDBACK ERKRE

Comments or recommendations of stakeholders in aspects of the REBENZIFNERAERNERE  H&
Group’s ESG performance are greatly valued by the Group. Please RESHENEBRERIEMS B ai@Es o 5
feel free to contact us by the following means: ERAT R A EE

R It = b

Group Headquarters 7< £ B4 28

it : FERYIHEAEREREEERLER IR TXE

Add: TKTechnology Park, Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-district office, Guangming
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

Tel: &5 | +86-755-2369 0328

Hong Kong Office EEPEER

ik ©  BBHATESILEA91-50155F H TEHUBEIE195E

Add: Workshop No.19, 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-Tech Industrial Centre, 491-501 Castle Peak
Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong

Tel: T ' +852-2411 3628
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board of the Group is charged with an important responsibility
of promoting good corporate governance and environmental,
social and governance (ESG) risk management by drawing the
Company's attention to ESG issues. The Group has set up the ESG
Management Committee, which is delegated with the authority
from the Board and chaired by the Chairman of the Group. It is
mainly responsible for identifying priorities for managing ESG
issues, guiding and monitoring ESG works, reviewing ESG
development trends in the industry and other areas. The Board
reviews ESG-related reports submitted by the ESG Management
Committee on a quarterly basis. During the year, the Group has set
environmental, health and safety targets. Once such targets are
exceeded, the ESG Management Committee will be required to
identify the reasons and formulate improvement plans.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group believes that establishing a sound risk forecasting
system is conducive to the effective management of the
environmental, social and governance risks in its daily operations.
The risk management structure of the Group is comprised of three
elements, namely, the Board and its Audit Committee, senior
management, and the management of subsidiaries, in order to
identify relevant risks. In addition, the Internal Audit Department
of the Group evaluates the sufficiency and effectiveness of the
risk management structure on a regular basis. In order to improve
the environmental risk management, the Group has identified
and evaluated significant environmental factors and formulated
environmental management plans according to the related impacts
and risks during the year. In addition, the following responding
measures were also taken to address the sustainability risks
identified in the industry:

> > > > > > >
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Risk Types Responding Measures of the Group during the year

[ B 38 B AFEEAEEELEEE

Exhaust emissions e Improve production processes and reduce the impact from operation on the environment.
BERHEK HNEEETS  BELEHRENEZE -

Climate change o Incorporate climate change factors into relevant policies.

RIRE L TR AR S B =M AEEECR

Health and safety e Seek partnership with local government and sanitary agencies to help employees, contractors
BREEZZ and community residents in managing and enhancing healthy level.

HEWRFNEEREBAE  EPHEL  ABRMREREE REFABREAKE -

Employee training e Regularly organise internal professional technologies exchange and sharing meetings, or

8 T3 arrange employees to take part in the exchange and sharing meetings of the industry, in order
to understand the latest development trend and technology direction in real time.
FHREPBABEERMIRNFTE - ALHEIZNTERARRERE - ERTRITESTERES
ZREATT ) o

e Organise three-level safety education to enhance the awareness level of employees.

BR=AMZ2HE  RITETHEBKF

Technology e Work with professional institutions or colleges to jointly develop the latest mold fabrication
innovation techniques, so as to enhance production efficiency and pro(_juct q\uality; and
Bl Bl H HEXRESIRREE  HARESMEARERN  MIESEERERERME R

e Develop latest mold fabrication materials, and streamline the processes, to save energy and
reduce emissions as its production and manufacturing processes.
RTEEERERIZOERGE - REMEAREME - WERTIERE -

Business ethics e Expand the size of anti-corruption trainings for employees.

EHEERE MABIRIBHIEEE -
STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION BFoEER
Stakeholder communication is one of the most important ways to ﬁfﬁ%%?@fﬁ@%Tﬁ?ﬁfﬁ%%ﬁ”‘fﬁ A
understand stakeholders’ concerns over different environmental, ERERTRZEBEIRENEZFAZ
social and governance issues. During the year, the Group has — e $¢E AEBDEREESMERAE

understood the opinions and recommendations of the members of MER  TRESGXNENERHEER -
the Board through the questionnaire for the Board. According to BHERBET TNEZEEY  EZEKE
the survey results, the following four material issues selected by BEUTHENEZZERE RS [ERF
the members of the Board among 11 issues cover three scopes, RETERIR[EEED = ([EHE - T80
being “environment”, “employment and labour practices” and T

“operation practices”, the details of which are listed below:

Establishing a : Prevention of
safe and healthy
working

Prevention of : :
child labour bribery, extortion,

the management Fraud and mone
and forced labour M

ofemiSsions environment laundering
Mool - T B LL B B
RENI/ERE BMERKBE

Strengthening
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Other than the questionnaire for the Board, the Group continues to
maintain communication with internal and external stakeholders,
with the aim to procure the Group to establish better management
policies and measures in reducing risks arising from the
environment, social and governance aspects. The communication
among the key stakeholders during the reporting period is as
shown in the following graph:

Mode of communication with stakeholders

ERNENBERELRN

Key stakeholders

EERHHE

RIR - g kEamsE(E)

BREZSHEMEIH  AEEHBEERNINF
MERFEE  EMREAREHTERT
EMNEERRERER  BONERE HER
ERTRETENER - & XBRHMHENAR
SHMANEET AN TEMR

Investors and e General meetings
shareholders BRE=E
REERKRR
Clients e Questionnaires
BE SESEEE
Employees e QOrganizing training courses and workshops covering different areas
BT BT RSBEOEIIRERIES
e Staff conferences
BTBBARE
Suppliers e Daily conferences
ftrErs HE®E
The public and e Community activities
community t@ES
ABRHE e Public consultations
NS
Education and e Site visits
research partners BEihER
HERMEBME e Internship
EEEHE

PEOPLE-ORIENTED

Creating healthy and safe employment environment, protecting
employees’ lawful rights and interests and fostering outstanding
talents are not only the foundation for an enterprise to achieve
its strategic objectives, but also an important criterion to assess
an enterprise’s performance in sustainability. The Group has
established a series of policies, specifying management measures
for aspects including employee remuneration, recruitment,
dismissal, training, safety and labour standards.

> > > > > > >

UABE

BERFERZENERRE RESINAE
BEARBEEFOAS > TERERERE
BiRE B IRRER  TERALCEVFEER
RAMNBEERE - AKBEEHE — R K
B ARETHB - B85 - fE - 5
REMBTEANETENEEERE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - e RERHRSE(E)

HEALTH AND SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES

Governance Structure

In order to comprehensively manage the health and safety risks
for the employees of the Group, the Group has set up the EHS?
Committee, which is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer
and has positions such as vice chairman, EHS supervision and
management leader and standing committee member. The
establishment of the committee is to consistently implement
national policies and approaches on safety works, timely update
safety management-related documents and conduct safety
inspections on workplace. During the year, the Committee held a
total of 4 meetings, at which issues such as environmental safety,
occupational health, energy-saving and emission-reduction and
industrial safety management were discussed.

EHS objectives

Management programs

B REEZ2AR EEAR

Rate of the .
occurrence of

work injury-related

EBERREZS
ERRE

REAEEASEETINRELZZAR K
SECKIBITRAHEEZBERMEHS?
289 TREIZER EHSEEEEAR
AREBEZEERMU -ZZEEWEY - B
MERERBERAELE THENERETEH
BB E R A ARETTES
REREETHE - KNFE  ZZE8GH/E
ROXREZ  Jm T RBRREZE  BEALER
B EiREREE  TEXZE2EREEE -

EHS conducts inspections on a daily and quarterly basis with problems identified and rectified in
time and achieving 100% improvement on problems and response rate.
EHSHERFERES - #HRMB LY - HERE - BEF100% °

Business division conducts a comprehensive EHS self-inspection and self-assessment on the

e Equipment and facility are 100% repaired and maintained according to the maintenance schedule.

accident

IESHBER .
production site every two weeks.
FEDOGWHEHEERBET - XEHSZ2EEEEE °
B - BRIEIRAEIRETEI100% BT

Completion rate .

of equipment
and facilities
maintenance

PR AR I A T R R

2 EHS represents environment, health and safety.
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Periodic inspection and regular maintenance check of special equipment. Development and
implementation of safety operation procedures for machinery and equipment.

HREREBOENRRLEHEERDS - RERBELERERBRTENITEE -

2 BRI @R o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
BRI g REREME(E)

EHS objectives Management programs

B REEZZ2AR EEASR

Ensuring “six e QOccupational health guardianship of dangerous positions (physical examination of occupational
zeroes” in safety diseases on duty, in duty, off duty)

production BEaEEamEREE (L8 TfE  #EBERER)

BREREEEIAET]

e Air compressor wastewater treatment to improve VOCs special rectification (a program for an
enterprise), electrical safety audit (semi-annually), electrical equipment annual safety inspection
(including electrical circuit, electric equipment and electric heating equipment), environmental
monitoring and periodic monitoring on harmful factors of occupational diseases in the
workplaces, evaluation on hazard factors of occupational disease on block J and block H.
ZEEEEKEEREVOCSHIBESR (—h—FR)  BERXZHERER (B¥F) - BR (&HB)
FREZERA (SERARK  ASHRXE  BNARE)  RREARIESHBEREEEZNT
HAESR o U - HRBE R EERE -

e Fully implementation of three-level safety education. Conduct regular inspections and periodic
maintenance checks of special equipment. Development and implementation of safety operation
procedures for machinery and equipment.

ZREEHERITI00%  FERENTHEHR L EHEERS - $EREBL2RIEREFIEENTT

Bt
BE e

e Organize emergency fire drills and chemical spill drills. The emergency response team engages in
EHS inspections and training drills.

MECE R SORBUA KL B RRIRER - BRBM2HEHSIRE - HIDEMR -

e A 100% coverage rate of EHS training for all employees (training program attendance rate).

T BEHSIENIBEER100% (EIFEILEE) -

Relevant Policies HBRH &

Operation Standards on the Safety Inspection System, Emergency and Response Procedures, Procedures on
Reporting, Investigation and Handling of Accidents, Treatment Procedures for Employees with Work-related
Injuries and Occupational Diseases, etc.

(R2REFIRIEERD) (BEBMERERT) (FHmE - HEEFRIEF) M(IERBEREERARER
IS

Handling of Work-related Injuries THEEHRERE

The Group states in relevant policies that, in case there was any AEBRBERKRTHE  BREETIRLIR
work-related injury, the injured employee would immediately S50 » FESLBNEE 7 B P 1T RUA W 2 HERS
be sent to hospital for treatment with the escort of designated EABEITRE - B BRI EIRE T
person. Meanwhile, the department in question will complete the KEWAERENIRE T/E > S H3E
preparation of the report on the accident, depicting the causes of MR ABEBTBRARRERIERE
the event, the injuries and fatalities of people, and the subsequent Z o NEFERAEELEMEZEITLIRTIE
handling measures, etc. A total of 2 employees of the Group B BEEERRIEEERET TRIE ' B
suffered work-related injuries during the year, and all these work- AITEE THERMEIIE -

related injuries had been handled in accordance with relevant

requirements, and both of them have returned to work.

> > > > > > THRE (ER) ARAR 202155
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Safety Training

The Group proactively and continuously builds a corporate
safety culture, and conducts various safety publicity activities
and trainings to improve employees' safety awareness. Safety
trainings for employees are an important way for employees to
acquire safety skills. The Group implements the safe production
responsibility system through the EHS Management Committee to
further manage and promote the safe production of the Company.

Z 2

AEEEHTEBEREXRREXE - BR
ERZ2EFEHUALEBI - REEINE
2EH REBIRDNIBLZERENESR
AR BBEHSERZES@RELELER
EH - E—TEENESHRANL2LEEHE
B-UTRAFEREIRHNERLEE
BRI

The following are the key safety publicity activities and trainings
provided to employees during the year:

Safety publicity
activities
ZEEEEE

Training on safety
leadership

RE2EE I

Training on
occupational
health protection

B S8 A B i

Periodic detection
on occupational
disease hazards in
the workplace
TS RERE
TE HAROR TE

EHS contest
EHS A3 &

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

Content

EEBAR

A special management safety leadership training course is set up to improve the
management’s leadership and management on safety issues, thereby constructing a health
and safety culture. A total of 74 middle and senior managers participated in this training.
RIEAEEEHHZ2ZENEERERE UM ERRLZE2 X FREEER T REE
FIE - 74P EREEBEASLINT HF -

Focus on explaining the prevention and protection and management of occupational
disease hazards such as noise, chemicals and dust in business operations, and the
emergency treatment of common occupational diseases, so that employees can learn
and master the knowledge and skills of occupational disease prevention and treatment,
thereby enhancing employees’ awareness of occupational diseases prevention and
protection.

HEEBFENEN  LER  HEFRERCEAZNNE  EENERBERESHEE
RIBEANTETEHER  FEISBZERERIAMB LR - (EMigR 8 THRER
DiE=

The Shenzhen Prevention and Treatment Center for Occupational Diseases is entrusted
to carry out regular detection and analysis on occupational disease hazard factors,
discover the generation, spread and change of occupational disease hazard factors of the
Group, and evaluate the impact of occupational disease hazard factors on the health of
workers and the effect of occupational disease protection facilities.
ZRERYTBERSREFARBEREEAREHRASIN - THRAKEREREEAEREN
EX - BHRERE THBEREERRUNSHERRTERE RBERD &R X
FEITES o

All staff are arranged to participate in the safety knowledge contest to improve their
safety awareness and ability, and promote the implementation of the EHS management
system.

2R2HER2AMLE  ReLEHBEFMEES - HEEZEEHSEEHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
BRI g RERHE(E)

IMPROVING THE EMPLOYMENT SYSTEM

Recruitment And Promotion

REEE

The Recruitment Management

System sets out external and internal
recruitment workflow, recruitment
channels, types of recruitment exams
and records of related materials.
Regular performance appraisal on
employees is conducted to understand
their work conditions and management
capabilities, the results of which will be
used as the basis for consideration of
employee promotion, salary increase
and training

CREEEIRHIE ) 7 HIMNB LA R A ED R HE
IWWE’%%%@ %%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&
HEERELEE - THHE TH#HITERE
% ATHREINIEESRMEEES -
EREREGERBETIER - INEARE
FHNEHEHE B

Forced Labour

% T

When recruiting employees, the Group will never restrict
employees’ freedom by means of withholding their ID cards,
passports or deposits; and if an employee wishes to resign,
he/she is free to terminate the employment contract after a

reasonable notice period.

FEETH  @TEBREMI MBS  ERIASHF RS
BTEM - - ARKEE TR IRAIERMNMNE®AMKZLEER

A o

Equal Opportunity and
Anti-Discrimination

FERERRKR

The Group adheres to the principle of
fairness, impartiality and openness.
There shall be no discrimination against
race, color, region, age, gender,

sexual orientation, ethnicity, disability,
pregnancy, belief, political affiliation,
union membership, or marital status.
Employment and promotion decisions
shall be made on merit basis.
BRI C AFERE]
AR - E@ iﬁziﬁi FER MR - EER
m o i BR B2 B0 BURIR
Bl - B B SUEEAMRF R - A
7 BB -

TEAst

Child Labour
BT

7t = B R E

Diversity

Z i

The Group adheres to the principle of
fairness, impartiality and openness, and
strives to provide an inclusive, equal
and fair workplace that values, respects
and promotes diversity and encourages
the employment of employees of
different nationalities, ethnicities,
colors, and educational backgrounds.
ZRRA AEEBARE—EERF

RATFHIESE - &R - BEWER
E2RLalt  FEEETRELE R
& EE HEERFEEMNET -

Age verification procedure has been set up to prevent
the recruitment of child labour. The Group conducts
comprehensive age verification for every new employee,
regularly arranges each plant to carry out systematic age

verification audits and maintain relevant data. There are also

RAFERR
1 ) R 1 52

R

Relevant Policies HHBBE

child labour remedial management regulations. A series of
remedial measures are in place if child labour is found.
CPIEEREEET  HE (B TH#TE
E Im%ﬁ%ﬂiﬁkﬂﬁ/\,yﬁm’%ﬁﬁ FERZITREEZE
¥ BRAEZIHNEEHT

EFRRET  RAE-FIEK

Enrolment and Appointment System, Social Responsibility Management System, Recruitment Management
System, Complaint Management System, Child Labour Remedial Management Regulations, etc.

(ANBEERSE) (MGEEEERE) CGEBEERE) (BRHFEERE)NR(ETHREERE)E

In order to help the families of employees with special difficulties to relieve their financial pressure, the Group has established
TK Compassion Fund in 2010, aiming to establish a mechanism to help employees who are in acute and critical iliness. Since
its establishment, a total of 36 colleagues and their children have received financial assistance in an amount up to RMB1.11
million. According to the self-paid expenses of the applicants and the actual situation of the TK Compassion Fund, two employees

received financial assistance, mainly to support their medical expenses during the year.

BB ERRESENE TREEFER D  AEBR2010FM L TR IELES -

SERBERFEMET - BRILIAN

FREMNEBBARRIAZLESHNERBR  AFERIELESH

EERS— E%%Wlﬁiﬁfﬁﬂ
HEBB6ERIRAERFL WPHEHEARBINMET - REELE
GHRBIMEET - T2RXEE ﬁFfﬁSE

Case Study

%ﬁj/'\ =]
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R g MEamE(E)

Talent Training

The Group firmly believes that establishing a comprehensive
training system for employees can help them realize their personal
value and enhance its long-term development performance. The
Group has policies in place such as “Training and Development
System” and “Management Regulations on Promotion and
Cultivation”, and formulates relevant training plans based on the
opinions of its employees and its development route. The main
training types are divided into five categories: professional skills,
general skills, leadership skills, safety systems, and experience
sharing. During the year, a total of 3,579 employees of the Group
received training, accounting for 85.5% of the total number of
employees, with a total of 42,228.5 training hours. In addition,
there is an internal lecturer system, with a total of 111 lecturers
participating in this project.

With the increasing expectations of the government and the public
on the sustainable development performance of enterprises, the
Group actively promotes green production with environmental
goals to effectively manage its impact on the environment.

In response to global climate change, the Group will evaluate
its carbon footprint, seek ways to reduce carbon dioxide and
other greenhouse gas emissions, increase the development
and utilization of renewable energy processes and equipment,
and promote the improvement of its green and low-carbon
development model. Looking forward to the future, the Group will
continue to assess the risks and opportunities brought by climate
change to its operating sites, and formulate relevant responding
measures, as appropriate.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Repom(conﬂnued)

EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Environmental Goals - Carbon Emissions

BEE R - HEEK

RN e hERRE(E)

235 €7

Goals

The Group is to promote its green and sustainable development by reducing carbon emissions at

BiE source. Specifically, it will strictly implement the green design of the whole production process, and

gradually replace the high-energy-consuming materials to further reduce its annual carbon emissions.

Moreover, it will continue to implement its energy-saving and emission-reduction projects.

RECESEFERR

The Group has established a management system, in which the
general managers, EHS department, management representatives,
the Injection Molding Quality Department and other competent
departments are responsible for different areas of the
management of greenhouse gas emissions. In particular, the
Injection Modeling Quality Department is responsible for regular
trainings for personnel in charge of preparing greenhouse gas
information, such as learning about the source of greenhouse gas
emissions and the use of relevant calculation tools.

During the year, the Group's total carbon emissions were 49,522.7
tonnes, which were mainly generated from using purchased
electricity, accounting for 98.8% of the total emissions. In addition,
although the refrigerant R-22 used in air-conditioning equipment
is not included in the six greenhouse gases covered by the Kyoto
Protocol®, in order to more fully disclose the performance of
greenhouse gas emissions, the Group included 515.7 tonnes of
CO, equivalent emitted by air-conditioning equipment in Scope .
Total GHG emissions for the year increased by 17.1% compared
to 2020, which was mainly attributable to a increase in sales and
production capacity.

9 The main objective of Kyoto Protocol (Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change) is to “stabilize greenhouse gas
levels in the atmosphere at an appropriate level”, and the specified greenhouse

gases include carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,), nitrous oxide (N,0),

hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur hexafluoride

(SF,).

> > > > > > >
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Emission quantity for
the current year Emission quantity for
(tonnes of CO2 2020 (tonnes of CO2

equivalent) equivalent)
Emission of greenhouse gases TEEHRE —== ﬁﬁ?ﬁi’(s
AERBHEK (R =—E{tmEE (A =—E{tREERE

Scope | — Direct greenhouse gas emissions #E1— HZ 8 =R EHN

Fossil fuel combustion — stationary sources 0.4 0.3

TE BB — BIER

Fossil fuel combustion — mobile sources 36.6 31.1
e AR — B EIR

Greenhouse gases emitted during the operation of equipment 526.1 148.8
and systems

F i MR REER RN EREE

Scope Il - Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from energy #3E2 — §EJR M 2374
Purchased electricity 48,904.4 42,070.5
HNEE )

Business aircraft travel 55.2 55.2
M TS TRTT

Total greenhouse gas emissions 49,522.7 42,305.9
RERBHREE

Greenhouse gas emissions density (based on revenue per million 20.6 20.8

Hong Kong dollars)
BERBHREE (KEAEETWARET)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
BRI g REREME(E)

Exhaust emissions BESRBER

Environmental goals - Exhaust emissions

REBAR - BRI

Goal We are committed to working with our global partners to strengthen our ability to mitigate climate
BE change and adapt to climate-related impacts, and ensure that our operations meet the emission
standards for both organized and unorganized emissions.
BPIB A EEHRBHEIE - LB MEERGEE(CERRIGEATENEN  BREERIEFH
B mABRERERYEN -

Action e (Cooperate with public organisations in order to obtain analysis results on regional climate change
T8 and deepen the enterprise’s understanding of the vulnerability of business and community
climate

HARBESE  UESEHERESEAONER - IES DSBS RIEMESS R IRAR

e |mprove production processes and reduce the impact from operation on the
environment
HELETE  RBRELEHRENTE

e Keep frequent communication with different stakeholders, and make reference from
their opinions and know-how during decision-making process
SERTRPBHERFESER  UHRRBIERD2EE N REENG

e Regularly monitor the concentration of organized and unorganized emissions to ensure
compliance with emission standards

SRR  BABTIRE - BIRERIN

The injection molding plants of the Group generate exhaust gas AREEFTBHMENLEERABREPEANERE
including spraying exhaust gas, printing exhaust gas, injection BERER  HRES T2BRaEMHE
molding exhaust gas and dust during the production process. This Z HREPEaTETERE  fESEE
will be managed by the Quality Department through overseeing IRISEHEEXANETIN - ﬁ;ljﬁT%Eyﬁ%ﬁ@L}{
and checking the function of the environmental management RaERHEERRRIERES - 240
system, formulating rectification measures, as well as inspecting =oone FEAAR & ERE S P R & ,ﬁf‘;ﬁ%%}k
and maintaining exhaust gas treatment equipment. Furthermore, OB - WiERSE REFH(ERSE) -

the Quality Department will also regularly organise relevant

departments to identify and evaluate the sources of exhaust gases

and timely establish and update the List of Exhaust Gases.

> > > > > > THRE (ER) ARAR 202155
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Compared with 2020, the nitrogen oxides, sulfur oxides ANFE B BRI BRE A AR EFEFTBERR
and respirable suspended particulates emitted by fossil fuel MRS - ALY TR R A SR F R F £

consumption from stationary and mobile sources during the year TECEFEERESRIEIINT2.8%  18.2%
increased by 2.8%, 18.2% and 25.0%, respectively. F25.0% °
Emission Emissions for the year (kg) Emissions for 2020 (kg)
B TEEHHE(TR) “ECEFHHRE(TR)
Nitrogen oxides (NO ) 3.7 3.6
AEALHINO )
Sulfur oxides (SO ) 1.3 1.1
HEAL?(SO )
Respirable suspended particulates (PM) 0.5 0.4

A IRABFHRL A (PM)

Environmental goals - Waste discharge

B EE - BERWHEN

Goal Reduce the environmental impact of waste by improving material recycling rates, reducing waste
BEZ generation and ensuring compliant disposal of waste
BBEEVHMNBKAAER  REEEVELSNRRBEEYSRERE - REEEYHREERNA
A
Action e More environmentally friendly materials are used in the production process
78 EERERERABERREOME

e \Waste classification and recycling is carried out in the process of daily operation, and all
employees are required to handle waste correctly in accordance with the requirements
of the waste classification list

ARESEBETETERYOIBOY BR2ERREZN D REENERCEEZEEY

e Ensure that the waste generated is collected and disposed of by licensed professionals

ELBRVERBFEOEZADETRENRE

During its daily operation, the Group will classify and recycle waste AEBRBELEBREReETEEYND
and requires all staff to handle waste correctly in accordance #7 [ g §><£§ﬁi BEEYOBESENE

with the requirements of the waste classification list. After K EHEERFEY - DETKZEHESRY
classification, the waste will be delivered to different warehouse IRBEMEEXERNRAELET  MNEkEE
for storage based on nature. For instance, hazardous waste will EYBeREEERBREYRETERT 2
be delivered to hazardous waste warehouse for storage, and then BB T AOEETFEERW  MEAMT
for regular recycle after contacting designated contractors, while @] Y 5% 7~ A (o] Y 22 22 R 25 4 O o8 ik 2 EL P
other recyclable or non-recyclable non-hazardous waste will also be AR ITEEMEBETESHEE -
delivered to special warehouse for storage, and then to be sold or

cleaned.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

The total non-hazardous waste for the year increased by 29.7% to
2,257.3 tonnes compared with that of 2020. The total hazardous
waste for the year increased by 35.8% to 494.6 tonnes compared
with that of 2020.

Wastewater Management

The management of wastewater collection, transport and
treatment of the Group is shared by the Equipment Department,
the Production Department and the EHS Department to achieve
the effective wastewater management. Among them, the
Equipment Department is mainly responsible for the maintenance
of domestic wastewater and industrial wastewater treatment

RIR - g kEamsE(E)

L7 1
$¢FE’J
B =—ZF=F

RFEEMNEEREYBEH/2,257.37
TTFEME - EINT29.7% ©
BEREEYE S AB494 6 M
FEEHIT35.8% °

EEKERE

REBERRER - EEBAKREHSHPFIAR
BEEKRENERENER  NERREA
MEEKEE - B REHBEBZATLE
FEIK DA B TR BEKUWER RSO Mo - TR R
KBEERRE  LAEMTIBZEERMRIE
BARKTEALEBEXKEBIRKESR M

EHSERE BEE BT %8 I & B N A RE /KU & -
BRIFEEKTEERE  YEEHRAEE
BNEZFREETNERE °

equipment to ensure the discharge of wastewater is effectively
collected; the Production Department is mainly responsible for
ensuring no penetration of industrial wastewater into domestic
wastewater pipe networks or rainwater pipe networks; and
the EHS Department is mainly responsible for overseeing the
collection of waste water within the injection molding plant to
ensure that different waste water is not Leaked and is responsible
for coordinating with qualified third parties for transport and

disposal.

USE OF RESOURCES &iRfEA

Total energy consumption of the Group amounted to 80,309.4 KEBRAKFENRIRERE= A80,309.4
Mwh equivalent during the year, representing an increase of KEKREE  M-F _girﬁﬂzi@ﬂﬂT

16.2% as compared with 2020. The direct energy use and indirect
energy use during the year recorded an increase of 17.7% and
16.2% as compared with that of 2020, respectively.

16.2% - EEZEREMBZRERERM T =
EFEEMEEDRIEINT17.7%F16.2% ©

Use of energy

Consumption for the year Consumption for 2020

REIRBE A rEEFAR —ECEEHRAE
Gasoline (GJ) /m (HHEE) 538.8 457.9
Diesel (GJ) i (HEH) 0.0 0.0
Liquefied petroleum gas (GJ) RiLAHR(FEE) 6.2 5.0
Electricity (Mwh) & 73 (JKE B ) 80,158.0 68,956.7
Total energy consumption (Mwh equivalent) 80,309.4 69,085.3
HRAZECKEREHE)
Energy intensify (Mwh equivalent/million HKD 33.4 34.0
revenue)
EREZE(BEERLEEBIRREE)

During its operation, the Group adheres to aim of “Reuse, Recycle TEBRAEEERN[ECFAER - B

WERKBDRE |IRTREETAENERRE
% o

and Reduce Waste"” by adopting reasonable use of resources.

> > > > RTRE (R BRAE 2021FH
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Central Air-conditioning Renovation Project of Plastic Injection Workshop

AEERAHREFBEERE

During the year, the Group invested RMB982,000 to upgrade the existing central air-conditioning system in the injection molding

plant of the Group in Shenzhen to central water-cooled air-conditioning, which saved electricity of 527,000 kWh after renovation.

RAREE - RNEEIEE982,0007T AR BAGAE B LI RIE)TE TRRE 8P RZEFHZABCER ER KL

=3 MuElk - FEEEE62.7EKWh. Case Study
E ]

The Group did not encounter any problems in sourcing water at its FA - AK B RS E MBI R E R SKEUE A
operating locations for the year. KIREIFERE o

Environmental objective - Water

REEE - KER

Objective Reduce water consumption and increase water recycling in the Group operation
BE AR R B B P A K A RBRERIIE hK ER1E IR B A

Action e Reuse of wastewater

78 B AREK

e Strengthen the daily maintenance and management of water equipment to avoid waste
of water caused by “escaping, infiltrating, leaking, dripping” of water

R KRB R EHENERER B2l § 8 Bl REKERRREL

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES RIBERAAREIR

In case there are material environmental contingencies including EAREEFAEERRREANNERIR

chemical leakage occurred in the Group, relevant departments REBREEH - LA HMBEIPFIIRER
will immediately conduct contingency rescue in accordance with [BTKEE2ETE A [ EEREE e
relevant requirements under the Emergency Contingency Plan of Eﬁiﬁmiﬁf‘fﬁ?,\\*ﬂﬁ BoBREERE K
TK Group and the Emergency Flow Chart. After the emergencies, EBEHSKIESHAMEHSTES N EMiEHA
the EHS Manager of the Group will arrange for the EHS Committee ABHESEERTIZETENL  WREES

and other relevant personnel to optimise the emergency response PIEITEHL ©
procedures and submit the same to competent parties for
approval.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

During its operation, the Group has always adhered to its
own business principles and is committed to improving our
operational efficiency through the establishment of corruption
reporting channels, supplier selection criteria and product quality
management system.

The Group is well aware of the importance of building
integrity corporate culture to the long-term development of an
enterprise. Upholding the system of "“Fairness, Equality and
Transparency”,the Group takes a zero tolerance approach to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. There was a total of
four directors and 2,387 employees participated in business ethics
training during the year, in order to promote awareness on anti-
corruption.

The Group has the Supplier Management Processes and the
Staff Handbook in place with relevant integrity requirements. All
employees are required to sign an integrity clause agreement. An
employee, once found breaches in relevant regulations, will be
warned, dismissed or subject to legal action in accordance with the
Treatment System for Disciplinary Offence and Poor Performance.
At the same time, we enter into the Business Cooperation
Agreement with suppliers, which contain integrity clauses, and
will terminate the cooperation with them or take legal action if any
non-compliance with the relevant regulations is found. The Group
welcomes any person or organization to lodge a complaint through
wechat QR code complaint platform of the Group or chairman
complaint mailbox regarding any reasonably suspected corruption
case with the Group based on facts. The Group will handle the
complaint on the principle of confidentiality in accordance with the
Complaint Management System.

> > > > > > >

BRI g MeEamsE(E)

AEEREEBRT —HBHAHHES
B RHRBRYASRERT  HEHS
BERIAREGREEENE  RAAED
PEERE -

AEERARLERENEEEERERER

EERNEEN  BF[AF - RE - AFH]
BREH - BN BR - RFERAREN

TRBEZRRNUYE - REARESTES -
AEEHENBERIAK2,387HET2HER
ESERElI

AEBERB(HERERRE) R(EIFM)
BHREANRZELR  BTIHTERZIRRGN
B FRERETERBANRTE SR
(BRBRETRTERBEREHIE ) HRRE
T BMERIFNERTTR - A - BHE
BREAESREGFOC(RBAERQ)
FRRERBERTH - BEK A FENRGF
MERFTR - AEEBURERMATHEE
ERNFE  BEAASEME_#BRFFE
FEERRFEEALNSERFLSEREE
MEBRN  AEERRHFEENIE)
REFRTH RGBT FETRE

RIER® (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

R g MEamE(E)

The Group understands the importance of managing the
environmental and social risks of suppliers to the ecosystem of the
whole supply chain. It has formulated the Supplier Management
Procedure and the Supplier Management Processes and other
policies to strictly screen suppliers, and has included reviews
on environmental, social responsibility and occupational health
and safety management in the Comprehensive Review on New
Suppliers.

In order to reduce the risk of sustainability, the Supplier
Management Processes specifies that the Procurement Department
shall not introduce suppliers who purposefully use conflict metals
(thallium, tin, tungsten, gold and cobalt). Meanwhile, there are
standards for the use of green environmental protection products
and suppliers are required to sign the Environmental Substances
Control Standards and the Environmental Substances Guarantee.
For suppliers not in the best interests of the environment, we will
not introduce and engage.

Product quality

The Group has always attached great importance to the
management of product quality. In the process of product
manufacturing, the Group has taken four major steps: first article
sampling, first article confirmation, patrol inspection and pre-
warehousing inspection to ensure that product quality can meet
relevant requirements. During the year, the Group received a
total of 4 complaints, all of which are related to product quality.
In this regard, the Group has implemented various approaches
to strengthen product quality control, such as changing the
appearance design of products, improving design of box packaging,
adjusting positioning of mold according to customer requirements,
and organizing relevant staff training.

Customer privacy

The Group understands that protecting customer’s privacy is
an important way of realising good corporate governance. The
Confidentiality Management System stipulates that confidential
information of any business partners and other connected persons
shall be protected and all staff are required to sign the Employee
Confidentiality Agreement, promising guaranteeing customer's
privacy against any infringement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Intellectual property

In the Group, the Legal Department is responsible for the
management of intellectual property. If an employee obtains a
patent certificate related to the nature of his/her work during
his/her work, the Group will grant him/her rewards of different
degrees. Meanwhile, the Group also undertakes not to infringe
intellectual property rights during the cooperation with any partner.

Regarding to the content of our product advertisements, the
Group advocates fair trade. The Group won't mislead relevant
parties or initiate vicious competition in manner of price war or
otherwise and commits to making advertisement in compliance
with recognized competition standards in terms of approach and
content. The market advertising plan and its implementation shall
be reviewed by personnel in charge of market via approval meeting
to ensure its manner and content comply with relevant laws (i.e.
no infringement, no misleading to related parties, no leakage of
customer secrets, etc.), and the meeting minutes of which shall be
maintained. Relevant confidential information shall be managed in
accordance with the Confidentiality Management System.

GROWTH WITH COMMUNITY

The Group has always concerned about the development of
the local community where it operates. During the year, under
the guidance of the Policy of Community Investment, Donation
and Sponsorship Management, the Group placed “Charities and
Disaster Relief” as its major investment area.

Area of concern Case study for the year

REERFIDE

BT ER

RIE - HERERRE(E)
HBER

AEBHEGHMABENBERNERT
- EETIRNITEHHESEITELE R
MENEES  AAKREER T TREEMNE
B - A AREITAGEERIAAERH
BIERIBIES - TRICEMBERE

UREEEHND  AREETATRSR
B TEREENS  THRRERBEE

MBEF SN BREERSHANATNG
ARHBHFRE - AEMEESEENRE
HEGEHAMSAEE AEBTESE oL
ERBNTAREESABTNAELETERE
(BRELRE REEMT  REEFPHEE
F) AREEFLE  HERTEERRR
BEEGIEIIT

By ELERE
AEBE-BEREOCEEMEMERNER &
(HRKRE BEIMEDHERGE)INES
T ARERAFER [BERXERER
REHE -

Charities and e Inlate July 2021, Henan continued to be hit by extremely heavy rainfall, causing significant losses
Disaster Relief of lives and properties to local people. The Group, together with Charity Federation in Guangming
HmEY K District, responded quickly, contacted the local provincial and municipal charities at the first time,

and launched a project namely “Rush to Rescue Henan, Guangming is in Action (5B 7 F3 ¢ FA
E7TH))", to set up caring donation channels for rescuing Henan. The Group donated a total of
approximately HK$290,000 on its own, and also issued donation appeals and initiatives to other
enterprises and people in the district.

20217 AR AR EEERIGARERN  AEMARBBENERNEGMPERNK - FAEEHA
ﬁ‘ﬁﬂﬂlﬁ%’i*@LLﬁf ”*hfﬁﬂﬁy%“ﬂﬂé MAZHEE - B [BETERETS] BHE

R B R B OB C REER u—f?%%’b\?’]mo 000 7T » AF b Wﬁi\ﬁﬂm%ﬂﬁ’*)\i?‘

AR BB

RFEE - AEEIBMEA1,631,0008 7T © HA
HEHREFEH)ED13,000/87T

During the year, the donation made by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,531,000, among which the community
investment amounted to approximately HK$513,000.

> > > > > > THRE (ER) ARAR 202155
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

RIR - g MERRE (&)
COMPLIANCE

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board is fully responsible for the Group's operationa
compliance and is responsible for supervising the management
of compliance requirements across the Group's departments in
the effective implementation of the Group's policies to ensure
compliant operations. Laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group include, but are not limited to, the following
laws and regulations:

BRER

HEERERETHR
EEgUAKEREAREALRNER
VTEEEEASRESHPIEEEBARENX
DERTARELERA R LEMHIFTAHEK
R-HAKEEEATENEZREREEE
PRATERFRG] -

A1 Emissions

ATEERYD

Relevant laws and
regulations

HBEEER

e The Environmental
Protection Law
of the People's
Republic of China

(PEARAMBEIR
BRER)

e The Water Pollution
Prevention and

Compliance disclosure

SRERRE

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to emissions
during the year.
REERF AL MEEIR
PERUAERA R R E RE

-
EL

Major impacts on the
Company
HERERNERS

The Group may
be subject to

administrative penalties,

and in case of severe
circumstances, be
ordered to suspend
production and

Methods for ensuring
the compliance

of these laws and
regulations
BREFELEERASL
W7 &

Comply with the
requirements under
environmental laws,
establish system to
avoid, reduce and
control environmental
pollution resulting

Control Law of the
People's Republic of
China

(hE AR
VERBTRED

AEK

e The Atmospheric
Pollution Prevention
Law of the People's
Republic of China

(REARKEMER
RFREEE)
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operation. from daily operation as
REE AR BATEBUR much as possible, and
N BRERERTTAEWE)  handle and disposal of
RNIEERE emissions in accordance

the requirements of
national laws and
regulations.
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gz %‘JE%‘%@FJ’TL&&E’J
IRBSR - WIRBERAR
AR B SRR 1B A B B BERR
) o



B1
Employment

B1{EfE

B2
Health and
safety

B2 FEEZ 2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Relevant laws and
regulations

HHEEEER

e The Labour Law
of the People's
Republic of China
(REEARFEME L
;%)

e The Labour Contract
Law of the People's
Republic of China
(REARFEME L
BEREE)

e The Law of the
People’'s Republic
of China on the
Protection of
Women's Rights
and Interests

(hEARKME R
TRERIREE)

e The Social Insurance
Law of the People’s
Republic of China

(hEZEARFEMBE
SREE)

e The Production

Safety Law of the
People’s Republic of
China

(PEARAMER
2HEEER)

e The Law of the

People’s Republic of
China on Prevention
and Control of
Occupational
Disease
(FREE A R HANE
EmPaE)

e The Fire Protection

Law of the People's
Republic of China
(FREE AR HEMEDH
%)

Compliance disclosure

BRELRE

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to employment
during the year.
REE R EF A IR
EFEEENELERE

i
e

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to health and
safety during the year.
REERF AL MEEIR E
R Z2EENEEE
FREZ -

B e

Major impacts on the
Company

HERAERNEATE

The Group may

be subject to
administrative penalties,
face legal litigations and
suffer damage to its
external image.

REE AR BITHBUR
5 EEREEFARDE
HIMNTERFAE -

Major safety accidents
and occupational
disease risk can

cause the Group to

be penalised and its
employee to be injured.
BEALEEFHRBERR
B P] B 25 BN 52 1B 444 5 &1
KEISZTE

REjadmE (&)

Methods for ensuring
the compliance

of these laws and
regulations
RRBFELEZERASL
W75 &

The Human Resources
Department has
formulated different
policies in accordance
with relevant laws,

and has adhered to the
principles of openness,
fairness and justice

in the selection and
employment of talents.
AN ERHBPIEIZBRIEH
EEERBIFT TR
KBHEAR 2F A
IEREAFIAARA] -

Provide staff with
mechanical safety
protection equipment
and personal protective
equipment, organize
three-level safety
education and training,
and perform works in
accordance with safety
operation guidelines.

M8 THREEM L 2

*Hﬁﬁ/{& I/\%1%ﬁﬁ on -’

i@%ﬁ”zﬁ?%ﬁ%

C RIRE R RIEIES
TIf’E
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FOIEE (FiR) BRAR 202145

71



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

B HERE

/\-/‘\—\

== #&tt(/l‘/\)

Relevant laws and
regulations

HHEEEER

Compliance disclosure

BRELRE

Major impacts on the
Company
HERERNEARE

Methods for ensuring
the compliance

of these laws and
regulations
RRBFELEZERASL
W75 &

B4 °
Labour
standards

B4 T %8|

B6 °
Product
responsibility

B6EREE

B7 °
Anti-corruption
B7RES

The Labour Law

of the People's
Republic of China
(REARFEME L
;%)

The Law of the
People's Republic
of China on the
Protection of
Juveniles
(hE AR FEME R
R ANREE)

The Product Quality
Law of the People's
Republic of China
(REE AR KEMEIE
mE8%)

The Patent Law

of the People's
Republic of China
(REARKEMEH
AMED

The Law of the
People’s Republic of
China Against Unfair

Competition
(REARAMER
PEEHRFE)

The Anti-Money
Laundering Law
of the People's
Republic of China

(PEARAMER
IR

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

The Group was not
aware of any violation of
labour standards during
the year.
REBRF R MR E
T AEBIEERNERER
% -

The Group was not
aware of any violation
related to product
responsibility during the
reporting period.

ARE BN AR E BRI
BN EERBEARNE
SEERER

The Group did not
receive any corruption
lawsuits against

the enterprise or its
employees, and did

not have any violations
of relevant laws and
regulations that have
significant influences
on the Group during the
reporting period.
REERARREBHAILEZ
BB rESNEERE
WEISHRRMN  THRA
BERUAEEEERATE
HARRDER LRI -
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The Group may

be subject to
administrative penalties,
face legal litigations and
suffer damage to its
external image.
$EIT%§ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
E'J H Euu /£f$ Dﬁﬂ\
HIMTERFAE -

The Group may face
return of goods by client
or consumer, causing
significant economic
losses.
AEBAGEHEFIEE
HRE  EREENLE
Bk e

There may be an
increase in the Group's
operating costs, causing
economic losses.
EINARE B R BB A -
EREEERK -

The Group forbids the
use of child labour and
forced labour, and has
developed remedies to
timely deal with misuse
of child labour and
forced labour.
REBEREGAET KRR
HIEE T - I 2 HIET R RE
Mo ARBEREBRAEZET
K& 4 TR ©

The Group and its
supply chain have
implemented a strict
quality management
system to ensure that
product quality at each
session is in compliance
with relevant laws and
regulations and client’s
requirements.

AN B R A PR SRR AR AT
BEEEHE  BREE
IRETH M E RS AERRAR
%ﬁ&%ﬁ%X

Stipulated in the
Employee Handbook the
code of conduct that
must be followed by
employees, and adopt
zero-tolerance policies
for illegal actions such
as corruption and
bribery. The Group also
provides anti-corruption
trainings for directors
and employees.
(BEIFM) B5IHET
VRETHT RS - 8
BT - B EERTRIX

BREARHLE - NEEH
ﬁﬁé%uﬁalkﬁ&
5 -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kEREmE(E)

OVERVIEW OF KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS HEREVNIEEEAE

Environmental performance IRIBRAE

Key performance indicators of the environment During the year

REREANIER REE

Type of emissions and relevant data i 4 &E 8 & AR HE BB

Nitrogen oxides (NO ) A4(E#I(NO) 3.7 3.6 103.9 KgF
Sulfur oxides (SO ) #&E#(SO) 1.3 1.1 3.3 KgF5
Respirable suspended particulates (PM) 0.5 0.4 6.8 KgF=

AR AR FHRLF(PM)

Benzene X (Benzene) 36.9 33.3 42.9 KgF5e
Toluene FX(Toluene nea 2306 34 eFE
Xylene =FH0ylene) 27 50 056 oFr
Total Volatile Organic Compounds (TVOC) 7427 6362 16032 eFE

BIEEMEEREESY(TVOC)

Non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC) 667.8 2,616.5 4,178.8 KgF5e
FEFRLTABIEINMHC)

Respirable suspended particulates (PM) 346.1 643.3 1,344.7 KgF 7=
AR ASEZ R (PM)

Greenhouse gas emissions in total ;2= R EEAHHE

Scope | — Direct emission 563.1 180.2 347.2 tonnes of CO,
MEN - HEIER equivalent
N |ty g
Al =
[==REER
Scope Il - Lndir\ect emission 48,904.4 42,070.5 45,406.1 tonnes of CO,
&[22 — equivalent
N |/t R (g d
Alh =
[==REER
Scope Ill - Indirect emission 55.2 55.2 220.8 tonnes of CO,
#[2]3 — AR equivalent
N |/t R g d
Al =
[==REER
Greenhouse gas emissions in total 49,522.7 42,305.9 45,9741 tonnes of CO,
BERBBYNE equivalent
Nk R g d
Al =
=28
Greenhouse gas intensity (as per revenue) 20.6 20.8 19.9 tonnes of CO,
RERBEE(ARAGE) equivalent/
million HKD
N
= ¥ 1
4 Data calculation is based on the test reports of production bases in Shenzhen 4 BB EERRINEEL - g - BMARRZAE
headquarters,Suzhou, Huizhou and Dongguan. Data from two new sampling E Bl o« SEF RSB M 2{EERE
sites,Dongguan and Huizhou, were added this year, therefore the emissions may g 0 AtELEELEHINE -

not be directly comparable.

B According to Emission Standards for Volatile Organic Compounds for the 5 WEBEHRTEBER2UEBE#LE Y WE%E

Furniture Manufacturing Industry (DB44/815-2010), common VOC include (DB44/815-2010) - HEMEREERILEMBE
benzene, toluene, xylene, acetic acid, methyl-ethyl copper, isopropanol, ethyl A BR. —HR. 2B P2 ERE - 28
acetate and butyl acetate, etc. CEEROET RS -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Key performance indicators of the environment During the year
AEE

BRERRENIER

Hazardous waste in total EEEEZYHEE

Hazardous waste produced in total 494.6 364.3 269.2 tonnes
BERERMBEELES N
Hazardous waste intensity (as per revenue) 0.21 0.18 0.12 tonnes/million
BEERENEE CURAGE) HKD
R/ BEEE

Non-hazardous waste produced in total 2,257.3 1,740.5 1,771.9 tonnes
BEERVMEELES NU
Non-hazardous waste irltensity (as per revenue) 0.94 0.86 0.77 tonnes/million
EEEENEE(ABAGE) HK
AW B BB

Direct energy HIZER 545.0 462.9 656.9 GJEEFH
Indirect energy fE#AE) 80,158.0 68,956.7 74,424.0 Mwh JK LB
En\ergy intensity (as per revenue) 33.4 34.0 32.3 Mwh/million
BEIREE (AR AGTE) HKD
KBS
BEBE

Water consumption in total 247,847 252,636 262,373 m? 3 J5 K

BREKE

Water consumption intensity (as per revenue) 103 124 114 m3/million HKD

FokEE AR E) JhRS
BEBE

Packing materials in total 2,127.7 2,011.2 2,794 .1 tonnes “AME
BEMHEE
Packing materials intensity (as per revenue) 0.9 1.0 1.2 tonnes/million
BEYHER(LBAGH) HKD

UNU =Ry
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Social performance HEXRR

Distribution of employees® During the year

BT AZ 2 e rEE

Gender 15l Male 1% 2,447 2,299
Female % 1,737 1,766

Age FHR 18-30 years old 18-30%% 1,210 1,162
31-45 years old 31-457% 2,596 2,615
Above 45 years old 4557 A+ 378 288

Rank B 4% Management staff B A B 186 181
General staff —f2E% 8 2,132 2,044
Production staff £E 8 T 1,866 1,840

Labour staff Security staff (RZ A B 38 40

= 2)F/NS = e
Cleaning staff fR/Z A B 22 17
Greening staff &x{L A B 5 5
Property management staff Y32 A & 6 2
intern B4 9 N/A i A

Total number Number of Employee
of new resigned turnover
Distribution of employees employees employees rate’
BT ABSfH FEIAAE BREIAY EERKHLZ
Gender 5 Male 5% 1,436 1,288 52.6%
Female 1% 1,282 1,311 75.5%
Age FHe 18-30 years old 18-307% 1,606 1,558 128.8%
31-45 years old 31-455% 975 994 38.3%
Above 45 years old 4555 A 137 47 12.4%
Rank B4R Management staff B3 A B 26 21 11.3%
General staff —f&H% 8 550 462 21.7%
Production staff £EET 2,142 2,116 113.4%
Total employee turnover rate /& B 8 5k th & 62.1%

¢ The number of dispatched staff has been included and the region where staff 6 EEEIRES T AZNE TATEMEAH B AR o
located is Mainland China.

g Due to the nature of the industry, the turnover rate of employees is relatively 7 BARITESME BEIHNREBERKAK o
high.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Occupational safety and health performance During the year

BEZ2REEAN REE

Number and percentage of work-related deaths for 0 0
the past three years®

WE=FRETRRMETH A L %o

Number of work-related injuries 2 5
HIZEAH

Number of working days lost due to work-related injuries 98 157
EHIGIERTIEEE

Percentage
of employees Total Average
receiving training training
Employee distribution training?® hours hours
BT A EIEE L fle  EINERFE 1953 FI B 2
Gender 1% 5! Male S 2,447 2,214 (61.9%) 28,492.4 11.6
Female Z 1% 1,737 1,365 (38.1%) 13,736.1 7.9
Age FHR 18-30 years old 18-305% 1,210 1,129 (31.56%) 10,494.2 8.7
31-45 years old 31-4553% 2,596 2,219 (62.0%) 29,008.8 11.2
Above 45 years old 455 0A - 378 231 (6.5%) 2,725.5 7.2
Rank B4 Management staff B2 A B 186 148 (4.1%) 1,479.5 8.0
General staff —fZH 8 2,132 2,072 (57.9%) 30,435.0 14.3
Production staff £E8 T 1,866 1,359 (38.0%) 10,314.0 5.5
Total number of employees receiving training 3,679 (85.5%) 42,2285 10.1

LNt

Region where suppliers are located Number of suppliers
it PE 7 AT 7 1tk & HEEHE
Mainland China A1 B A [ 1,995
Hong Kong &b 199
Others Hfthi[@ 157
Total A&t 2,351
Percentage of suppliers who implement the practices #7718 il fE g tr 1 100%
8 Number and percentage of work-related deaths in 2019 is 0. 8 2019FETHRMIETHABKREERRO -

® Percentage of employees receiving training is calculated by dividing the number 9 I AHERARAETENREERIAS ZI
of trained employees of specific category by the number of trained employees. E8 -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Product quality During the year

EmEER REE

Percentage of products that shall be recalled for safety ~ 0.01% 0.03%
and health reasons
A2 R ERE R AR E S

Number of complaints related to products or service 4 10
BRERIREMIEFEE
CONTENT INDEX TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE (BBiE - HERERREEIINBRER
N

Subject Areas Description Page/Remarks

FEHE Eipas HEE RS BE

Governance Structure (i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues. 53
EREE BREEFSHRE HELEREENEE -
(i) the board's ESG management approach and strategy, including the 53-564

process used to evaluate, prioritise and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses).
EFENRE A RELTESH KR - BETE - @ RERS
EHIRE M ERELERERE(BEHEITAEBNER) BRE

(iii) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals and 53
targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

EESIIRERE  HEREAEMBERREE - WRBTFINFEET

AEBERE -
Reporting Principles Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify and 52
FE 3R )R B the criteria for the selection of material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder

engagement is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders
identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder
engagement.
BEM RS HEREARSERE  ((BREZ2RE e REAREZMNA
BIREEEREAEL : (B TASETROE2E  EFFNEERHD
EOHM R FETAROE2HENBRERER -
Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions 52
and/or calculation tools used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where applicable) should be
discussed.
B : BRAERIIRE SRR (EA) TAMIZE - 5% - BERRHGT
HTEMNER - AR ARG E RN RRE TRE -
Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to 52
the methods or KPIs used (if any), or any other relevant factors affecting a
meaningful comparison.
— B BITARERE e RELAREPRESA AR BEREBIEEREN
SE(WE)AEMEMTEEERLRAEREE -

Reporting Scope A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and 51

B R & E describing the process used to identify which entities or operations are
included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the scope, the issuer
should explain the difference and reason for the change.
RIBIRIR MG REABEMNERDE - RAEMEG L E Sk EHHAIR
ﬁg%%&%iﬁi&%ﬁ@i@% o HIEREBEGINE - BHITARBRETRZER

1 Products were recalled mainly due to poor appearance. o FERERINETRITERAE K -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g hERWmE(E)

Subject Areas Description Page/Remarks

TEHE i g BEE RS BE

A. Environment A. 3215

General Disclosure Information on: 60-66, 70
—MRIRE BRABERMRERBHN - FUKRTHEEES BERBEEEEMNELESH

(a) the policies; and
B - &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

BTFTHETABEATZENEEEZRROIINER -

A11 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 63-64, 73
HERUYIRE KR S AR A HE B -

A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions 61-62, 73
and, where appropriate, intensity.

B (BE) REREE(BE)RAEREHRER(WER)EE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 64-65, 74
FEEEZEEEVHEER(WER)EE -

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 64-65, 74
FEEEZFEEVLER(MER)EE -

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 61
HIRPRRT S HERE B IR R RIERE L B R PTERER ) 5% -

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a 64-65
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HMEREEERBEFEEYN ) - REAAI I RERERREIE LR
TEFTERER ) 57
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Subject Areas

Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kEREmE(E)

Description Page/Remarks

TEHE

Hiut BEE RS BE

Aspect A2 : Use of Resources BHEA2 : R

General Disclosure

—REE

General Disclosure

—BRE

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other 65-66
raw materials.

BRERER(BEER - KREMFEME) BER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 65-66, 74
WEASAMERR SRR REEEREE -

Water consumption in total and intensity. 66, 74
BFEKERETE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 65-66
them.

R PTR] SZHOREIREE A s B R R R E RS L B R PTERENA P8R -

Any problem in finding suitable water source, water use efficiency objectives 66
and steps used for realizing these objectives.

F A SREGE KR BRI BRI R - ARPIET LM ARG B RN RERE L
BRPTERER e P B -

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with 74
reference to per unit produced.

HRRAAREMHNEER(MNER)GEEEMEE -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and 65-66
natural resources.

BIRBEITAHRBRARAAEREREAZENEE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and 65-66

natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

RHREBEZHHRFERARERNEAZERDRRERERZENTH -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 60
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI REHEERAIREEHBITAEEXBNERRRERFENECE

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, 60
and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage
them.

RRADERAREHETAELEFENEARBKRBFEE - REHTH -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Subject Areas Description Page/Remarks

TEHE 3 BEE RS BE

B.Social B.#t &

Aspect B1 : Employment [EEB1 : E{&

General Disclosure Information on: 55, 59, 71
—REE ERAFH LR - BERER - TESH - B FE#E 2k RES

AR Bt 158 AR A B

(a) the policies; and

B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BFTHETABEAZENEEEZRROIINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group, and geographical 75
region.
BRI EEEE - FRRAR KRS SRS AR
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group, and geographical region. 75

RIER - FIRAERN RILREIDHEERALLE -

General Disclosure Information on: 56-58, 71

—REE BRRHZ2 THERERREREES B EBELEEN

(a) the policies; and

B R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BFHEITABERZENEEEE RO ER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three 76
years including the reporting year.
BEZF(BRERFE)SFEATITHAASRILE -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 76
ATEERTIERS -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how 56-58
they are implemented and monitored.

A PTRAN BB RARZ 2E - ANBBERITRERIE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
BRI g REREME(E)

Subject Areas Description Page/Remarks

TEHE Hiut BEE RS BE

Aspect B3: Development and Training BEB3 : & &zl

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties 60

—RIEE at work. Description of training activities.
BARFEEBITIIEBRERAH R MR - ftEES

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category. 76
RUERREEHEEISNZIEEET S

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 76
employee category.

BURREBRNE S BREETKZ IO TR -

/l
#T

General Disclosure Information on: 59, 72

—RRE B 1EE T ekaa s TH

(a) the policies; and
WE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BTHETABEATENEMEERROIINER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 59
forced labour.
Ht i st RIS B A e AR R E T RGRHISBT -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 59

R EHERERERRERE BB RPTREE S8 -

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. 68
—MRIEE EIRHIER A IRIE R FERBUR o
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 76

=i (% B D R HLIERIELE o
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers 68, 76
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
B AR EENIES - mERTERENNMEREE - AREERT
REERTTE -
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along 68
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BB RN HEREGERGAIRR R GRRAIESD - LARABREHRITRER
JE e
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 68
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

T AAEBRE H RS BRARERMREHED - AERABERTRERS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR - g RERHE(E)

Subject Areas Description Page/Remarks

TEHE i g BEE RS BE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility [EHEB6 : ERET

General Disclosure Information on: 68-69, 72
—REE BEMRHERMREHBEELZS ES ZEMALBIEURERA E
Hy -

(a) the policies; and

BE R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
BTHETABEATZENBEEEZRROIINER -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and 77
health reasons.
EENEEREMAHTRAL 2 BEREAMARKKN B DL
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they 68, 77
are dealt with.
BEREANE M RREHIRFEE LR -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 69
property rights.
B R RE A ERE A R ED
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 68
il E SR T iRiERERBBIERF -
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are 68
implemented and monitored.

BB EEBERRERALRBER - AREERITRESRIE -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIR g kEREmE(E)

Subject Areas Description Page/Remarks

TEHE Hiat BEE RS HE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption BEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: 67,72

—REE BRAPTLLARER - B - BGERILRER

(a) the policies; and

B &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

BIHETABERZENAMERRRIINER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against 67,72
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of
the cases.
RERBAALETASHEEREWEELENETHFARENEE RFF L
==
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how 67

they are implemented and monitored.
FEIL S HE R ERIRIR T - A RABRE AT REE B 5 0% o

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 67
HmEERE TRENRESHFI -

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 69

—RIEE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BANMERSERTHREEMTMERFEENRREER DS EBHLENRH
SR e

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 69
SFHEEE -

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 69

EEIHBEMEHER
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The Board has pleasure in presenting the annual report and the
audited accounts of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
Principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis on revenue and operation of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group's business review for the year ended 31 December
2021, which includes a discussion on principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group's
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars
of important events affecting the Group during the year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business
is set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group are also set out in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 110.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow shareholders of the Company to participate
in the Company's profits whilst retaining adequate reserves for
the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider the following
factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

e retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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e the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles. The Board will continually review the said
dividend policy from time to time and there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

After considering the above-mentioned factors, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK8.6 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2021 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
at the close of business on Thursday, 9 June 2022, amounting to a
total of approximately HK$71,660,000. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM"). The final
dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on Monday, 27 June
2022.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM
to be held on Monday, 30 May 2022, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 25 May 2022 to
Monday, 30 May 2022, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered shareholders of
the Company should ensure that all share transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 24 May 2022.

o ARBEMEEEAZRN  BEARXEXK
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o AKREMRBESMMR
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For determining the entitlement to the aforesaid proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 7 June 2022 to Thursday, 9 June 2022, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company's branch share registrar
in Hong Kong at the above address for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 June 2022.

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years is set out on page 212. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

Details of the movement in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the movement in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders of
the Company.

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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Details of the movement in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in notes 21, 22, 23, 24
and note 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 186 to 188,
page 207, and pages 113 respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman lIslands amounted to approximately HK$495,451,000
(2020: HK$490,563,000), of which approximately HK$71,660,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 were around HK$1,531,000 (2020:
HK$2,194,000).

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Pursuant to the Articles, Mr. Lee Leung Yiu, Dr. Chung Chi Ping
Roy and Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung will retire at the AGM
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

Particulars of biographies of directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 26 to 31 of this annual report.
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Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 39 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Each of the executive directors entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 20
December 2019, which may be terminated by either party giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors for a term of three years
commencing from 20 December 2019, unless terminated by either
party giving not less than three months' notice in writing.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 36 (Related Party Transactions) to the
consolidated financial statements, no director nor a connected
entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme"” below, at no time during the year
was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements and the objects
of or one of the objects of such arrangements is/are to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, including debentures, of
the Company or any other body corporate.
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No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares of the Company which
were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules),
were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of director

EEHA

Mr. Li Pui Leung (“Mr. Li")

FHRAE(TFHREE])
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael

SEAELE(SH

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (“Mr. Lee")

FRBEE(TFRBEE]D)

510/ EEME

(Note 1)
REsLEE RS (AET)

("Mr. Yung") (Note 2)

vtz D) RIEGAE R (M iE2)

(Note 3)
RIEHLEE R (AE3)

Notes:

1.

These shares were held by Eastern Mix Company Limited (“Eastern Mix") (for
352,816,000 shares) and Lead Smart Development Limited (“Lead Smart”)
(for 89,400,000 shares) respectively. The issued share capital of Eastern Mix is
owned as to 45%, 28% and 27% by Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, respectively;
and Lead Smart is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li. As Eastern Mix and
Lead Smart are controlled corporations of Mr. Li, he is deemed to be interested
in these shares held by these two corporations pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These shares were held by Cheer Union Development Ltd. (“Cheer Union”), a
corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Yung.

These shares were held by Normal Times International Limited (“Normal
Times"), a corporation wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Lee.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company'’s issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

Capacity/Nature of interests

Interests in controlled corporations

Interests in controlled corporation

Interests in controlled corporation

AEFEWEF] LS FERBANRRZHRAT
MEBXBDRZEERITRZEH

M2021F128318 * ARRESHESITH
BRARBIRIRG P HEBREES K
BEOI([#FHRBAEGKRA ) F3521452 R
IRFrE M B MR ER Mﬁﬁﬁ
TR ETRAMIEK10) MEARRD R KRB FR
VRN -

34}§$)WLV>//>

RAERBRRBHOEFRE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of shares the Company*

RADFHEER

Lo 4= REE D
442,216,000 53.07%
55,620,000 6.67%
53,640,000 6.44%

Bt

1. ZERMBHANBEERARAR ([£E] ) (4
352,816,000/ k) REREZERBRAR ( [&
28] ) (1589,400,000/ M 15) #H - ERHE 2K
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2. ZEROABRABRRBERAR ([EHA]) KF -
ZATHBEERERER RIEH

3. RERMBERBEEARAR ( [ER] ) 54§ -
FZATBFRBEEZEREAR RIEH -

* BRI ROE RSB BRAKRATR2021F
12A31BEZEITHRHEAR -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which has been recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

As at 31 December 2021, the following corporations had interests
in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the
Company:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Br EXATIEESN 0 7020219 12A318 -
BARNRESARSTBRABRRAGHE
EREBEZE(TERBFHFRBEHKEHEXV
)RR - BERGOIEFTEBIREES
MEEIGPIEI2E BT FEMELMAA
EMERSAR RARBZETANS
RRARRIRFTHERIAE

M2021F 1283180 » AR RREFHLPE
Pl 336 KR EEBRARAFENRRE
MRS ARRAA - LT EBESR
RATF5% A ERE BHITIRAR R

L

i

RAEQXTRGHEFRE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of shareholder

RERER

Eastern Mix (Note 1)
ER(MiET)

Lead Smart (Note 1)
ZB(MEET)

Cheer Union (Note 2)
S (K aE2)

Normal Times (Note 3)

Ees (H1E3)

FMR LLC (Note 4)
FMR LLC(Ht:t4)

FIL Limited (Note 5)
FIL Limited(#7£5)

Pandanus Partners L.P. (Note 5)

Capacity/Nature of interests

510/ EEME

Beneficial owner

LE A A

i}

\;

Beneficial owner

LA A

i
Bl

\r

Beneficial owner
E=EAA

Beneficial owner
EmEAA

Interest in controlled corporations
Rt EEE R

Interest in controlled corporations
SYEHEE S

Interest in controlled corporations

Number of shares

the Company*

Pandanus Partners L.P. (ffi£5)  SiEsEEER

Pandanus Associates Inc. (Note 5) Interest in controlled corporations

Pandanus Associates Inc. (A71:#5) SiE#IEBERERS
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RAR WL

RDEE REBDLL*
352,816,000 42.34%
89,400,000 10.73%
55,620,000 6.67%
53,640,000 6.44%
42,186,899 5.06%
59,504,000 7.14%
59,504,000 7.14%
59,504,000 7.14%



Notes:

1. The above interests of Eastern Mix and Lead Smart were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Li in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. The above interests of Cheer Union were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Yung in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

3. The above interests of Normal Times were also disclosed as the interests of Mr.
Lee in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

4.  FMR LLC was deemed to be interested in these 42,186,899 shares through a
series of subsidiaries pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

5. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.,
which in turn owns as to 37.01% in FIL Limited. FIL Limited was deemed to
be interested in these 59,504,000 shares of the Company through a series of
subsidiaries. Accordingly, Pandanus Associates Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and
FIL Limited were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

L The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares involved divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 29 November
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible participants (including employees,
executives or officers, directors including non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of the
Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain high caliber
employees.
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The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company's listing (20 December 2013) and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The total number of securities of the Company available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 73,340,000 shares,
representing approximately 8.80% of the shares of the Company
in issue as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any
grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant
of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Options). In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
30 days from the date of offer upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.
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The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of offer of the share options, which must be a
date on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing
in securities; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no outstanding
share option for the subscription of new shares held by any parties.

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as means to recognise the
contribution by the Group's personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group. The shares of the Company to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be purchased by
the trustee from the open market out of cash contributed by the
Group or subscribed by the trustee when allotted and issued by
the Company under a general mandate granted or to be granted by
the shareholders of the Company from time to time to allot, issue
or otherwise deal with the Company’s shares in accordance with
the Listing Rules for the purpose of the trust and be held on trust
for the Eligible Participants (as defined under the Share Award
Scheme) (other than Excluded Participants (as defined under the
Share Award Scheme)) until such shares are vested with the
relevant Selected Participants (as defined under the Share Award
Scheme) in accordance with the provisions of the Share Award
Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group did not
acquire the Company’'s shares through its trustee, Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited. Details of the Share Award
Scheme are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, all the share awards were held by the
trustee, and no share has been vested.
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Each of Mr. Li, Lead Smart and Eastern Mix (collectively the
“Covenantors”) have entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in
favour of the Company (on behalf of itself and the Group) dated
29 November 2013 (the "Deed”). Pursuant to the Deed, each of
the Covenantors shall procure their respective associates not to
directly or indirectly engage in any business in competition with
the existing businesses of the Group. Relevant information on
the Deed was disclosed in the Prospectus in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders”. The Company has
received confirmations from the Covenantors of their compliance
with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors declared that they
have fully complied with the Deed for the year ended 31 December
2021. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
confirmations from the Covenantors and concluded that the Deed
has been complied with and enforced in an effective manner.

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that those
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. All applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the proposed annual caps for those transactions
are expected to be less than 5%. Those transactions are exempt
from shareholders’ approval under Rule 14A. 76(2) of the Listing
Rules and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those continuing connected transactions in 2021:

No. Continuing Connected Transaction

1 Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

EREEhZ

2 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 Lease Agreement

RYERRE 1R S i

3 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 Lease Agreement

RYER R 258 & ek

4 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 3 Lease Agreement

RYER 3R & ik

5  Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 4 Lease Agreement
MERBERRERE

6 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory Block A
Lease Agreement

MIEFREAREREERE

7 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking Space
Lease Agreement

AR S E R

8  Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm Land Lease
Agreement
RIERERAEAERS

9 Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football Field
Lease Agreement
MIERBERRERERS

Connected Person

BEAL

TK Technology Holdings Limited
("TK Technology Holdings")

RINREERRAT
((RINEEE])

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited
(“TK Technology (Shenzhen)")

BIME(RINER AT
(TRTRE (RN )

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
FIRE (R

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
RITRHE(RAN)

TK Technology (Shenzhen)
RTRHEE ORI

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRB A

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRR A

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRR A

TK Technology (Shenzhen)

RTRE A

Subtotal of lease agreements

HEHB N

TREVZEFFEFERIFIN 202 F2FE

ERRERR

Annual Cap
FELR

2

RMB'000 HK$'000

ARETT

179

22,826

37,746

8,072

25

577

274

71,324

TAL

210

26,854

44,405

9,496

29

837

1,076

679

323

83,909

Actual Transaction Amount

BRRZ®
RMB'000 HK$'000
ARBTT TR
174 210
19,390 23,369
30,203 36,421
7,562 9,115
17 21
586 706
806 971
557 671
264 318
59,559 71,802
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(1) Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement

A tenancy agreement dated 27 December 2018 (the “Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into between TK
Technology Holdings as landlord and TK Group International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“TK Group International (Hong Kong)",
a subsidiary of the Company) as tenant in respect of the
premises located at Workshop No. 19 on 9th Floor, Block B, Hi-
Tech Industrial Centre, No. 491-501 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Premises”)
with an area of approximately 77.67 square metres for a term
of three years commencing on 1 January 2019 and expiring on
31 December 2021 at a monthly rent of HK$17,500 in 2021.
The property is used as the principal place of business for the
Group in Hong Kong. At any time during the term of the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement, TK Group International (Hong Kong)
may terminate the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement by giving
not less than one month’s prior written notice to the landlord or
by paying one month’s rent to the landlord.

TK Technology Holdings is a property holding company and
indirectly held as to 45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung
and 27.0% by Mr. Lee. According to the Listing Rules, TK
Technology Holdings is an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and
Mr. Lee, and is thus a connected person of the Company.

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement, the annual
rent of the Hong Kong Premises in 2021 amounted to
HK$210,000, payable by TK Group International (Hong Kong)
in advance on the first day of each calendar month. The annual
rent payable to TK Technology Holdings was determined at
after arm’s length negotiation between the parties to the Hong
Kong Tenancy Agreement. The independent property valuer
of the Company has also confirmed that the terms of the
Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are fair and reasonable and
the rental payment under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
reflects the prevailing market rate.
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(2) Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements (2) FYEREmEREHE

The following lease agreements were entered into between FOIRECORY) (EREEX)ERIKA
TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord and TK Mold (Shenzhen) CRIDEBRAR(EIEECRID )
Limited (“TK Mold (Shenzhen)”), TK Precision Plastics ROTREENEZ ORI BRAB ([RIIHE
(Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)”), YD BFEBORID D) - HEEBEAECEIND AR
Mold (Shenzhen) Limited (“YD Mold”) and TK Supply Chain AEN(TEREE DA RRTHEEERE
Management Services (Shenzhen) Limited (“TK Supply Chain") B ORI BRR AR ([T ESE ) (1F

as tenants respectively:

Agreement Parties to the Agreement

(£ | EHED

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 1 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord
Lease Agresment and TK Mold (Shenzhen], TK
Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) and
YD Mold as tenants
MIRFER RRERE RIMROM(eA% ) ERITRA
() RILEET2(RIDR
RBEEREEL)

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 2 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord
Lease Agresment and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
as tenant

MIERRER RS G RTHB(R) (FR% ) AR TRE
AR (R (fERAEA)

Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 3 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as
Lease Agreement [andlord and TK Precision Plastics
[Shenzhen) as tenants

MIERRER RS B RIHB(R) (fFR%T) AR TRE
R R (fERAEA)

RAEMBA) DRI THIEE R

Date of Agreement  Leased Property Term Monthly Rent
EELE] IS 3 A&
(RMB)

(ARE)

1 January 2019 Workshop A, B, C, D, E and F Phase 1 of TK 1 January 2019 to 1,802,764
Technology Park, Tangjia Community, 31 December 2021
Fenghuang Sub- District Office, Guangming
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

201951 718 T EEEEEEAERIR 01951 A1EE
BINRIZE(-H)ERA B C: 2001£1231A
D EFif

1 January 2019 Workshop G and H Phase 2, Zone A WorkshopJ, 1 January 2019 to 3,017,180
Phase 3, the 4th, 5th, and 6th floor of Zone B, 31 December 2021
Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District
Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,

the PRC
01951418 R TR RS RER IR 21951 81RE
BINRTE(ZH)HREC  HE 20015128318

(ZH)BRJRAR - JRBEZ 5 6F

1 January 2019 The 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 8th, 9th and 10th floor of 1 January 2019 to 630,206
Zone B, Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK 31 December 2021
Technology Park, Tangjia Community,
Fenghuang Sub-District Office, Guangming
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

201951 318 PE R RERE SRR IR N19E1A1EE
BINRTEE (=5 HRJEE 2001£1231R

£12:3:89 10
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Agreement Parties to the Agreement
fi EEE iEEE
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant No. 4 TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 15 June 2019
Lease Agreement and TK Supply Chain as tenant
MIRFHRRRE RS RIMRORI(ER%E)ERTMARE  201956/158
(FBAREA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Dormitory ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2021
Block A Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
and TK Mold (Shenzhen| as tenants
MIEFRRARESRENE  HIRROVI)(EAXT)ERIRE  0051A18
2RI RRIRACRY)
(fFBAREA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Parking ~ TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019
Space Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
and TK Mold (Shenzhen| as tenants
MIEFHEELEERR RIBROMI) (eREE)ERIRE 20191 M1E
2RI RETRACRY)
(fEBEEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Farm Land  TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019
Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
as tenant
MIEFEERIEE RS RIMROMI(ea%E)ERTRE 201951518
TR(RI (fEREEA)
Shenzhen Tangjia Plant Football  TK Technology (Shenzhen) as landlord 1 January 2019
Field Lease Agreement and TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen)
as tenant
MIEFRRRREERE  RIRROVI)(ERXT)ERIRE  20191A1R

|
R R (fERAEA)
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Date of Agreement  Leased Property

RENz

Zone B Level 7 Workshop J, Phase 3 of TK
Technology Park, Tangjia Community,
Fenghuang Sub-District Office, Guangming
District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

RERITE AREE R ERERILE
FIMRIXE(ZH)BRIRBESTE

Dormitory Block A of TK Technology Park,
Tangjia Community, Fenghuang Sub-District
Office, Guangming District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC

RERI TR RS R EF IR
RINRIREARES

Parking Space of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

hERIT AR ER SR AR R
RINATEEEN

Farm Land of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

R ATt REEERERERILE
RINRIEES

Football Field of TK Technology Park, Tangjia
Community, Fenghuang Sub-District Office,
Guangming District, Shenzhen City, the PRC

RERI TRk SR AR IR
RINRIZERRS

Term

4

15 June 2019 to
31 December 2021

20198671502
2021127318
1 January 2021 to

31 December 2021

01518182
20015128318

1 January 2019 to
31 December 2021
01951818E
2021£12731A
1 January 2019 to

31 December 2021

W1951518%
20215128318

1 January 2019 to 31
December 2021

019518182
20015128318

Monthly Rent

A#
(RMB]

(ARH)

1,719

48,802

76,200

46,400

22,000



TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics, YD Mold and TK
Supply Chain are entitled to renew the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements by notifying the landlord one month
before the expiration of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements, and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics
(Shenzhen), YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are entitled to a
right of first refusal in the renewal. Moreover, in the event
that the landlord intends to sell the subject properties during
the term of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements,
including any renewal thereof, the landlord shall inform
TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen), YD
Mold and TK Supply Chain of the intended sale in writing
and TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen),
YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are entitled to a right of first
refusal to purchase, which is deemed to be waived if TK
Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen), YD Mold
and TK Supply Chain do not accept the offer within 30 days
after receiving such notice. TK Mold (Shenzhen), TK Precision
Plastics (Shenzhen), YD Mold and TK Supply Chain are further
entitled to terminate the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease
Agreements by giving one month’s notice to the landlord
without cause. Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, being the
ultimate shareholders of TK Technology (Shenzhen), undertake
to use their best endeavour to procure TK Technology
(Shenzhen) to fulfil its obligations under the Shenzhen Tangjia
Plants Lease Agreements.

TK Technology (Shenzhen) is a company indirectly held as to
45.0% by Mr. Li, 28.0% by Mr. Yung and 27.0% by Mr. Lee.
According to the Listing Rules, TK Technology (Shenzhen) is
an associate of Mr. Li, Mr. Yung and Mr. Lee, and is thus a
connected person of the Company.

The annual rent payable to TK Technology (Shenzhen) was
determined at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties to the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements.
The independent property valuer of the Company has also
confirmed that, the terms of the Shenzhen Tangjia Plants
Lease Agreements (including the rental payable thereunder)
are fair and reasonable and the rental payable under the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements reflects the
prevailing market rate. Our directors consider that the
Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements have been entered
into on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group.

RITIHEACRYD - FTHANTE - AR
BARRTHERAENRIBERBE
HEWHEmI—EABMETERR
YIERBEHRERH - ARTEACR
) - RIIBADEZ ORI - BREA
RRIHEREEEERNNBEE - It
Hh o EEBRRRIERKE B EHE
HR(BEZBANEFNER) AHEY
X RTANEEBEASHRIEACK
)~ RTHEEVEZ ORI - ARBAR
RIHERZRERE  BERTHRACK
Y~ BTHRADEZCRIN - AREAR
RIKEBEREEELEER  HRIE
AECFRID - BTHEaEZ ORI - AR
BARRT e N EZBAME30H
NI E|EXBRL > AGREREZEEE
B - RIRACRY) » RITHFAEE
CRI - AREBEARRTIHEREES
TEETEABMT UK LERIERE
FHEERZE MEBAREMNEH - RIH
RORIDSZEBRFMREE - §EE
MFRBREAG  BHPAKKENRE
BRI R ORI RIBRYIE KB EE

ERETHEERL -

RIBBRORI) RBEETREE - S
ERFRBEEDFIMERB45.0%
28.0% K 27.0% WA A » IRIE ETH
Bl RIIBRORID AETREE - §
EERTRBEENBEA  HAEARQ
AlmRE AL o

FER RO RHE ORI &9 5 18 75 ORI
BEEBEHEHBZNE T AFHERKE
TE o ANRARIBI Y EGER TS R
RYNERBEREWENGER(BEEER
THEMNES)BATFEE - BRYIER
BEHEHBZA TNENEERKR TR
IME - HMANEZRS - RIERK
FHEHBENAEEATE R -—REBB
RRIRIEREEGRAIL °
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Pursuant to Rules 14A.81, 14A.82 and 14A.83 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement and Shenzhen Tangjia Plants Lease Agreements
(collectively the “Connected Lease Agreements”) have been
aggregated for the purposes of determining the category of
continuing connected transaction that the Connected Lease
Agreements shall fall into under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have, for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules,
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the
agreements governing such transactions on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company's
shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has
provided a letter to the Board, confirming that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions abovementioned:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iii) have exceeded the respective annual caps.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company confirms that in relation to the related party
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021, it has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for 39.3% of the Group's total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
was approximately 14.7% of the Group’s total sales. The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
were approximately 12.5% of the Group's total purchases and
the purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 3.7% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had beneficial interests in the Group's top five suppliers or
customers referred to above.

During the year, there was no material breach or non-compliance
with the applicable laws regulations by the Group.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme" in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares entered into by the
Company during the year under review or subsisted at the end of
the year.

MENRXZHFBHENRAHBBHRRME
36 °

RATHER - HE2021F12831HILFEER
BEARZERELITRAFEI4AAZTETE
THTE -

FR - AKERAATPERIGENHEE ARG
AEBHEBRTENI39.3% » MAKEHRK
EPFERENBEERORASREHERRN
14.7% - AEB AR RAREEEGENORE
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No contracts of significance were entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules.

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult an expert.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By the order of the Board
Li Pui Leung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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To the Shareholders of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of TK Group (Holdings)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 110 to 211, comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BEARAE
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong Sk 8 B 7 BiFE T » Tl IR 7 A 224

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment
of expected credit losses on trade receivables.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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Key Audit Matter

Assessment of expected credit losses on trade receivables

Refer to note 3.1(b), note 4.1 and note 18(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, gross trade receivables amounted
to HK$373,807,000, which represented approximately 13% of
the total assets of the Group. Management has estimated the
expected credit losses (“ECL") on trade receivables and a loss
allowance of HK$14,272,000 was made against the gross trade
receivables as at 31 December 2021.

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables based on
estimation about risk of default and expected credit loss rates.
Management applied judgments in making the estimation and
selecting the methodology and inputs used in the ECL calculation,
based on the customers’ settlement history, financial position of
major customers as well as forward looking information.

We considered this area a key audit matter due to the magnitude
of the balance of trade receivables as well as the significant
judgments and estimates involved in the estimation of the related
ECL.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process over the estimation of
ECL on trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty, complexity and subjectivity.

We evaluated and tested management'’s key controls in relation
to the estimation of the ECL.

We assessed the appropriateness of the ECL provisioning
methodology adopted by management based on our
understanding on the Group’s business and credit control process
and the credit risk characteristics of the trade receivables.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing analysis of
trade receivables by tracing to sales invoices and receipts.

HRETER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated the financial position of major customers
by checking to relevant information and evaluated the
appropriateness of management’s assessment of forward looking
information with reference to our understanding of the industry
and external macroeconomic data.

We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of ECL.

Based on the above, we considered that the significant
judgments and estimates made in relation to the assessment of
ECL on trade receivables were supportable by available evidence.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Siu Cheong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains/(losses) — net
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Interest income
Interest expenses

Finance income — net

Share of profit of an associate

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive income
Iltem that may be reclassified to
profit and loss:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Earnings per share attributable to the

owners of the Company
(expressed in HK$ per share)
— Basic and diluted

YA
HERAR

=5

H A YA
Hilas(BH8) — 8
HERX

TR

R
HBHA
HMBFX

BTG A — 558

IR A aNETb

B AT 154 AT 38 Rl
PSR X

ROFHEEA
FE15 5 AR R

Hith#m & Wik
AREE# 7R E B
ZHEA -
SNEHmKRITEER

FRFEREARE

AAFHEEABEER
XN (A ZRETHIE)

— EANEE

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
et FET TAET
5 2,404,398 2,033,419
7 (1,835,231) (1,500,786)
569,167 532,633

6 51,869 58,835
6 11,076 (30,761)
7 (79,252) (71,130)
7 (247,004) (254,719)
305,856 234,858

24,513 15,025

9 (6,376) (9,991)
18,137 5,034

12 527 650
324,520 240,542

10 (42,137) (30,855)
282,383 209,687

54,627 87,949

337,010 297,636

11 0.34 0.25

PA_E& Bt & 2t 3% 8 5 (R B BT B 7 — 61 B3

==
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Investment in an associate

Deferred income tax assets

Prepayments for property, plant and
equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from a related company
Deposits for bank borrowings
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Share capital

Share premium

Shares held for employee share
scheme

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity

aE

FRBEE
e G
EREEE
BIZEE

AR BETEEHES
FFABGZNEREE

REERBZIE
BEFSREE

MR - BE KRN

B

RBEE
e

85 K H A UG IR

ek YNGR/ |
RITIEENEZ S

RRHIRE

R kREFED

BEERE

R

ROTEE ARG ERS

L@

B3 (B
shiE B i 51 8l
SR L)
H At
TR E 4 A

RS A

Note
iz

13
14
15

19
12
30

17
18
36(c)
20
20
20

21
21

22
24
23

As at 31 December

M128318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
527,966 556,903
101,601 83,438
31,746 24,141
33,621 33,621
16,296 16,176
2,978 -
10,099 10,083
724,307 724,362
495,644 447,095
417,060 320,836
10,913 10,898
174,437 148,231
1,231 443
1,027,568 920,446
2,126,853 1,847,949
2,851,160 2,572,311
83,326 83,326
251,293 251,293
(10,416) (10,416)
201,232 126,026
1,096,484 944,326
1,621,919 1,394,555
ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H

1



As at 31 December

M128318
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wz FET T
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 144,940 58,435
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 23,432 19,636
Deferred income PRIEUT A 27 61,316 46,421
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFSEREE 30 35,675 40,674
265,363 165,066
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B o5 M EMENRE 28 399,202 456,370
Contract liabilities AHEE 29 263,518 245,955
Income tax liabilities FiSfiasE 25,894 7,471
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 194,229 223,800
Lease liabilities HERE 14 81,035 79,094
963,878 1,012,690
Total liabilities BEA%E 1,229,241 1,177,756
Total equity and liabilities ERENEERATE 2,851,160 2,572,311

A& HEERBREERBEM M E— G

conjunction with the accompanying notes. iE o

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

F1102211 B WA BB SRR K 202243 A
WHREZRSH M TR NIEERKRES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 110 to 211 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf. gEE o
Li Pui Leung Yung Kin Cheung Michael
R SEH
Director Director
EF EF
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Shares

held for
employee
Share Share share Other Retained
Note capital premium scheme reserves earnings Total
HEE
]
i3 R RiVGE BEZRH HthitE REEF @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THTL THTL TEL TEL TATL
Balance at 1 January 2021 RONE1A1RMESR 83,326 251,293 (10,416) 126,026 944,326 1,394,555
Comprehensive income GalE
Profit for the year ERgF - - - - 282,383 282,383
Other comprehensive income Ethirala 24 - S S 54,627 = 54,627
Total comprehensive income GakRaE - - - 54,627 282,383 337,010
Transactions with owners in their ~ EEFANEEEASH
capacity as owners: ETHRS
Employee share scheme EERHE
— value of employee services —EERBER 25 = = = 2,011 = 2,011
Dividends RE 31 - - = = (111,657) (111,657)
Transfer to statutory reserves ERDLTRE 2 - - - 18,568 (18,568) =
Total transactions with owners REFARTLRA4E - - - 20579  (130,225)  (109,646)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R0 E12R31 B ELR 83,326 251,293 (10,416) 201,232 1,096,484 1,621,919
Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020E1 B1B MK 83,326 251,293 (5,517) 21,188 841,175 1,191,465
Comprehensive income Gak#
Profit for the year EREH - - - - 209,687 209,687
Other comprehensive income LAl - - - 87,949 - 87,949
Total comprehensive income BRNGAE - - - 87,949 209,687 297,636
Transactions with owners in their ~ EEFFANEFEASH
capacity as owners: BTHRS
Acquisition of shares for employee HEE RN TEIRERR
share scheme - - (4,899) - - (4,899)
Employee share scheme [EER{EE
— value of employee services —EERBER - - - 2,011 - 2,011
Dividends RE - - - - (91,658) (91,658)
Transfer to statutory reserves HETLTRE - - - 14,878 (14,878) -
Total transactions with owners HERARTZRA4E - - (4,899) 16,889 (106,536) (94,546)
Balance at 31 December 2020 M2020E12 31 R gs 83,326 251,293 (10,416) 126,026 944,326 1,394,555

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be LA & Of i s  B) 3% B i (R B B P 5 — 0 58
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. iE o

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
HaF THxT T
Cash flows from operating activities HREKZLIBNHRERE
Cash generated from operations LEEENES 32(a) 384,348 563,437
Interest received BB 5,631 2,419
Income taxes paid EATFTEH (32,508) (47,746)
Net cash generated from operating KRBT EE A Y
activities a5 357,371 518,110
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHNREERE
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BELRE
equipment (103,524) (62,068)
Purchase of intangible assets BEBFEE (5,086) (16,449)
Payment for business combination BB 35 (11,862) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEE - JHT()IE;& R
plant and equipment FrigsIa 32(b) 2,541 1,655
Dividends from an associate KB —fElEE A FIR R E 407 -
Additions of financial assets at fair value HFBUAARBEIEAH
through profit or loss T AEENEREE (1,287,813) (1,241,008)
Disposals of financial assets at fair value HENLAREBESEAH
through profit or loss EEFFAEENEREE 1,306,886 1,253,161
Net cash used in investing activities B EHTARE S R (98,451) (64,709)
Cash flows from financing activities RERETHFNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEERBFUA 378,609 219,440
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE (315,635) (179,165)
Increase in deposits for bank borrowings #R{TfEEIiRE LN (26,206) (13,637)
Interest paid EAFE (6,376) (4,036)
Principal elements of lease payments HENRZzER&EH D 32(c) (71,898) (47,269)
Acquisitions of shares for employee T E B st 2B M (D
share scheme - (4,899)
Dividends paid AR E 31 (111,657) (91,658)
Net cash used in financing activities A EE AR S F5E (153,163) (121,224)
Net increase in cash and cash Re MRS EEWHEM
equivalents HER 105,757 332,177
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#E4KESEEY
of the year 920,446 582,878
Effects of exchange rate changes on EXRSEFHINS NIRE
cash and cash equivalents EBYHNTE 1,365 5,391
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRI|ENIESEHEY
of the year 1,027,568 920,446

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LA E& PR € % = 2 FE 2[R Ba BB 5 — HF B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. B e
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
March 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of the Company's registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company, an investment
holding company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales,
subcontracting, fabrication and modification of molds and
plastic components in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC"). As at 31 December 2021, the ultimate shareholders
of the Company are Mr. Li Pui Leung, Mr. Yung Kin Cheung
Michael and Mr. Lee Leung Yiu (collectively the “Ultimate
Shareholders”), each holding an effective equity interest of
29.78%, 18.53% and 17.87% in the Company, respectively.

On 20 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 25
March 2022.

From late January 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was rapidly
evolving globally and a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented by
the Group. Since then, the economy has been significantly
impacted. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's
sales, especially in the PRC, have recovered. The Group will
continue to pay close attention to the development of the
COVID-19 pandemic and evaluate its impact on the Group's
financial position and operation results.

RAFMN2013F3 A28 RHAEHS
AMK L RERRERAF - ARQF
=T fft 9% = BE &9 #b 4k & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
KA RBIEEERAG - EREWBER
A(GEA AR NFEEFEARHL
ME(THREDRERRRTEAGRR
& HE KT - RERERR - 12021
F12A318  RABNRKRERRBETD
REE - SEMEERFTRIBIEE (5B
R I&ERR]) - BREEERARAD
$4629.78% * 18.53% K 17.87 %M H
MRAHE R -

MR2013F12 8208 » KAFIHKRNHES
BEMARGAR AR ([BRF]) EH o

BRRBRAES  ZEFAHMBRKRT
ETT(EIT) 25

ZEAHUBRREARAEETER
202243 A 25 H FHEHE T3 -

H2020F1 AENAR - FiBEIEER IR
HEANARER - AEBER L EFRY
GREFRD — RV EEE - & &
BB BRESE - H#22021512H31H
LEFE  AEEHEE(LEERFEL
HE)BRE - AEEFEER Y@ EH
WREBEZEE Ui HEHAEENG
MAREEHEEEE I E -
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This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The
consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting
of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Compliance with HKFRS and the disclosure
requirements of HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCQ") Cap. 622.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also
requires management to exercise its judgments in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgments or
complexity, or areas where estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss which are carried at fair
value.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for
accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2021:

e Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 —
amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 B (&)

(¢) New and amended standards adopted by the (c) AREBRMEF T RLIEFTLER
Group (Continued) (&)
The application of the new and amendments to RAFEE AT NS DS

(d)

HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial position and performance for
the current and prior years and on the disclosures set

M5 mEEANEARERNARFEE
KB EFE RIS BRI A
K% F 6 B R T R Pt 51 B 3

out in these consolidated financial statements. BESEAFE -
New and amended standards and interpretations (d) EEMEERERBERBEAEE

that have been issued but are not yet effective and

REFRABITREETERR

have not been early adopted by the Group 2

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BRI EERE1655
CCHEN

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5 (revised)

CEECEIEFACHE)

Amendments to HKAS 16

FEEERFE165(EFIA)

Amendments to HKAS 37

FB G ERIFEI7H(EFTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37

BBV B HmE LR EIR

BEREGFERFE 16 REE

SEIERIFEI7THRUBFTAR)

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKFRS 16, HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 41

BB G LR F 5%
BRMEMELERE 1655
BERMBRELENEIRR
BREGFTEREA415
CCHEN)

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BN wEERE 35
CCHEN)

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RT5IB#
ZEHEBN
BHBEEN
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 1 April 2021
30 June 2021
2021496 A30H & Covid- 1918 & ZF 20214 A1 H
Merger Accounting for Common Control 1 January 2022
Combinations
HEZGH A HNEHETERE 2022F1 A1 H
Property, Plant and Equipment — 1 January 2022
Proceeds before Intended Use
M - BB KREE — BRERERE ZRIBIER 202251 H1H
Onerous contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BREH — BT HHER 2022F1 A1 H
Narrow-scope amendments (amendments) 1 January 2022
NEEEFT (BETAR) 20221 81H
Annual improvements to HKFRS Standards 1 January 2022
2018 - 2020 cycle
BEAMBRELER2018 — 20205BHAF FkiE 20221 A1H
Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
DERSER 20221 A1H

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 IREEE ()

(d) New and amended standards and interpretations (d) ERMEERERBEARBLEEH
that have been issued but are not yet effective and REREMBFET AR BET EA R
have not been early adopted by the Group REE)

(Continued)

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RT3 B#E

ZERBN

SRHBEEN

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2023

Current or Non-current
EAGTERFEVRUETAR) BABSBERRBIIFERD 2023F1H1H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of financial statement - Classification 1 January 2023
(2020) by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause

BRBEBAEHEEN(2020F) HMHHRREB - BERABHEERZFERETNEY 2023F1H1H

/\TJ\E)] SaR |
Amendments to HKFRS 17  Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BAMBMELERE175 REBE R 20231 H1H
(f&5TA)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
BRI ERE IR R BRI 20231 H1H
é-i“ B 75 S A5 42 I B 75 25 B
Z‘Eﬁl ETZS)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BB ERIESR(BFTAR) ErthEtESR 20231 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a Single Transaction
EEGERF12R(EFTA) BE-—XFEANEEKRABRBIRLETIE 20231 H1H
Amendments to HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
and HKFRS 10 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
B GHERE28RREAS REFEAPENANEEAFICHANEELESTE 55
B R E 22 R £ 1055%
(f&3T)
The Group has already commenced an assessment zl&'ilanﬂaf;x#aéﬁﬁjz%«f%ﬂ
of the impact of these new or revised standards, EH|  (BEARRERNSZ  H
amendments and interpretations, certain of which hETHAREBMNERER - B
are relevant to the Group's operations. According to ERNTIESNY L - F8H
the preliminary assessment made by the directors ZEER  BEIASRARENE /I
of the Company, these standards, amendments or o ok A R A5 HARE \gﬁ$‘il&
interpretations are not expected to have a material ABRRRTGELETAZE

impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2.2 Change in accounting policies

In the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, individual other reserve items were
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group, for easy reading and reducing voluminous details,
combined all other reserve items into one single item to
simplify the presentation of the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Comparative information for the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended 31 December 2020 has been restated to conform to
the current period presentation. This change in accounting
policies has no impact on the results, financial position and
cashflow of the Group.

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (c) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

2.2 B IS

MREE2020F12B831B IEFEHNE
HIBERERP  BHEMFEES
E2IREHEZEEER - EREE
Z2021F12A31HILFEWA 81
BHRERE AR EHEMRI TR
Wen o AEEBHAAEMHEEEE
A AE—EEE - UEa s
BEERMNES - HZE2020F12 A 31
BIEFEMNAHESESHROLE
BHEBLEEY  UFAEAHBNE
BTN o hEABERESHL TS Y
AREEBNES  FERRERESR
BERTE -

23 atRAIRERETHE

(a) BT
MEBARAAEBEHESZEHEN
FR(AELBEESR) 4%
EAXNZHREEEME 2N
SEk BHENFERBEHER
EE N EZE RS - 8
AEEERGZER - BiEf#EE
BEAEENBEE  [HEAR
E2mEA AR - HBARNIE
FIERIEZBTEEAHAR -

SEARRZENR S X5
RN OR IR R T TEH o REE
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2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(c) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in note 2.11.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

236 RAIREREE@E)

(c) FE#E

REBED DA - WEYFEK
REER - BER T AR E AR AR
SEERKRETBETAHERE
B AR R E T H At
AT AEEMsS KR
B o OB E A RIRE TS
ERBREREERRD

EAKEDEAEREANRRE
MERSN BB ERAE
= (BRE A A EE R EIE
WERIR) B - AEE A BRERE
—FEE - RIEAEERREM
ERAERB ISR -

AEEREBE NGB ZATE
ERBRW AL - RABRAA
%Iﬁézxi;{ﬁﬁ’wﬂﬂgm
BRIEZ %?ﬂﬁ\z’ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ@*‘“ﬁ
EERE  BRIAEBEREBENTT
LA;T% LM%‘ EANRR IR E

METHRREERTEZE - MU
ﬁﬁ%éﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%%% —
B o

DA%ﬁT’iii)\EEEI’J?xiéfE’JEEETEﬁ
BB EE2. 11 BTl BUSR E 1 TR (B

A o



2.4 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’'s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the:

e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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2.4 Business combinations (Continued)

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’'s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

2.5 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.
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2.6 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors who makes strategic decisions.

2.7 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). Renminbi
(RMB) is the functional currency of principal operating
subsidiaries of the Group. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$),
which is the presentation and functional currency of
the Company.

(b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
statement of comprehensive income within ‘Other
gains/(losses) — net'.
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2.7 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

e income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transaction); and

e all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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2.8 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Construction in progress is property, plant and equipment
on which construction work has not been completed and
stated at cost. Cost includes acquisition and construction
expenditure incurred, interest and other direct costs
attributable to the development. Depreciation is not
provided on construction in progress until the related asset
is completed for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over 5 years or the remaining
term of the relevant lease,
whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 years
computer equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
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2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immediately

to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing

the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘Other gains/(losses) - net’ in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Computer software

Acquired software licenses are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 3
to 10 years.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.4.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
(“CGUs") for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The CGUs
or groups of CGUs are identified at the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.
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2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of a business
combination are recognised at fair value and carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of the customer
relationships over their estimated useful lives of b
years.

2.10Research and development expenditure

Research expenditures is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new and improved products)
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use;

e management intends to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

e there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will
generate probable future economic benefits;

e adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

e the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development cost previously recognised as an expense
is not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.
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2.11Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.12Financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
be recorded in profit or loss.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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2.12Financial assets (Continued)

(b) Recognition and derecognition

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) — net together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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2.12Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

e Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses) — net. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method.

e FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI| are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on an debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’ in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gains/
(losses) — net in the statement of comprehensive
income as applicable.
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2.12Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Refer note 3.1
for further details.

2.13Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.14Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value (“NRV"). Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises direct materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
allocated on normal operating capacity. It excluded
borrowing costs. NRV is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2128 RMEE ()

(d) =&
ANEE [ DA AT IE M R AT (R o
BRACAT R &S T AMTEHGE
BB - FTERARRESEZIUR
RIEERBEE ABIEM - F2
BAMIEES. 1A T fRIE— 515 o

213EHEMT A

EAKEBRFEAEATHITHER
HHECHREBEMNEARRFEE
EENEEXER SR EERERN
BE EREENRBENREERE
REER2ZHWFEH

214128

eI R #3105 E ([ 7] 38
FEDMEZBREETR o KA
IAEFHEEE - A&+ K
ZRABREEEREMF  BEERBT
His B A R EERM X (RE
EREEENNR) ETBEREE
A - B FENZEREERB
BRPZABAEEREEEER LR
At EEENRARMGFTOHE
EMFHE -

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H

131



132

2.15Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold and service provided in the ordinary
course of business. They are generally due for settlement
within 90 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Refer note 18(a) for further information about the Group's
accounting for trade receivables and note 3.1 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.16Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with bank, other short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts.
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2.17Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company's
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share
buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until
the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,
is included in equity attributable to the owners of the
Company.

Shares held by the Bank of Communications Trustee
Limited on behalf of the Group are disclosed as shares held
for employee share scheme and deducted from the equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

L1TRARHEERD T EFENR

%)

e E

ERBBRETHRNMIIERA
FERE zn R 51 /S BT S SR IR B9 F00RL IR B
(BRBiTR)

WEMEEARBEARKRAT
B - Pl AR fE = s AR (D B 5
f 2 fRE S ENRE(BREM
BERBEFIERANCRRAEN))IE
REFRNDBEARBHEAR ANEIGE
mPHG  EEERBRMDEEREL
EBZT MREEARERES
BT ERERKRENRENER
JEEFTIERX ZRAREBAEHE
BIFFALRRRHEE AEHER

RBEITEAFERAPDREAEE
FRENBROKERSRES RN S
RENEODREEHREARRER A
FE(E Rz AP H0RR o

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H

133



134

2.18 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2.21Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the

tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax

losses.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise those temporary differences and losses.
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2.21Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and where the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current
tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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2.22Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations within “trade and other payables” in
the consolidated balance sheet.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company's shareholders after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2.23Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (award shares) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the award shares is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the award shares granted.

The grant by the Company over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiaries in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period as an increase
to investments in subsidiaries, with a corresponding credit
to equity in the parent entity accounts.

2.24Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when control of the
products has transferred, and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be
reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to sale
have been resolved. Revenue is recognised as follows:
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2.24Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods

The Group's sales mainly consist of mold fabrication
and plastics components. Revenue is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customers,
the customer has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specified location, the risks
of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

As receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Deposits received from customers are classified as
contract liabilities and then recognised as revenue
when the obligation is performed.

Modification income

Revenue from mold modification services is
recognised when control of the modified mold has
transferred. The modified mold has no alternative use
for the Group due to contractual restrictions. However,
an enforceable right to payment does not arise until
the customer has accepted the modification specified
in the contract.
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2.25Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2.27Leases (Continued)

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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2.27Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on a rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate
take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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2.27Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by
the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment
and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT
equipment and small items of office furniture.
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2.27Leases (Continued)

The Group has adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16 - Covid-
19-Related Rent Concessions from 1 January 2020. The
amendment provides an optional practical expedient
allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent
concession related to COVID-19 pandemic is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account
for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only
if all of the following conditions are met: (a) the change
in lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and (c) there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group did not early adopt Amendment to HKFRS 16 -
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021,
which extended the practical expedient to lease payments
that were due on or before 30 June 2022 and becomes
effective for the accounting period starting from 1 April
2021.

2.28Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.29Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basic
using the effective interest method.
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3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (foreign exchange risk, price risk,

cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group's financial performance. Risk management is
carried out by the senior management of the Group under
policies approved by the Board of Directors.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and RMB
is the functional currency of principal subsidiaries
of the Group. The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risks, mainly with respect to HK dollar
(“"HK$"), US dollar (“USD") and Euro dollar
("EUR"). Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the
Group. Foreign currency hedging of the Group
has been managed by the Group’s chief financial
officer (“CFO") and overseen by the Group's chief
executive officer. In accordance with the hedging
needs and the then foreign exchange situation,
the CFO would gather and analyse information
regarding various hedging instruments and
determine stop-loss thresholds. The CFO would
then obtain quotations from various banks as to
the financial instruments and then evaluate and
make a decision as to whether to enter into the
relevant hedging agreement. There is no unsettled
hedging contract as at 31 December 2021. The
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

3.1 IR EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP BRI E(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities at the respective balance sheet dates are

Bt 7 [ B B X ()

3.1 I EREZEE®)

(a) SRR (&)

(i)

SMNER iz ()
REEERBKRAH A%
BASNEHENEREEER
BEZKREEFIIWT

as follows:

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET

Assets EE
HK$ BT 10,187 72,332
UsD ETT 437,322 286,893
EUR BT 22,946 36,470
Total et 470,455 395,695

Liabilities =L
HK$ BT 54,419 81,593
Usb ETT 178,667 94,304
EUR BT 125,307 125,322
Total et 358,393 301,219

If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against the relevant foreign currencies, with all
other variables held constant, the profit before
income tax would have been higher/(lower) as

TN TR DX
&,/ T E5%  mATE it
BEEHTE  WBFEH
AR FIRE AL, OR ) 18357 0

follows: T

2021 2020
+5% -5% +5% 5%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FET FHET
HK$ BT 2,212 (2,212) 463 (463)
usD ET (12,933) 12,933 (9,629) 9,629
EUR BT 5,118 (5,118) 4,443 (4,443)
Total HBEr (5,603) 5,603 (4,723) 4,723

146

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021 4 4 4 4 4 < <«



3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

(ifi)

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price
risk or commodity price risk and the Group has
not entered into any long-term contracts with the
suppliers. Fluctuations in the price of raw materials
are usually passed on to customers.

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's interest-rate risk arises from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest-rate risk. The Group
currently has not used any interest rate swap
arrangements but will consider hedging interest
rate risk should the needs arise. If interest rate
for variable rate borrowings had been 10% higher/
lower for the year ended 31 December 2021 with
all other variables held at constant, the Group's
profit before tax would have been lower/higher by
HK$281,000 (2020: HK$404,000).

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, changes in
interest rates within an expected range had no
material impact on the interest income of cash and
bank balances.

3.1 I EREZEE®)

(a) HiEEER (&)

(if)

(iii)

1B 15
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivable and amounts due from a related
company.

(i) Risk management and Security
For cash and cash equivalents and deposits for
bank borrowings, the Group manages the credit
risk by placing all the bank deposits in state-owned
financial institutions or reputable banks which are
all high-credit-quality financial institutions.

The Group does not require collateral from the
debtors on the outstanding balances. To manage
the credit risk in respect of trade and other
receivables and amounts due from a related
company, the Group performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its debtors’ financial condition. The
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable to ensure
that the adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. Based on the historical
credit losses experienced and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors, the Group
maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts
and actual losses incurred have been within
management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group faced
concentration of credit risk as the Group's five
largest customers accounted for approximately
41% (2020: 60%) of the total trade receivables.
The Group has been taking measure to reduce the
concentration by expanding customer base.

The Group's investments in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BF 5 b R &= (4&)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

(b) FER (&)
(i) THEEZRE

The Group formulates the credit losses of cash
and bank balances, trade and other receivables
and amounts due from a related company using
expected credit losses (“ECL") models according
to HKFRS 9 requirements.

Cash and bank balances
The fair values of cash and bank balances including
deposits for bank borrowings, restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents approximate to
their carrying amount and represent maximum
exposure to credit risk.

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss was immaterial as
management considers that the counter-parties
are reputable banks and financial institutions with
high credit ratings. There is no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach in measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
corresponding historical credit losses. The
historical loss rates are then adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Group
has identified the annual real GDP growth and
annual merchandise trade balance in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

S HP BRI E(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UBEREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 P75 R B (R =& (4#)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FERM (&)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZEEEZHEE)
Trade receivables (Continued) Bl aE(E)
On that basis, the loss allowance was determined TULE%E - L8 5 EWEKIE
as follows for trade receivables: EENBBEREEHBOT
More than
1-90 days 91-180 days 180 days
Current pastdue pastdue past due Total
M8 1Z90H 91Z180H 180H @t
As at 31 December 2021 R2021E12831H
Expected loss rate L) Pk 1.05% 215%  43.77%  100.00% 3.82%
Gross carrying amount FRAE
— trade receivables (HK$'000) —ZBHRUFE(TiET) 321,784 32,928 15,828 3,267 373,807
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EERE(TET) 3,368 709 6,928 3,267 14,272
As at 31 December 2020 ®2020%12831H
Expected loss rate BHEEX 2.96% 2.60% 44.31%  100.00% 3.97%
Gross carrying amount FREGE
— trade receivables (HK$'000) —ZZEUFUE(TERL) 255,196 23,043 4,473 1122 283,834
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EERE(TET) 7,554 600 1,982 1,122 11,258

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2021 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances are presented in note 18.

R2021F12A31BESE
U R TE A JE5 18 FEE A B B ) /S
BERENERERNHES

E I
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1 I EREZEE®)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) FERR(E)
(i) REEZHEE)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to
engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a
failure to make contractual payments for a period
of greater than 1 year.

Other receivables and amounts due from a related
company

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 three-stage
approach to measuring ECL of other receivables
and amounts due from a related company. The
Group makes periodic collective assessments as
well as individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. Other receivable
comprises: prepayments and deposits, value-
added tax recoverable, advances to employees,
export tax refund receivables and others.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
Impairment on other receivables and amounts
due from a related company is measured as
12-month expected credit losses when there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit loss.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other receivables and amounts due from a related
company (Continued)

To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower

e significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same borrower

e significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group and changes in the
operating results of the borrower.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has assessed
that the ECL for other receivables and amounts
due from a related company were immaterial.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and bank balances. The Group's
liquidity risk is further mitigated through the availability
of financing through its own cash resources and the
availability of banking facilities to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows including interest elements computed using
contractual rates, or if floating based on rates at the
year-end date.

On
demand
BER
HK$'000
T
As at 31 December 2021 120215128318
Bank borrowings BIEE =
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNFIE
(excluding non-financial (EEBAERM)
liabilities) 6,043
Lease liabilities HEAE =
Total @ 6,043
On
demand
BREX
HK$'000
FET
As at 31 December 2020  A2020512831H
Bank borrowings RITIEE -
Trade and other payables B 5 K& Bt fE( 28
{excluding non-financial (EERABERN)
liabilities) 6,664
Lease liabilities HEBE -
Total &5t 6,664

3.1 I EREZEE®)

3 months
or less
=f@A
FUT

HK$'000
TER

141,787

297,220
21,045

460,052

3 months
or less
=R
FUAT

HK$'000
THIL

142,359

346,356
20,625

509,240

(c) RBEZRER

AEEZBHEERRRS RIRTT
RRBENEERDESRR -
AEENRBESRARE B
BEEBARCEREFHERESR
AR A A R1T B & LA & B BU&
EMSNER - -BEFRR &K
BYBEMENRBDE AR

TRIRBEEEABRANES
MEHI R ORISR - RAERE
HIER DM AREN SR ALE
RABRBNSERAORMAR
ERE  BREMGHLEFE
MAMERED - lHEFE - AliZ
FHEEMLE RS -

3 months Over
to 1 year 1 year Total
=@ A kel
E-F —& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
THT THET TERT
55,017 147,448 344,252
2,373 - 305,636
63,342 25,250 109,637
120,732 172,698 759,525
3 months Over
to 1 year 1 year Total
={&A iR
E—E —F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET THET
83,239 59,496 285,094
- - 353,020
61,576 21,900 104,001
144,815 81,396 742,115
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 P75 R B (R =& (4#)

(¢) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REVE SRR (&
The Group had access to the following undrawn LK%IEA#&AZ,HEEE—H%%LX—F%%
borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period: IR ERRE -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Floating rate FEEFIE
Expiring beyond one year —F1&E|H 447,563 396,640
3.2 Capital management 32EXREE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to REFEBEEARANBEZEABRERNE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going EiSELENKE D M AKREIR
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and B A A H M) E R EN =
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal AR R SENE REBEURESE
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. AR o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BEF AR EARNEE  ANEE
the Group may vary the amount of dividends paid to EERINTRENKRESEE - %
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce TH R EEENRIEERS -
debt.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing REBZEEAGBL R EEER
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by BR o Zth RTHIRIE B 585 DA RE
total equity. WmABREETE o
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3.2 Capital management (Continued)

The gearing ratio is as follows:

Total borrowings BB
Total equity B
Gearing ratio (%) BEEBBLE%)

(i)

Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities,
the Group is required to comply with the following
financial covenant:

e the ratio of earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA")-to-
Interest of the Group shall not less than 20.

The Group has complied with this covenant throughout
the year. As at 31 December 2021, the ratio of
EBITDA-to-Interest of the Group was 87 (31 December
2020: 46).

3.2

EAREE @)
AEEBELENT :

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
339,169 282,235
1,621,919 1,394,555
21% 20%

(i) EREE
BREFEEEREGRNK  ~EE
7RSI R 7538

o AREEMAME - FHE - E
N # 8 A s A ([EBITDAL)
HEE B R R EER
20 °

AEERFA—EBTIHILED
T > R2021F12H31H * K
SEMEBITDAEF BN R A
87(2020412H31H : 46) o
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3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair values of current financial assets, including cash
and cash equivalents, restricted cash, deposits for bank
borrowings, amounts due from a related company and
trade and other receivables, as well as current financial
liabilities including trade and other payables and current
bank borrowings approximate their carrying amounts due
to their short maturities. The fair value of non-current bank
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

(i) Fair value hierarchy
The Group has classified its financial instruments
into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standards.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the
reporting period.
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried
at fair value, by the levels of inputs to valuation
techniques. The inputs to valuation technigues are
categorised into three levels within a fair value
hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market
price used is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
inlevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
all the resulting fair value estimates of the Group's
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
included in level 3 during the year. For transfers in and
out of level 3 measurements see (iii) below.

3.3 A REEMAE @)

(i)
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T RAlZIETAE
MAE=E -

HZE20219F 20209124318
IEFE AEBAFENRARE
B2 B ABENS
BEZARBEGBERE I
AF=E -EHFE=-ErEnNE
AREH - F2H T i) °

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BTSRRI (E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BiERE bR EIE (@)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 A RBEME(#)

(ii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values (ii) AREEAAEENMGERMN
For unlisted equity investments, the specific valuation MIELMIRHEREMmMS © ANEE
techniques used to value financial instruments are it TEBENEEMERIN
discounted cash flow analysis. The fair values have AAEBELRENN - AR EE
been determined based on present values and the BIRREET MTARIR RS
discount rates used were adjusted for counterparty or FrHEEFEERBRMAE -

own credit risk.

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) EAEAX R T BREGABEN LD
unobservable inputs (level 3) AREEFTE(E=ZE)
There is no change in level 3 items for the year: F-EBHERAFEMEES) :

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

12HA31H 12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

Unlisted equity investments JEEMRRERE 33,621 33,621
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative

information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements.

Description Fair value as at 31 December
#a M2B3BNAAEE

2021 2020
Unlisted equity investments HK$'000 HK$'000
FLEmRERE THR ThT
Precision Robotics Limited 23,621 23,621

Precision Robotics Limited

Intelligent Precision Micro-systems 10,000 10,000
Limited
BEBHZRBRRA

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value as
follow:

e The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
value.

e The higher the net profit rate, the higher the fair
value.

There were no significant inter-relationships between
unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

3.3 A REBEMET @)

(iv) fHEBABEREQAEENER

Un-observable
inputs

TUERBARE

Discount rate
BRE

Net profit rate
#ilE
Discount rate
R

Net profit rate
FilE

%

TEBAE =R EEFEM
REBBATNAERE ABIEHE(

&Ry o

Range of inputs
(probability-weighted average)
BABBEE(HEMETLS)

2021

19% — 21%

17% — 19%

19% — 21%

22% — 24%

RO R AR
BENT -

. BEEHBE
fE -

o FMEHS

= °

2020

19% —21%

19% —21%

19% —21%

19% —21%

ARERIEL:D)

AR EER

CRAREEY

A BRI A\ BRI SR AR
BEXEARBENERAEE
%o
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3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(v) Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair values. This team reports directly to the
CFO and the audit committee (AC). Discussions of
valuation processes and results are held between the
team, the CFO and AC at least once every six months,
in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived
and evaluated as follows:

e Discount rates are determined using a capital
asset pricing model to calculate a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

e Net profit rates are estimated based on market
information for similar types of companies.
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Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgments concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Impairment of trade receivables

Management estimated the ECL on trade receivables
based on estimation about risk of default and expected
credit loss rates. Management applied judgments in
making the estimation and selecting the inputs used in
the ECL calculation, based on the customers’ settlement
history, financial position of major customers as well as
forward looking information. Details are disclosed in note
3.1(b).

4.2 Allowance for inventories

In determining the NRV of inventories, the Group would
evaluate customers’ orders, the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. If conditions which have impact on the NRV of
inventories deteriorate, additional allowances for write-
down may be required.

ARARBELHRLEMEZEERS
At kA BEREAREBRTHAR
EHEHEEME -

AR B ORRAE L AT R A E - BB B
2 SRt ERRIEREBERE
R TNl r] S B BN ™MEMKF
EAHEENBERAEFELERHE

BB AR R T R HIEf o

4.1 B 5 BWFERE

EIEECREMATEQRRRABR
EEBBRXMHEE S EYKENE
HEEBRETHE - EEHEH
it REBEEPREEBEFERA
B ARER  EEEERERFR
MEEESL TEEFPHM BRI
LA R B BE V£ B R FE A HI B - RIS I
BERHIEES.1(b) °

4.2 ZERE

REEFEMAERFE  AKE
HAEEFAE BEERETHMA
%%gﬁiMW$&ﬁﬁm%%%
c MY BEFERERFEMMN
Mm AIZEVE BRI MBUR B4 -
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4.3 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of assets with similar nature and
functions. The estimated useful lives could be changed
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
The depreciation charge will be increased when useful
lives are less than previously estimated. Write-off or
write-down will be recognised when the assets become
technically obsolete or non-strategic.

4.4 Income taxes and deferred taxation

There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination of income tax is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can be
recognised. The outcome of their actual recognition may be
different.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

4.3 Y% ~ BB R REBH A E A FH

AEERBEUEE RINENY
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4.5 Withholding income tax

Subsidiaries in the PRC are required to withhold income
tax on dividend declared out of profits earned after
1 January 2008 to the overseas immediate holding
companies of the PRC subsidiaries. The directors assessed
the cash requirement of the Group and the dividend
policy of its major subsidiaries established in the PRC,
based on the Group's business plan and financial position.
According to the assessment made by the directors, the
retained earnings generated by these subsidiaries would
be distributed in the near future and deferred tax liabilities
for withholding income tax were accrued accordingly.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors of the Group. The executive directors
review the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources and have determined
the operating segments based on the internal reports that
are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's operating
segments are aggregated into a reportable segment when
they have similar economic characteristics associated
with the production process, distribution channel and type
of customers, and satisfy all conditions and meet all the
aggregation criteria in HKFRS 8. Accordingly, the executive
directors considered the nature of the Group's business and
determined that the Group has two reportable segments: (i)
mold fabrication and (ii) plastic components manufacturing.

4.5 FRH K

A BB /B A B 56200841 A1 H &
FFT Bk B A9 3 ) [7) AR B BT 8 2 &) 3%
INEEERAREIRRKE AR
BEEHNENMEH - EFRE
REBEBFE KRB R - HA
EEMNRESFRARER P BT
R EZMH B A AR IR B BUR T AT
i c BBEESFEL NG - ZEW
BRAMEENRBREAEERT
A B A SRETT DK + IR AR FE M T RR
TEBIMGEREANELERIES

5 o

AEERTEZTRIELEREE - H
TESERASENRMRS UFEHR
BRDEER - LREARE L BER
ROABBESEELLEDH - AEBHZ
REDHBREABELEEBRE - DHERE
REFRIBBOBELEERS R R
BB IREERNFESRA A (RIFLT
BEPHEERSBRERSHA— AR
E0E e BHilt - TEFEEAKEE
75 B 1 3 7 T AN 5% B O ] S 0 8B
(VR ELBE R (i) F 2B AR B -
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The executive directors assess the performance of the HITESREBEKED I A KL EFNE
HOHRER  BYBFHLEENITNE

ERAE -

operating segments based on their revenue and gross profit
and do not assess the assets and liabilities of the operating
segments.

(@) Information of the reportable segments for the year is set

(@) NEEDBREERFINLT

out as below:

Plastic components

164

Mold fabrication manufacturing Total
BARE EBANGRE Bt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TET TEx TET FEx
Revenue KA
Segment revenue 2 EHA 822,364 797,315 1,698,373 1,333,221 2,520,737 2,130,536
Inter-segment revenue 7 EFRI A 8K
elimination (116,339) (97,117) - - (116,339) (97,117)
Revenue from external IRZEUA
customers 706,025 700,198 1,698,373 1,333,221 2,404,398 2,033,419
Segment results PEEE 191,557 191,562 377,610 341,071 569,167 532,633
Other income and other Hi AR E A
gains/(losses) — net Wz (B18)
— #H8 62,945 28,074
Selling expenses HERY (79,252) (71,130)
Administrative expenses THHAX (247,004)  (254,719)
Finance income — net BN — 58 18,137 5,034
Share of profit of an JEGEEE R A&
associate 527 650
Profit before income tax BR AT R AT 324,520 240,542
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(b) Information regarding the Group’s revenue by nature:

Sales of goods
Modification income

HE M
RGN

The Group's revenue is generated from contracts with
customers and recognised at a point in time.

Revenue of approximately HK$352,397,000 (2020:
HK$277,715,000) was derived from a single external
customer that contributing over 10% of the Group's
revenue. Such revenue is attributable to the plastic
components manufacturing segment.

Sales between segments are based on the terms
and conditions agreed by the respective segments’
management.

Information on revenue of the Group by geographical
markets, based on delivery location of the customers, for
the year is as follows:

PRC AR
South East Asia and Hong Kong R REE
Europe BN
USA EH
Others Efh

(b)

BRASEZEESDNHRAERR

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLLEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
2,321,883 1,951,086
82,515 82,333
2,404,398 2,033,419

AEENBAKRBEEFRTAN
W R B FERR

49 352,397,000 % JT ( 2020 4 :
277,715,000 7T ) AU 2R B (h A
EEBABIONWE—IIRES -
ZWMAR B EBEGREDE -

SHEMENERESBEBAR
1535 2 IR R R

REBRFERERE PR NHB
T 5E &Y 3 33 77 35 Bl 9 B A B B an
T~

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiB FHT
997,304 738,846
276,695 320,752
432,381 443,710
639,493 502,327
58,525 27,784
2,404,398 2,033,419
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(d) The non-current assets other than financial instruments d TEESBR T ARELEHBEEERN
and deferred tax assets by location of the assets are IR EEIRH B E| DI AT
shown in the following:

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
PRC Fh 654,888 663,357
Germany = 9,096 11,208
Vietnam foEa) 7,428 -
671,412 674,565

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Other income Hip g A
Government grants BT B 23,881 40,427
Sales of scrap and surplus materials HERER K TR Rt 24,807 15,918
Others Hip 3,181 2,490
51,869 58,835
Other gains/(losses) — net Hibwz /(B18) — F8
Net foreign exchange loss b B 185 e (1,582) (37,241)
Rent concessions HEER 9,152 5,327
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  MEMEBEHWE
equipment (note 32(b)) (Ha£32(b)) 2,077 1,153
Lease modification HEEE] 1,429 -
11,076 (30,761)
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Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefit expenses (note 8)
Subcontracting expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and amortisation
of intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Transportation and travelling expenses
Water and electricity expenditures
Maintenance expenses
Other taxes and levies
Operating lease payments (note 14(b))
Allowance for inventories
Advisory and legal service expenses

Security and estate management expenses

Impairment of property, plant and

equipment (note 13)
Commission expenses
Utilities and postage fees
Advertising and promotion fees
Auditors’ remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services
Impairment loss on financial assets
Custom declaration charges
Donations
Other expenses

Total cost of sales, selling expenses and

administrative expenses

HkmEFRmFEES

R R KB R RE
EERAMFA (HE8)
RIER

ME - BB MR EITEIAR

TREEENE
B R ERMAS
KEEH
HEER
Hi &
R MERRAE14)
FEEE
B RE R
RERYMHEERE
ME -~ BENMERERE
(K1#%13)
i35
HERHE
BEREEER
1% BB 27 A
— ZEART
— FEBRS
TREERESE
WEAE
B

HipFik

HEMSE - HERAXR
TR AE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2021
HK$'000
TET

(34,631)
912,109
634,715
189,391

151,645
69,647
62,963
56,156
17,955
16,189
12,332

8,948
7,831
7,811

7,145
6,986
6,142
5,351

3,611
500
2,941
2,172
1,631
12,047

2,161,487
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2020
HK$'000
TAT

(62,990)
781,781
534,232
172,015

145,380
64,714
47,453
45,183
10,506
13,681

3,846
5,203
12,862
7,261

8,385
3,293
2,993

3,013
435
6,992
1,854
2,194
16,349

1,826,635
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Wages and bonuses

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans (a)

Other social security costs

Other allowances and benefits

Share award scheme (note 25)

T& NI4T
RIRA A — ERafE3RET8l(a)

H A RACAR
H =BG Ko tg A
Bt BE DT &I (K 7E25)

(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required (a)

to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme

administrated and operated by the local municipal

government. The Group's PRC subsidiaries contribute
funds which are calculated as 10%-20% (2020: 10%-20%)
of the average employee salary for the year to the scheme.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under its defined

contribution schemes which were used to reduce the

existing level of contribution.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contributions
payable to the scheme (31 December 2020: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
570,937 497,329
18,969 11,821
28,405 18,232
14,393 4,839
2,011 2,011
634,715 534,232

AEBETBEBERARMNEEES A
b 5 TH RS B 18 I B 1R RO TE BB it
TR E c AREBEHNFENEBA
AEZEEFATHHFEMI0% 2
20% (20204 : 10% £20% ) EH
HRAM AT B -

HE20204%F %2021F12 A31H IE4E
& AEBENELUE FEHRE
218 T H A AR BRKIR B Ay
FOKFE o

MR2021%F12A318 @ AEBEH &
Zar 2l e R1E (2020412 A 31
H:4E)-



(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEBZEFHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest REE AEBREZESTMALT
in the Group for the year include four (2020: four) directors BIEMA (20204 : WH)EE -
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in & 2 &K 5E39FT B REY D AT o
note 39. The emoluments payable to the remaining one FN - EBETESH—R(20209F 1 —
(2020: one) individual during year are as follows: H)EREEHMA THFBNT ¢

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, share EABE « E=28f

award scheme, other allowances and [ in d2@hET &l - E ARG
benefits in kind KBNS 2,066 1,695
Discretionary bonuses B TEAL 1,585 1,587
Contribution to pension scheme RIRETBI LR 18 18
3,669 3,300
The emoluments paid to this individual fell within the MZALTZARBES N T 585

following bands:

Number of individuals
ZEATEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MALEE

2021 2020
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) M&AE R GBT)
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 723,500,000 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,00078 7T 1 -
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Interest income:
— Bank deposits

— Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Finance income

Interest expenses:
— Bank borrowings
— Lease liabilities (note 14)

Finance costs

Finance income — net

Current income tax
— Hong Kong profits tax
— PRC corporate income tax

Total current tax expense

Deferred income tax
— Hong Kong profits tax
— PRC corporate income tax

Total deferred tax benefit

Income tax expense
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FBUA
— RITFHK

— URRBEFEBEEES

FPABREMEREE
LIRS PN
MBFX
— R®RITEE
— HERE(HE14)
BURIDEN

AW — F

BIERPT 1SR

— BENEH

— PELEMER
B A B 18 B = 4 R
EXEFTST

— BANEH

— PR RMSH
I SE B TR 25 4R

FRSBiRMX

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A318LLEE

2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,440 2,872
19,073 12,153
24,513 15,025
(2,814) (4,036)
(3,562) (5,955)
(6,376) (9,991)
18,137 5,034

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TET
18,673 13,5660
32,258 21,958
50,931 35,518
(109) (1,089)
(8,685) (3,674)
(8,794) (4,663)
42,137 30,855



The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.

No provision for income tax in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI") has been made as the Group has no income assessable
for income tax in BVI during the year (2020: Nil).

Under the current Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance, from
the year of assessment 2018/2019 onwards, the subsidiaries
in Hong Kong are subject to profits tax at the rate of 8.25% on
assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000, and 16.5% on any part
of assessable profits over HK$2,000,000.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") is provided on the
assessable income of entities within the Group incorporated in
the PRC, calculated in accordance with the relevant regulations
of the PRC after considering the available tax benefits. The
applicable CIT rate is 25% (2020: 25%). Certain subsidiaries
of the Group were recognised as “New and High Technology
Enterprise” and enjoy a preferential CIT rate of 15%.

According to the CIT Law, a withholding income tax of 10%
will be levied on the immediate holding companies outside
the PRC when their PRC subsidiaries declare dividend out of
profits earned after 1 January 2008. The immediate holding
companies of certain PRC subsidiaries have obtained Hong
Kong tax resident status, and a lower 5% withholding income
tax rate is applied.

ARARNHAEHSEMA LS —HER
RERRA BRLBNFA=HEME
B o

HRANEERNFERNERBRE LRSI &
FERATIS UL A~ I EEHR R B BT &L
BB PTIS A (20205 « &) -

BIEE R BEBH KM - 52018/2019
RIEFER + BAEWERF2,000,0007
7T LA T A FE SR B 0 A1 128,25 % B K B AR
FIBHL - 2,000,000 7T A _EHY 1] &
RBUE I 16.5% T REAFNEH -

PEMCEMEH([PRCEMER])
DERASEBEBE TR EEMA I ES
EEMERMBAFELEE - ERTR
AESHRIEESEREREMNERE
RatE - BACEMBHBER25%
(2020%F : 25%) - "EBZ A THEB A
AIWRES [ SFEMEEIWTEZE15%
WEEMSREBRBIX -

BIBDEFRGETE  ERBEEIIEER
f& A & #Y A B ff B8 A /17 20084F1 A1 H
BB TR EN P EIRRE - RIS
ZEQNBBW0% MBS - 5T
FREMNBARMNERZERAREESSR
BRUE R & 15 W 3725 % H AR B R 40 4
TEHFEE
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The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs BLAS & B B AT 15 B B s A S A A9 B 18

from the theoretical amount that would have arisen using the THEEmMEEAANEERZMNNERFTE
main statutory tax rate applicable to profit of the Group due to ATEMERAENERCBETEER ¢

the following:

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Profit before income tax R B 45 350 A& A 324,520 240,542
Tax calculated at corporate income B25% M EAMEHMMETER
tax rate of 256% THIE 81,130 60,135
Effects of: TISENZE
— Different tax rates applied — RATEBE (31,617) (23,301)
— Income not subject to tax — BARBBRA (994) (1,675)
— Accelerated deduction of research and ~ — 12 8 B inzt30k
development expenses (12,308) (7,482)
— Effects of tax rate change on — HEREHEHELEHIED
deferred tax -z 1,446 -
— Tax losses not recognised — RERBIEERE 3,372 1,728
— Expenses not deductible for tax — NAHIF X 995 1,224
— Under provision in prior years — BAFERETR 113 1,267
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — FRERIBAERZ
tax losses TIEE 8 — (1,035)
42,137 30,855
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(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the year excluding shares held for

employee share scheme (note 22).

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company (HK$'000)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares issued (thousands)

Basic earnings per share (HK$)

(a) EAK

1508 2 2 B R 79 DA 2K 9F B R A
AFEEHTHBR T B3R A
B 3 B A 2 AR5 (B EE22)) o
TR -

Year ended 31 December

BZEZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
PIN/NEIE =Ny gl
(F#&T) 282,383 209,687
BB T @A A INE 5 R
(Fh%) 830,328 830,817
FRERBFGET) 0.34 0.25

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share approximates basic earnings
per share for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
as the impact of dilutive potential shares is immaterial.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has 43.01%
equity interest in Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro, S.L., which
is an unlisted company incorporated and operating in Spain.
Its principal activities are the provision of mold modification
services in Europe.

The carrying amount of this equity-accounted investment has
changed as follows:

At the beginning of the year RFEH]
Profit for the year F A5 K
Dividends paid ERRE
At the end of the year RER

The associate is a private entity and no quoted price is available.

(b) #58

REE2021F 52020128318 1t

FE SREFRFESRELR

FARBAER @ HERBEEER S
SEEY -

20214 & 20205612 A31 8 « &"&H
% & Motlles i Matrius Fisas Navarro,
S.L.243.01% /% - Z AR AR
AR REENIELTAR - EXE
X7 AR BUN R E BE MR -

SN2 A BB IR A RS (B
T

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
16,176 15,526
527 650
(407) -
16,296 16,176

ZBERPRLEER  WERE -
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Furniture,

fixture and
Leasehold Plant and computer Motor Construction
Improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BE - REBR
HENEEE BERMSE EMRE RE ERIE ait

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

Year ended 31 December 2021 & 22021512 F31H

IH5E

Opening net book amount FOREFE 70,821 457,927 7,282 152 20,721 556,903
Currency translation differences  JMEBFITEER 1,646 11,893 58 3 660 14,260
Additions RE - - 1,441 1,961 100,100 103,508
Acquisition of business (note 35) Wi £ (#i3£35) - 4,751 42 = = 4,793
Transfers B 25,920 63,388 - - (89,308) -
Disposals (note 32(b)) HE(H232(b)) - (436) (28) - - (464)
Impairment (i) S - (7,145) - - - (7,145)
Depreciation charge FEIM (32,000) (107,031) (4,409) (449) = (143,889)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 66,387 423,347 4,392 1,667 32,173 527,966
At 31 December 2021 202146124318
Cost B 234,985 1,085,311 45,722 7,653 32,173 1,405,844
Accumulated depreciation and ~ BHHERFE

impairment (168,598) (661,964) (41,330) (5,986) - (877,878)
Net book amount EEE 66387 423,347 4392 1,667 32,173 527,966

Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020%12 4310

IHFE

Opening net book amount FNERFE 80,818 466,231 8,201 782 36,246 592,278
Currency translation differences  SMEREZHFEZE 3,175 23,341 268 8 2,279 29,071
Additions NE - - 3,640 - 71,157 74,797
Transfers R 18,370 70,591 - - (88,961) -
Disposals e (5) (476) (2) - - (483)
Depreciation charge FEIM (31,537) 101,760) (4,825) (638) - 138,760)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 70,821 457,927 7,282 152 20,721 556,903
At 31 December 2020 12020128318
Cost B 207,407 1,018,345 45,051 6,049 20,721 1,297,573
Accumulated depreciationand 2 TERFE

impairment (136,586) (560,418) (37,769) (5,897) - (740,670)
Net book amount REFE 70,821 457,927 7,282 152 20,721 556,903
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Depreciation charges were included in the following categories
in the profit or loss:

B HP RN E(E)

13 Y% - BERRE @)

FrEHET AR TIIRER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHET
Cost of sales SHE AR 125,595 117,136
Administrative expenses THHAX 18,196 21,483
Selling expenses HERSY 98 141
143,889 138,760

(i)  The amount mainly represented full impairment loss for specialised
machineries due to the termination of a plastic components manufacturing
project relating to a specific product in December 2021. The whole amount
was recognised as cost of sales for the year (2020: Nil).

14 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASES

(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

(i)  Z&BEEEE2021F 127 FB BEEERNF
SBAA (R TE B AR UL T A8 B R 2R A
Ei18 - 252 SARF NI R BIHEK A
(20204 : #) -

14 EREEEREE
(a) REEEBEREI ZEH

As at 31 December

M128318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
— Properties — W E 101,601 83,438
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current Mkl 81,035 79,094
Non-current FERED 23,432 19,5636
104,467 98,630

Pk e e RTRE (ER) BRAE 202155
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(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (Continued)

The Group leases various offices, warehouses, equipment
and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 6 months to 8 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability when they are not short-term
and not for low-value assets. Additions to the right-of-
use assets during the year were HK$92,456,000 (2020:
HK$1,635,000).

(b) Amounts recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

(a) REEBBRER 2@

AEEEEZERAE AE R
BRER - FELHNBEH—REEH
R R61EA =85 -

MBI ENEEERALHE LR
TR R AR - B HAEAPTF
HEEEMEAERSI  BEHH
I E e ARG - HEEEXT
A REE B ERm o

W ETBETEEEEEE 8l
WRAFEREEEREEREE - NA
FENEFAEEE2,456,0007%8 T
(2020%F : 1,635,000/ 7T) °

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FHEEENTES D
assets (note 7) (H1a7)
— Charged to cost of sales — T ABEER A 53,855 51,655
— Charged to administrative expenses  — st AfTHBFIX 15,792 13,059
Expense relating to short-term and low- EEHLEKEBEELEEHRE
value assets leases (note 7) MR (A7)
— Charged to cost of sales — T ABEER A 10,663 3,514
— Charged to administrative expenses  — st AfTHBFI 1,669 332
Rent concession (note 6) MEER(AZ6) 9,152 5,327
Lease modification (note 6) MEEsT(hite) 1,429 -
Interest expense (note 9) BRI (H5F9) 3,562 5,955
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(c) The total cash outflow for leases were as follows:

Principal elements of lease payments HENZK 2K IHD

Interest portion of lease payments MENRZFEE D

Short-term and low-value assets leases EHIRIEEEBEMNK
payments

(d) Covid-19-related Rent Concession

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions. Rent
concessions totalling HK$9,152,000 have been accounted
for as negative variable lease payments and recognised in
other gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year (2020: HK$5,327,000),
with a corresponding adjustment to the lease liabilities.

(c) HENBREMHABENT ¢

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLLEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET TAET
71,898 47,269
3,662 7,590
12,332 3,846
87,792 58,705

(d) Covid-19/HEEMIFE € B IR

REBEHMBEREKHEN
Covid- 19 M A ER KA AT 17
BEHEE » A 3£9,152,000/8 7T (2020
% : 5,327,000% ) A9 FE & Z Rk A
BREHENRARRRAFEN
BHGERERTPOEMKE (&
B) - FEER InHEEaEEY
EERAEE -

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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Year ended 31 December 2021
Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions

Acquisition of business (note 35)
Amortisation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2021
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions

Amortisation charge

Disposals

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2020
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

220215128310 LEE
FMRAEFE
INERRITEZR

NE

Wi R (Hz35)

BET

FRREFE

20215124311
5%
Rt

SREFE

B22020512A31ALEE
FMREFE
INERRNEZE

NE

B

)=

FREAFE
20205128318
XA

Rt

SREFE
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Computer
software
EREH
HK$'000
TET

23,242
599
5,086

(7,517)

21,410

60,851
(39,441)

21,410

13,010
422
16,449
(6,620)
(19)

23,242

54,091
(30,849)

23,242

Customer
relationships

EFR%
HK$°000
TER

98

3,084
(239)

2,943

3,182
(239)

2,943

Goodwill
wE
HK$'000
TER

899
136

6,358

7,393

7,393

7,393

821
78

899

899

899

Total
it
HK$'000
TER

24141
833
5,086
9,442
(7,756)

31,746

71,426
(39,680)

31,746

13,831
500

16,449

(6,620)
(19)

24,141

54,990
(30,849)

24,141



Amortisation charges were included in the following categories
in profit or loss:

Administrative expenses THHAX
Cost of sales HE A

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in TK Mold Germany GmbH (“"TKMG") in 2014 and the
silicone business from Techco Silicone & Technology Co., Ltd.
(*Silicone Business”) in 2021.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on value-in-use calculations. The calculation uses pre-tax cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts prepared by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated
growth rates stated below.

B HEt AR NIIRER

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx TAT
7,517 6,620
239 -
7,756 6,620

72 F 2014 F W BE TK Mold Germany
GmbH ([ TKMG ]) #7100% f% 7~ # 25 &2
202V FHBREMHESEBRUEERA
AIMEBES([HEBER D MESE -

ReEABU 2z KNSR IREER
BEAEIAEE - %t EREEEE
FERRERFHEOT BN - £3
BAIR &R EFAEL - BB R FHE
MRS REDER T XARHEETERE

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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The following table sets out the goodwill and key assumptions
used for value-in-use calculation for those CGUs that goodwill

allocated to:

TREIBARAEZF

EOEmENR

CELBUNERBEENHEREZR

.

o
Silicone
Business TKMG
EBXE® TKMG
31 December 2021 2021%12H31H
Goodwill net book value (HK$'000) EERIEFE(TEL) 6,358 1,035
Net profit margin (%) FFIE(%) 6% 9%
Revenue growth rate (%) g A8 R 2R (%) 10% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) FERTARER R (%) 9% 16%
31 December 2020 2020F12H31H
Goodwill net book value (HK$'000) EEREFE(TET) NA i A 899
Net profit margin (%) TFRE (%) NA “~iE 7%
Revenue growth rate (%) A R R (%) NA i@ 2%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) T ATALE IR (%) NA “~3# F 16%

RERETRENGR  ARARESFR
RBA R ER (20204 : &) °

The directors of the Company consider that no impairment
charge was required after performing the impairment
assessment for the year (2020: Nil).

T AKBEEREREEE N GETE
1K10% - AEBE DR ERERE -

If the estimated future cash flows had been 10% lower
than management’'s estimates, the Group would still have
recognised no impairment loss.

iR B3R RIZIN2% B - AR B IS HER L
ERERRE -

If the discount rate had increased 2% points, the Group would
still have recognised no impairment loss.
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Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
— Trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and
tax recoverable)
— Restricted cash
— Deposits for bank borrowings
— Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities
Liabilities measured at amortised cost
— Trade and other payables
(excluding non-financial liabilities)
— Bank borrowings
— Lease liabilities

The Group’'s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.

ERMEE

RESBRAGTENEREE

— B 5 REMBNRFIA
(T EEENKIER
AR EIRIR)

— XRFRE

— RITEENZRSE

— RELBLFEY

AARBEFELEZFHFA

BamERMEE

TRAE

RERKATENRE

— B 5 MEMBENIR
(TREFERER)

— RITEE

As at 31 December

M12831H8
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
365,040 277,760
1,231 443
174,437 148,231
1,027,568 920,446
33,621 33,621
1,601,897 1,380,501
305,636 353,020
339,169 282,235
104,467 98,630
749,272 733,885

NN

AEERESH T ERBAAENSZIR
BRI M 3T & i o RIRE HARAAE
MBEAEERRA LEZESRMEEN
fREE -

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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Raw materials EAE

— At cost — JRRRAN

— ARV — WA B RFE
Work in progress AR

— At cost — IRER A

— At NRV — RAIERFE
Finished goods B &

— At cost — B

— AtNRV — REUBRHE

As at 31 December

The movements of allowance for write-down are analysed as

follows:
At beginning of the year F1
Currency translation difference INERARITEER
Allowance for write-down, net WOR R F R
At end of the year FR

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales for the year
was HK$845,835,000 (2020: HK$680,630,000).

The Group reversed HK$1,928,000 of previous inventory write-
down in 2021 (2020: HK$1,267,000), as the Group sold the
relevant goods that had been written down to independent
customers at prices above NRV. The amount reversed has
been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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M12831H8
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
49,093 25,960
643 1,408
296,288 323,145
42,960 27,509
105,053 68,782
1,607 291
495,644 447,095

HORBERB AT -

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET
14,444 8,188
662 1,053
8,948 5,203
24,054 14,444

AAFABEEREAZFEXNLR B
845,835,0007% 7t (20204 : 680,630,000
BT °

AN 5= B 17X 2021 4 £ [ 5T A 17 B MOR
1,928,000/% 7T (20204 : 1,267,000/
7T) - YRR A KB E MO AR B R o
UERAERFENEREETELE
P o BEREDFASHEERERD
[SHEMA]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERERMF(E)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18 B R H MW FRIR

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT T
Trade receivables (a) & 5 fE W 5kIA (a) 373,807 283,834
Less: allowance for impairment B R ERE (14,272) (11,258)
Trade receivables, net B 5 EWGIR TR 359,535 272,576
Export tax refund receivables H 3R T FE U s 4,608 13,629
Prepayments and deposits (b) TN RIBRIES () 42,247 27,054
Value-added tax recoverable ] Y [B] 1% (F 5 5,165 2,393
Advances to employees BlEE BN 3,675 3,650
Others HAth 1,830 1,634
417,060 320,836

(a) Trade receivables (a) B BWFIA

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables are

denominated in the following currencies:

BHRUKEZREENATIER

S -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHxT FHET
UsD ETT 274,207 232,963
RMB AR 86,482 39,742
EUR BT 12,284 11,024
Others Hi 834 105
373,807 283,834

> > > > > > >

RTEE (2) BRAR 2021 F3K
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(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

The credit period granted to customers is generally
between 30 and 90 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables from the date of sales is as follows:

Less than 3 months
More than 3 months but
not exceeding 1 year

More than 1 year

=EANA

HBB=1EA1E
BB —F

—F A E

The Group’s sales are made to various customers. While
there is concentration of credit risk within a few major
customers, these customers are reputable and with good

track record of payment.

Movements for the Group’s allowance for impairment of

trade receivables are as follows:

Opening loss allowance at 1 January

Increase in loss allowance
recognised in profit or loss during
the year

Receivables written off during
the year as uncollectible

Currency translation differences

Closing loss allowance at
31 December

(a) EZ WA (&)
EFREFNEERBEN F30E90
Bzl - ZES5REWRIEEHES A
FRHERER DT T -

As at 31 December
MW12831H8
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
344,310 255,196
28,132 27,804
1,365 834
373,807 283,834
AEEMHEEDRATRZEEEL -

EREERRETIRETEIER
FrEZEEFPEEREABRER
SV BN EARRCER ©

KEBZE H RN
EJ N

TR H) R (B B s

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
W1 A1TBMETIESERE 11,258 4,361
REERBEER 2 EIBEE
0
2,941 6,992
ANEE A S M2
JE W SR IE - (144)
INERRITEEZR 73 49
R12 8318 2 BiREBERE
14,272 11,258

(b) Prepayments and deposits mainly represent prepayments

for purchases of raw materials.
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Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include the

following:

Non-current assets
Unlisted equity investments (a)
— At beginning and end of the year

Current assets

Wealth management products (b)
— Beginning of the year
— Additions

— Interest income recognised in profit

and loss
— Disposals

End of the year

(a) Fair value measurements

BEIAAABEAEEREZES AR
MEREERRE TSR

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
FRBEE
FEETHARIER & (a)
— RETRFR 33,621 33,621
REBEE
B EEEE Qb
— &9 - _
— RE 1,287,813 1,241,008
— REEERZFEMRA
19,073 12,153
— e (1,306,886) (1,253,161)
FR - -

For information about the methods and assumptions
used in determining fair value of the unlisted equity

investments, please refer to note 3.3.

(b) The wealth management products were placed in banks in
the PRC for cash management purposes and with effective
interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 3.9% (2020: 2.4% to
3.6%) per annum and mature within six months.

Cash and bank balances (a)
Less: deposits for bank borrowings (b)
Less: restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Be RIRITHEER ()
o IRITEE MRS (D)
o SR BIR S

RBekReEEY

(a) R AEEFE

EHEETIFELMRBREAAEEAE
FIERATERBRNER - F28
Bf5E3.3 o

(b) BHERDIFERFBHARIT - 1F
ReBERAE  BERENENT
2.0% £3.9% (2020 F : 24% &
3.6%) + WHISE A R E|E] -

As at 31 December

M128318
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
1,203,236 1,069,120
(174,437) (148,231)
(1,231) (443)
1,027,568 920,446

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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(a) The cash and bank balances are denominated in the

following currencies:

RMB
usD
EUR
HK$
Others

NS
%5
BT
oo
A

(b) As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings amounting to
HK$123,340,000 (2020: HK$123,760,000) were secured by
bank deposits of HK$174,437,000 (2020: HK$148,231,000)

(note 26(a)).

Authorised

As at 1 January 2020,
31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021

Issued and fully paid

As at 1 January 2020,
31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021

(@) All shares issued rank pari passu with each other.

EE

720201 718 »
20205128318 &
2021124318

BERTRER

20201 718 »
2020512A318 &
20214128318
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Number of
ordinary shares
EERHE
thousands

i

2,000,000

833,260

(a) HERRITHEBRATIIERFHE :

As at 31 December

MW12831H
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
1,019,318 916,571
163,115 53,930
10,662 25,446
9,939 72,227
202 946
1,203,236 1,069,120

(b) 72021 F£12 A31 H A #H
123,340,000 T MY SR 17 & & (2020

£ : 123,760,000 3 7T ) J5 LA 4R 47
£ 3% 174,437,000 % Jr ( 2020 4F
148,231,000 7 7t ) 1& & 38 (B &%
26(a)) °
Nominal Share
value premium Total
A REBEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Titn T T
200,000
83,326 251,293 334,619

AR BTN BRI Z AR E s



Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE

2021 2020
Number of Total Number of Total
shares consideration shares  consideration
BHEE BRE RingE BRE
thousands HK$'000 thousands HK$'000
Th TER Fik THEL
Opening balance as at 1 January %1 A1 74 4% 2,932 10,416 1,154 5,517
Acquisitions BE - - 1,778 4,899
Balance as at 31 December K2R3 BRI &% 2,932 10,416 2,932 10,416

The Group acquires the Company’s shares through its trustee,
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee"), for
the Share Award Scheme (note 25). The total consideration
paid for acquisitions of these shares is presented as a
deduction from equity attributable to owners of the Company.
These shares are held by the Trustee for the purpose of
granting shares to be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme.

AEEEBEZTARBRITETAR
RE(TRFEADBEARR RO BREK
fn BB A8 (FH3E25) - BEME AR
BL2JRBARAEE AREEZEDT
1k - ZFERMNBAZTEARERND ZE
AR LR BB MR A -

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

At 1 January R1A1H 944,326 841,175
Profit for the year F A& 282,383 209,687
Dividends paid (note 31) ERIRE(HaE31) (111,657) (91,658)
Transfer to statutory reserves (note 24(a)) R ETF R (H1E24(a) (18,568) (14,878)
At 31 December ®W12H31H 1,096,484 944,326
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Statutory

reserves

EERE

HK$'000

THT

At 1 January 2021 20211818 112,467
Share-based payment expenses LRI AR 7 (3B % =
Transfer to statutory reserves (a) BEZEFHiE ) 18,568
Currency translation differences  INERRIFTEER -
At 31 December 2021 120215128310 131,035
At 1 January 2020 #2020F181A8 97,589
Share-based payment expenses AR ABER 7 HHHY -
Transfer to statutory reserves BEZEATRE 14,878
Currency translation differences  SNERRFEEZR -
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12831H 112,467

(a) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group should make
appropriation of not less than 10% of its net income after
tax to a statutory reserve. Further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated statutory reserve is 50% or more
of its registered capital. Upon approval from the board of
directors, the statutory reserves can be used to offset
accumulated losses of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group.
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Shares-based Currency

payments translation

reserve reserve Total
ARG BER

ZHRRE B i G @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FiE5 FiE5 FE7
3,250 10,309 126,026
2,011 - 2,011
- - 18,568
- 54,627 54,627
5,261 64,936 201,232
1,239 (77,640) 21,188
2,011 - 2,011
- - 14,878
- 87,949 87,949
3,250 10,309 126,026

(a) EEMME

REFEMEBERNIER  AKE
#) BB B B FE R EL B AR F IR
TAORI0%BIEEATERE - B Rt
AERBED EFMEAR0% K
ALK ATETTRERGE T &
o REEQUMER  EERBEA
AREFEARENFENBRRZ
R -



The share-based compensation expense recognised during the
year for the Share Award Scheme was HK$2,011,000 (2020:
HK$2,011,000).

The Company adopted a share award scheme on 25 February
2019 (the “Share Award Scheme"”) as means to recognise the
contribution by the Group's personnel and to provide them
with incentives to retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group. Pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme, the vesting period of the awarded shares is 5 years
from their respective grant dates.

Fair value of the awarded shares granted represents the
market value of those awarded shares at their respective grant
dates.

The Group planned to use the shares held for employee share
scheme to award the grantees of the Share Award Scheme
(note 22). No share has been vested since the establishment of
the scheme.

Movements in the number of awarded shares are as follows:

At 1 January M1A18
Granted B
At 31 December MW12H31H8

BEAD SE B 5T 8 N ARER O ARR (D A E
i BRI X 52,011,000 7T (20204
2,011,000/ 7T) °

AKARR2019F 2 525 A AR D 2 E)
FTEI(TIRGD SRENET 8l ]) - EARIAE
BAEFMEERMURREZEEHEERS
AAEENFELERBEREELERM
BRI - RERMDRETE - RERH D
HRHAS B A BEEEF -

P RE D A 2 (BIEE % F 2R
BORESERGBAMZME -

AEEFEERARERRNAEFEN
Rt B2 B B £ B2 B =t 81 (MY 5£22) By IR
Ao BRMGFHEIAR  BIERHCES

P BB ET BIR0 BB g T ¢

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31ALLEE

2021 2020
2,932,000 1,154,000
- 1,778,000
2,932,000 2,932,000

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

BTSRRI ()
25 EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)

Awarded shares granted and outstanding have the following
grant dates and vest dates with zero exercise price:

25 e E R 195+ &l &)

BEREREARITEEBRNAE THE L
FHEEBEY  THRERT :

Number of Number of Number
shares shares of shares
Grant date Vest date granted awarded outstanding
2R ®E ) RAT
RHEBH BEAH RHEE BH#E i 4=
31 January 2019 31 January 2024 1,154,000 - 1,154,000
20191 H31H 2024F1H31H
20 January 2020 31 January 2025 1,778,000 - 1,778,000
202041 H20H 20251 H31H
Total 2,932,000 - 2,932,000
it

The Group has to estimate the expected retention rate of the
share award scheme in order to determine the amount of
share-based compensation expenses charged to profit or loss.
As at 31 December 2021, the expected retention rate was
assessed to be 100%.

26 BORROWINGS

AEE AN RE T EIMTERRE T
X PEFBBENBRONARG AER
HERL S5 - N2021F12H318 » &
HBRFREFTEAE100% °

26 BE

As at 31 December

MW12H318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FET
Non-current JEENER
Bank borrowings — unsecured IRITEE — SR 215,829 158,475
Less: current portion of non-current W IERNERE B 2 RE S
borrowings (70,889) (100,040)
144,940 58,435
Current BN HA
Bank borrowings — secured (a) SR1TIEE — Bk a) 123,340 123,760
Current portion of non-current borrowings JEENERE & 7 8 Z8H 70,889 100,040
194,229 223,800
Total borrowings BERE 339,169 282,235
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(@) As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings amounting to
HK$123,340,000 (2020: HK$123,760,000) were secured by
bank deposits of HK$174,437,000 (2020: HK$148,231,000)

(note 20(b)).

(b) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated

in the following currencies:

HK$
usb
EUR

oo
5
BR7T

(c) The exposure of the borrowings to interest-rate changes
and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet

date is as follows:

Borrowings at floating rates
6 months or less

TR EEE
61E A AR

(a) ® 2021 12 A 31 H ' A &
123,340,000 7 & ( 2020 4
123,760,000 7T ) R SR 1T & B T3 A
R 17 17 3% 174,437,000 7 7T (2020
4 : 148,231,000 7T ) fEH 3 (B 7E
20(b)) °

(b) EEMEREER NIEHE -

As at 31 December

M12A318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
50,000 75,860
165,829 82,615
123,340 123,760
339,169 282,235

) REEABEAN RESEHY
FEBHEBRRAHEHTED N
T

As at 31 December

M12831H8
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
339,169 282,235

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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(d) The borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year 1 AR
Between 1 and 2 years 18229 R
Between 2 and 5 years 2Z5F A

(e) The effective weighted average interest rates at the
balance sheet date are as follows:

Bank borrowings denominated in: AR B| S ERRITE
HK$ BT
UsD ETT
EUR BX T

The amount represented various grants by local government
authorities in the PRC. The movements in deferred income on
government grants are as follows:

Opening balance as at 1 January M ATEEE R
Granted Esdu

Recognised in the profit or loss RBRER
Currency translation differences INERRITEZR

Closing balance as at 31 December W12 A31 B HIR &8
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(d fEEARATHRAEE

As at 31 December

M12H318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
194,229 223,800
85,889 48,360
59,051 10,075
339,169 282,235

e) REERBRAIANER NEFY
F=EWT -

As at 31 December

g

M12831H

2021 2020
1.20% 2.29%
1.22% 1.37%
0.19% 0.59%

ZRRETEENBRARERLNZ A
B o BT BREW AR ZE ST

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021
HK$'000
TER

46,421
26,498

(13,306)

1,703

61,316

2020

HK$'000

THTT

36,442
18,210
(10,970)

2,739

46,421



As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBxT FHEIT
Trade payables (a) 2 5 e FKIE (a) 288,192 335,321
Wages and staff welfare benefits payable FENTENREERT 84,813 97,849
Accrual for expenses and other payables (b)  FE5TEI sz }2 H & {5 50 3& (b) 15,071 17,699
Contingent consideration (note 35) SRRIE(H15#35) 2,373 -
Other taxes payable H A SR8 8,753 5,501
399,202 456,370

(a) Trade payables were denominated in the following (a) EZERNRBATIEEFE
currencies:
As at 31 December

®12A31H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
RMB AR 268,861 316,337
UsSb x£T7T 12,838 11,689
HK$ BT 4,419 5,733
EUR & T 1,967 1,662
Others HAh 107 -
288,192 335,321

B o RN RERE R,/ REE KA
HIMERER DTN ¢

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the goods/
services receipt date is as follows:

As at 31 December

R12H31H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
0 - 90 days 0%90H 217,922 261,677
91 - 120 days 91%120H 40,168 49,783
121 — 365 days 121£2365H 24,486 19,951
Over 365 days Hi®365H 5,616 3,910
288,192 335,321
(b) The amounts mainly represented accruals for commission b) ZFBXERRLER  ZERB
fees, professional service expenses, utilities and other MY  AEEFEEZEREMENRIE
payables. REETEA o
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Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
payments made by customers related to contracts with
customers while the underlying goods are yet to be provided.
The increase in contract liabilities from 31 December 2020
was mainly due to the growth of the Group’s business.

Costs incurred to obtain a contract was not recognised as
asset because the period of amortisation is less than one year.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates
to carried-forward contract liabilities for sales of goods was
HK$197,537,000 (2020: HK$175,887,000).

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
sales orders on hand that are partially or fully unsatisfied
as at 31 December 2021 was HK$918,286,000 (2020:
HK$925,172,000).

Management expects that 97.6% (HK$896,578,000) of
the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance
obligations as of 31 December 2021 will be recognised as
revenue during the next reporting period. The remaining 2.4%
(HK$21,708,000) will be recognised in the 2023 financial year.
The amount does not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

AEBERNEHNEETERHARRHER
P& FIAR R M 7 & B 5 P A X A RO FE
FUHEA  B20205F 128318 A4
AEENEEERAEEEBEE -

ERSANWMELZRALBERSE
B JAREFEBEIR—F -

A ZN 3R 45 B A © M RR E B S Y Y 45 8
AEHBEABEWAA197,537,0005 T
(20204 : 175,887,000/ 7T) ©

7202112 A31 B # o 3k & 50 & 7
KO EFHETENRZHERKE G
% % /5 918,286,000 i 7T ( 2020 £
925,172,000/ 7T) °

EEE B 0 B ZE2021F12 A 31
BOoRERATHKELNETAI76%
(896,578,000 L) X B EEBE RN T
EHREHEAERBBA - FEr2.4%
(21,708,000 7T ) K71 2023F B BUF £
R S IEREIBHTENRE -



The analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: BELEHRIBEERBBEITEOT -

As at 31 December

M®12H318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Before offsetting K AT
Deferred income tax assets: EEMEMEE -
— to be recovered after more than 12 months ~ — ¥ HR:1B1218 A& 4@ 9,197 6,963
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 1218 A Rk E 10,080 14,749
19,277 21,712
Deferred income tax liabilities: BELEFTBREE
— to be settled after more than 12 months — $REBB12E FEEE (44,074) (47,226)
— to be settled within 12 months — B 2B A REEE (7,900) (15,160)
(561,974) (62,386)
After offsetting KR
Deferred income tax assets RS E = 2,978 -
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISHAE (35,675) (40,674)
As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax assets and 2021128318 @ RHEREREAIELE
deferred income tax liabilities were offset, where they are in FEREENMELMESHABEEHEIR
the same entity, to the extent of HK$16,299,000 (31 December §516,299,0008 7T (202012 A31 8 -
2020: HK$21,712,000). 21,712,000 7T) °
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The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets

ELFEHEAE

As at 1 January 2021
Currency translation differences
Recognised in profit or loss
— Effects of tax rate change
— Others

As at 31 December 2021

As at 1 January 2020
Currency translation differences
Recognised in profit or loss

As at 31 December 2020

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

202151518

INERRTEZR
—HEEHyE
— Hft

72021128318
720201818
INERRMEZE

N B R

2020128318

Tax losses

BIAE R
HK$'000
TAT

7,602
197

(3,025)
(2,449)

2,325

7,796
841
(1,035)

7,602

BEEBREERABNESMT

Accrued
expenses
and
impairment
FERTBxX
REE
HK$'000
FAET

1,147
193

(307)
122

1,755

3,628
(177)
3,796

7147

Deferred
income

EE WA
HK$'000
TAT

6,963
237

1,997

9,197

5,466
280
1,217

6,963

Total

#et
HK$'000
TAT

21,712
627

(3,332)
270

19,277

16,790
944
3,978

21,712



Deferred income tax liabilities

EEFEHAR

As at 1 January 2021
Currency translation differences
Recognised in profit or loss
— Effects of tax rate change
— Others

As at 31 December 2021

As at 1 January 2020
Currency translation differences
Recognised in profit or loss

As at 31 December 2020

1202141818
INERRTEZR
—REEHTE

— Hfp
720214128318
$2020F1 818
INERRMEZR

72020512A31H

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

IEBUR I &
HK$'000
TEL

(47,218)
(1,452)

1,886
2,710

(44,074)

(42,872)
(2,519)
(1,827)

(47,218)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry-forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefits through the future taxable profits is probable.
As at 31 December 2021, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the unused tax losses amounting to
HK$53,333,000 (31 December 2020: HK$39,703,000) as its
realisation is uncertain. Such tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

Withholding
income tax

abilges
HK$'000

TAT

(15,160)

7,260

(7,900)

(17,672)

2,512

(15,160)

Revaluation
surplus in
related to

business
combination
E 3
AbHERZ
EffEH
HK$'000
FEL

(8)
8

Total

2
HK$'000
TR

(62,386)
(1,444)

1,886
9,970

(51,974)

(60,527)
(2,544)
685

(62,386)

EEFTEREETAEERBERTE
BRI ERB s PR M 2 FIEE
BIERAIR - R2021F12A31H » K%
] I Kk Bt oK 55 A3 B4 1E BT 18 53,333,000 %
7£(2020512 A31H : 39,703,000/ 7T )

ERELHIAEE - JHAT

THEEM - BEMEABENSERYE

g o
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Interim dividend of HK5.4 cents FEARR B iR B AR T @R
(2020 Interim: HK2.0 cents) 5.4l
per ordinary share (2020 H HA : 2.0781l) 44,996 16,665
Proposed final dividend of HK8.6 cents EEOREIR BT TR
(2020 Final: HK8.0 cents) 8.6/8 11l
per ordinary share (20204 K EA : 8.0781L) 71,660 66,661
116,656 83,326
The dividends paid in 2021 and 2020 were HK$111,657,000 20214 K% 2020 F K14 MR B 5 Bl A&
(HK13.4 cents per share) and HK$91,658,000 (HK11.0 cents 111,657,000 7T (& K134 l) &
per share) respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year 91,658,000/ 7T (G A 11.08 (L) XA
ended 31 December 2021 of HK8.6 cents per share, amounting FERNEREREAE NS I ERMNE
to a total of approximately HK$71,660,000, is to be approved at 2021 FE12B31BIFEEZ KB ESE
the forthcoming annual general meeting. f%8.6 71l - A% B 42%3 471,660,000

JC ©
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(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

generated from operations:

Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Finance income — net (note 9)
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment (note 13)
Impairment of property,
plant and equipment (note 7)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(note 7)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(note 15)
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment (note 6)
Rent concessions (note 6)
Lease modification (note 6)
Allowance for inventories (note 7)
Impairment loss on financial assets
(note 7)
Share award scheme (note 8)
Share of profit of an associate
(note 12)

Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Restricted cash
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from a related company
Contract liabilities
Trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

3
EJEJ

4

L

TS %1 A1l 7
EX R
IS A —
M - BB RE&
(Kiz£13)
Y - B REERE
(K1at7)
FREEETE
(K1:%7)
A E
(Hia£15)

(M E9)
REITE

HEWE - BE kRERE

(fiax6)
HeER (A iE6)
HMEERT(Kt6)
GEREB(HE7)
CREEREEIE
(H1a£7)
B& 17 B2 Eha 81 (A1 aE8)
FEA &R REF
(Mat12)

@éﬁ%“%ﬁ

AT
\H]][T

“BE%'JfEi
“”%&/HJ@FH&Z%UE
JE Y BE Bk 2~ R RIR
BMAE

B 5 N HE A PN KR

BHERS

) KBTS FR Al Al B2 48 2
ZiTEE :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
324,520 240,542
(18,137) (10,989)
143,889 138,760
7.145 -
69,647 64,714
7,756 6,620
(2,077) (1,153)
(9,152) (5,327)
(1,429) -
8,948 5,203
2,941 6,992
2,011 2,011
(527) (650)
(57,497) (55,257)
(788) 17,195
(99,256) 43,966
- (10,898)
17,563 19,292
(11,209) 102,416
384,348 563,437
BTEE (8%) BRAR 202143k
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(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) 7

proceeds from disposals of property, plant and E ﬁﬁ}%&%&ﬁﬁ”\jﬁﬁ”e ij(IE’T
equipment comprise: =

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Net book amount disposed EHEREFE 464 502
Gain on disposal (note 6) & W (faE6) 2,077 1,153
Proceeds from disposals HETS A 2,541 1,655

(c) REFHIIKERE BTN EBEE

(c) This section sets out an analysis of the movements in

liabilities from financing activities:

ZAH

Leases Borrowings Total
HE RE wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL FER FER
As at 1 January 2021 R2021E181A 98,630 282,235 380,865
Cash flows Reneg
Principal amounts VNS (71,898) 62,974 (8,924)
Interest payments FERR (3,562) (2,814) (6,376)
Other changes Hit g
New lease (note 14) MREWEE14) 92,456 - 92,456
Rent concessions and lease modification MeRRRAEET
(note 6) (Hrit6) (10,581) - (10,581)
Foreign exchange adjustments INEFIE (4,140) (6,040) (10,180)
Interest expense FIsEY 3,562 2,814 6,376
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 104,467 339,169 443,636
As at 1 January 2020 R202051581H 151,226 241,960 393,186
Cash flows Reneg
Principal amounts A& (47,269) 40,275 (6,994)
Interest payments BN (7,590 (4,036) (11,626)
Other changes HihEH
New lease CiibiN= 1,635 - 1,635
Rent concessions MeEH (5,327) - (5,327)
Interest expense FIBEY 5,955 4,036 9,991
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12831H 98,630 282,235 380,865
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 December 2020: Nil).

(a) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments:

Acquisitions of plant and equipment: BEME MERE
— Contracted but not provided for — BEREREE

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The Group had future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows:

Not later than one year —FR
— to related companies — TR
— to third parties — FE=F

M2021F12 8318 @ REBEWETME
A ARBE(2020F12A31H « #) -

(a) EARELE

AEEBUTEARE -
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
52,231 39,337

(b) HBEHEERE

REERE AT RHESCEHE HE
THEWME - AEBRTAIRELE
MEE T XA KRR KEAEFHIE
@R -

As at 31 December

M12A318
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
5,054 4,178
230 1,967
5,284 6,145

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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The Group acquired the Silicone Business from Techco Silicone
on 31 March 2021 for a consideration of RMB12,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$14,235,000). Techco Silicone
was mainly engaged in a full range of liquid silicone rubber
molds and product solutions from development, mold design
and manufacturing as well as the production and assembly of
silicone products. The Group acquired the Silicone Business in
order to expand the technology and production capacity of the
Group in silicone mold and product solutions and thus further
broaden the product mix and market of the Group.

M2021F3A318 - AEBEUREAR
# 12,000,000 7T (#7 & %9 14,235,000 %
TERSERBKEERBER - KSR
TEREREREERBELARLEESR
MR A R BIEFAE  EAERRE
BEUREBREMNEEREE - A£EH
WEERBER  NEAAEBRRERE
BEERBRAROZRMRES &M
E—PHEASENEREES RS -

Details of the acquisition are as follows: WREEFIB T -
Purchase consideration HK$'000
EEAE FHET
Cash paid during the year FAEMNRE 11,862
Contingent consideration (a) AR RE a) 2,373
Total st 14,235
The assets recognised as a result of the acquisition are as EUERRYEENT
follows:
Fair value
AREE
HK$'000
FHIT
Property, plant and equipment Y -~ BB M EE 4,793
Customer relationship EFEE
(included in intangible assets) (BIEREREET) 3,084
Net identifiable assets acquired WETRREEFE 7,877
Add: Goodwill (b) 0 EmEep) 6,358
14,235
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(a)

Pursuant to the acquisition arrangement, the Group is
required to pay Techco Silicone additional considerations
of RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,187,000) if the sales amounts generated by the
acquired business (excluding the Group's contribution)
exceed RMB6,000,000 or RMB2,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,373,000) if the sales amounts
generated by the acquired business (excluding the Group's
contribution) exceed RMB7,400,000 from the acquisition
date to 31 March 2022.

The potential undiscounted amount of future payments
that the Group could be required to make under this
arrangement is HK$0, HK$1,187,000 or HK$2,373,000.
The fair value of the contingent consideration arrangement
approximates to the carrying amount due to the short
maturity as at 31 December 2021.

The goodwill is attributable to the workforce and the
profitability in trading the products and synergies expected
to arise after the Group's acquisition of the Silicone
Business.

The acquired businesses contributed revenue of
HK$5,696,000 and net loss of HK$3,362,000 to the Group
for the period from the acquisition date to 31 December
2021. Had the business been consolidated from 1
January 2021, the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2021 would show pro-forma
revenue of HK$2,407,376,000 and profit for the period of
HK$281,459,000.

(a)

BEKRELZE  WEKRERASHE
202253 A31 BB E B EERH
ELBE(TREAEEER)BBA
R#6,000,0007t ' AEEARKES
=B I EEIMCE AR 1,000,000
JC(FEE R #1,187,000 7T ) ° fid
KEXBEENHESE(TEE
AEBEFR) BB AKRK7,400,000
T AKEARESER XS EN
RE AR 2,000,000 (185 H 4
2,373,000/ 7T) °

AEEFEARBARAZHELHER
R FKEEBERBSBROBT
1,187,000 7T 5 2,373,0007% JT °
EEIHA R A - 1R2021F12 A31
H ZRARETHENAREEER
IREEMRS -

ZRERANSS )  EEREBE
mEEMEE N RASBEWEER X
1% TR HAEE A B 1 (R 20 FE

B ELN S Y E B B E 2021
F12A31T BB AXE B B
I A 5,696,000 7 7t & &5 18 F &
3,362,000 7T ° i 7% ¥ 7% B 2021
F1R1BEH - BE20215F12 A31
BEFEZRAEBEREE2EE
I A 2,407,376,0005% 7t & HA A v4a F)
281,459,000/ 7T °

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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(a) Names and relationship (a) BIELER

The following companies and individuals were related AR AR RERA LT AREE2021
parties of the Group that have transactions or balances F1I2AMBLEEEHASEAR S
with the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021: AN EERER -

Name of the related party Relationship with the Group

BMELER AL 2 F

TK Technology Holdings Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders

RIREERBRAF BRI E R

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited Entity controlled by Ultimate Shareholders

RIRECRINDBRAR] AR R IE 8 E S

Mr. Li Pui Leung Ultimate Shareholders

MR LA AR

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael Ultimate Shareholders

SEPEE BRIEARR

Mr. Lee Leung Yiu Ultimate Shareholders

TRIBEAE BRIEARR

(b) Transactions with related parties during the year (b) FREBEER 2R S

Other than the related party transactions disclosed in note BRSO BEMEE R XS
39, the following transactions with related parties were AEBRFARBETETHIS
undertaken by the Group during the year. R e

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Payment of lease liabilities YHEEEE 74,713 54,822
Interest expense paid on lease liabilities FHEEBE L MHF SRS 1,919 4,834
Operating lease expenses paid EEEHERE 4,322 473
Rent concessions HEER (9,152) (4,830)
Total (i) #EH) 71,802 55,299
The related additions of right-of-use assets for the year ended HZE2021F 128318 LLFE  £4
31 December 2021 were approximately HK$79,384,000 EEEMRBEEINEEL A79,384,000
(2020: HK$1,635,000). #71.(2020% : 1,635,000 7T) °
(i)  The amounts mainly represented rental payments for land and () ZAEXEBERAVIMEEEERAFAR
buildings for factory, office and other facilities purposes paid to TK RIBKORIDBRABDZAHARTI
Technology Holdings Limited and TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited. R~ PR R EAD R HE RS A+ g F R
All rental amounts were determined with reference to independent MR- TEHSSEH2EBIME
property valuation. fHEETE -
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(c)

o

Outstanding balances arising from leases

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the
reporting period in relation to lease transactions with
related parties:

Amounts due from a related party B — & A& 5 708

TK Technology (Shenzhen) Limited

Amounts mainly represented rental deposits paid to a
related party. The amounts are interest-free and repayable
according to the lease terms.

Key management personnel compensation

The compensations paid or payable to key management
personnel for employee services are shown below:

TE - #FHeRiEA
Pt B2 Rt &I

Wages, salaries and bonuses

Share award scheme

Pension costs — defined contribution
plans

Indemnity

Each of the Ultimate Shareholders jointly and severally
has undertaken to indemnify and keep each of the Group's
companies fully indemnified against all claims and losses
suffered or incurred by any company of the Group as a
result of or in connection with, amongst others, the use of
the land and buildings owned by certain related companies
by any company of the Group as tenants, as these related
companies have not obtained the approval from the
relevant authorities in relation to the lease arrangements of
such land and buildings.

RIRERIDEBRA

(c) HEEENRBERER

RBEMR  BEEHTHEHERSE
BHREEEHAT

As at 31 December

M12A31H8
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Al 10,913 10,898

R —BRESTRBLTERER &
METXNNESES - ZFHER
BWARBHEERRERE

(d) EEEEASHMH

HESRBONRENEBEEA
B HMBIIMT :

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

BAREBRA — EREHKEE

2021 2020
HK$"000 HK$'000
TET TAET
28,176 23,685
680 680

163 148
29,019 24,513

BEREBRD KR K @8 52 5 H
HH R (EFEE) REEEARQF
(ERER)ERETHABARES
2 kBFmSAREEFALQE
SXYELENAEREBEREBRAAX
SEEKERAIREBERSE R
FEERE RERZXZHEB AR
Y ARESHEBHBEIZET LI RE
FEOHEEZHE B
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(a) Balance sheet of the Company

Assets

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Deferred income tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the company

Share capital

Share premium

Shares held for employee share
scheme

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Total equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other payables

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

behalf:

Li Pui Leung
FHR

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

BE

FRBEE
RMBARZIRE
EXEFEHEE

FRBEERER

RBEE
& U PR 88 2 )RR
ReLkREeEEY

MENE EE HRR
EERR

EEREE
KATERA
g £

L@

Bt g (8
shig 8 B at &l
B 2Bk
H b
PR B it 7

RSB

&8
RBAE
H b & R IR

BEAE

EakaEAE

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and was signed on its

(a) ARBEERER

As at 31 December

M12A31H8

2021 2020

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi THxT T
226,316 224,305

42 42

226,358 224,347

347,058 342,322

206 211

347,264 342,533

573,622 566,880

83,326 83,326

425,815 425,815
(10,416) (10,416)

(b) 5,261 3,250
(b) 69,636 64,748
573,622 566,723

= 157

= 157

573,622 566,880

ARARBEEREBERAEZTEMN2022
F3A26RHE - WA FIESEKEK
Exgn®E:

Yung Kin Cheung Michael
SEH



of the Company

At 1 January 2021

Profit for the year

Employee share schemes —
Value of employee services

Dividends

At 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020

Profit for the year

Employee share schemes —
Value of employee services

Dividends

At 31 December 2020

(b) Other reserves and retained earnings movements

7"202151A81H

F W

EERMFTE—
EERBEE

BLE

M2021%F12H31H

"R2020F1A1H

F W

EERMNFTE—
EERGERE

BLE

2020F12H31H

Other reserves represent share-based payments reserve.

(b) A<

N

i

/

A A R R R

Other Retained
reserves earnings
H i e R EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT T
3,250 64,748
- 116,545
2,011 -
- (111,657)

5,261 69,636

1,239 72,903

- 83,503
2,011 -
- (91,658)
3,250 64,748

L fth & 48 DA B 1D A T 2 A9 R

o

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2021 and 2020, all of which are limited liability companies:

Place of
incorporation

AL 3t B

Company name

AREH

TK Group International BVI
(Hong Kong) Limited*

FISEER(ER)ERAE

TK Plastic Products PRC
(Suzhou) Limited*

RIBBER(EMN)BRRR B

TK Mold (Shenzhen) Limited? PRC

RIBACRY)BER AR B

YD Mold (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC

HREECRINER AR B

TK Precision Plastics (Shenzhen) PRC
Limited*

el B ORI BR AR B

TK Precision Plastics (Huizhou) PRC
Limited*

BIRANIB(BMERDEN B

TK Mold Germany GmbH

TK Mold Germany GmbH e

* Shares held directly by the Company

RERUEE

Germany

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXRRELHY

Trading of plastic products
and molds/HK
BRARREAEL S /B

Manufacture of plastic
products/PRC
HEBRHEL,/

Fabrication of mold/PRC
BARME/h

Fabrication of mold/PRC
BARME/h

Manufacture of plastic
products/PRC
HEBRYEL,/

Manufacture of plastic
products/PRC
WEBBHE

Fabrication of mold/Germany

BARUE/(2H

W Registered as wholly owned foreign enterprises under PRC law

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank balances held in Asian countries (including
China) are subject to local exchange control regulations. These
regulations impose restrictions on remitting capital from those
countries, other than through normal dividends.

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances included
within the consolidated financial statements to which these
restrictions apply is HK$854,194,000 (2020: HK$784,560,000).

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

TXAR2021F &2020F12 A31BH
FEWNBRAR(HABRAR)IIK :

Particulars of

issued share capital Interest held

BRITRAFE HEER

50,000 ordinary shares of 100%
USD 1 each

50,000k BREE1ETHEBR

Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%

E £ 710,000,000 7T

Paid-in capital of HK$132,000,000 100%

E & 7132,000,0007%5 7T

Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%

E £ 710,000,000 7T

Paid-in capital of HK$166,000,000 100%

E & 7166,000,00075 7T

Paid-in capital of HK$10,000,000 100%

E £ 710,000,000 7T

Paid-in capital of EUR25,600 100%

B & K 25,6008( 7T

* ARRERFERD
o REFEDEEEMANEEELE

ERRH

RENEBR(BREPE)FENRE LR
TTREBRBBTEWINEEFIER - %F
ERYE B ZEBRRNE AR H e IR Bl
(EBBERIN) ©

AAGHUBERERANERZER S
B& MIRTTAE A EBRE (E A854,194,000
777 (20204 : 784,560,000/ 7T) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
BHIERERMF(E)

39 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive

39 EEREARER

(a) EER

BEEREHTBRABNFHET

(= R—A

B =1

TRAEME

is set out below: PN
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BZE2021F128318 LFE
Employer’'s
contribution
to retirement
Discretionary benefit
Name Fees Salary bonus scheme Total
EEHEAK
i3 He £ BEEL  BAGEIMR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Pui Leung FHRAE 500 2,430 2,932 18 5,880
Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i) %4 500 2,086 2,547 18 5,151
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu FRIERE 500 1,427 1,405 18 3,350
Mr. Cheung Fong Wa RRELE 500 1,685 1,555 18 3,758
Independent non-executive BIKHTES
Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy EHFEL 320 - - - 320
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong BENRLE 320 - = = 320
Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung & {7+ 320 - - - 320
2,960 7,628 8,439 72 19,099

> > > > > > >

RTEE (2) BRAR 2021 F3K
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(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020:

(i)

Name

%

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Pui Leung

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael (i)
Mr. Lee Leung Yiu

Mr. Cheung Fong Wa

Independent non-executive
Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping Roy

Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong

Ms. Christine Wan Chong Leung

BiTES
FHRELA
SRR
FRERE
RRERE

BUFGTES
ESTEL

e
REHLL

Fees

HK$'000
TATL

500
500
500
250

320
320
320

2,710

Mr. Yung Kin Cheung Michael is also the chief executive officer.

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

(a) EER

Salary

EES
HK$'000
TAL

2,108
1,774
1,138
1,691

6,611

=
BX

£Z2020F128318 L EE :

Discretionary

(i)

bonus

BB
HK$'000
TAL

2,136
1,854
1,025
1,133

6,148

SEAXETRSEFERTE

Employer's
contribution
to retirement
benefit
scheme
ZE:0f N
BT AR
HK$'000
TAR

72

Total

it
HK$'000
FHT

4,762
4,146
2,681
2,992

320
320
320

15,541



(b) Directors’ other benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking for the year (2020: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company waived any
emoluments for the year (2020: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to joint, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office for the year (2020: Nil).

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of the
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with the directors of the Company for the year
(2020: Nil).

Saved for contracts amongst Group companies and
as disclosed in note 36, there were no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

(b) ESEAFER

AEE  FAESHEREELAR
A EKB AR ESABNE MR

750 ST AN s FEMUR PR A8 7 (2020
&) -

KEE  BMERXRARZEERETM
B4 (20204 : £E)

AEE  AEBBERNESINE
S - EARSIBEEMALREER
BFHEEMARNEBENEESES
BERR /B (20204F « &) -

REE BEUNES  ZFEFE
HAEABRRERNRBAEEEH
BHNERAXBEANER  EER
N EAB2Z 5 (20205 : &) ©

BREBA R REE L &M E36 AT
BEN  NERIFAEMRMER -
BER S ERNREXEEH
BARARPEERETERIEEE
BEAEaNEARS  RHAE
#J o

ROIERE (=A%) BRAR] 2021 F5H
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Revenue

Profit for the year
attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

2017

HK$'000

FHET

A 1,860,900
ZN/NCTE =N

JERF PR T

301,833

2017

HK$'000

FHET

BERT 1,638,607

BERE 727,089

s 911,518

TK Group (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2021

Year ended 31 December

HE12A3MBALEE
2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAET

2,298,609 2,310,842 2,033,419

350,185 301,803 209,687

As at 31 December

MW12A31R8
2018 2019 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAT

2,163,489 2,324,543 2,572,311
1,088,031 1,133,078 1,177,756

1,075,458 1,191,465 1,394,555

2021
HK$'000
FE7

2,404,398

282,383

2021
HK$'000
TET

2,851,160
1,229,241

1,621,919



.( RIISEEERIBRA O

TK GROUP (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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